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Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

Freehold Borough School District 
County of Monmouth, New Jersey 

Dear Board Members: 

280 Park Avenue 
Freehold, New Jersey 07728 

http://www.freeholdboro.k 12.nj .us 
PHONE (732) 761-2100 

FAX (732) 462-8954 

February 25, 2022 

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the Freehold Borough School District (the "District") for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 Is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data 
and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management 
of the Board of Education (the "Board"). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in 
this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the 
financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary 
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included. 

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, 
statistical tables and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's 
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section Includes the basic financial 
statements and schedules, as well as the auditors' report thereon. The statistical tables section includes 
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is 
required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 
1984 and in addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed 
to meet the requirements of the Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New 
Jersey OM B's Circular 15-08. Information related to this single audit, including the auditors' report on the 
internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and 
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report. 

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Freehold Borough School District is an 
independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB. All funds of the District are 
included In this report. The Freehold Borough Board of Education and all its schools constitute the 
District's reporting entity. 
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The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 
8. These Include regular as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District 
completed the 2020-2021 fiscal year with an enrollment of 1,657 students. The following details the 
changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last ten years. 

Fiscal Year 

2020-2021 
2019-2020 
2018-2019 
2017-2018 
2016-2017 
2015-2016 
2014-2015 
2013-2014 
2012-2013 
2011-2012 

Average Daily Enrollment 

Student Enrollment 

1,657.0 
1,690.0 
1,693.0 
1,678.0 
1,737.0 
1,720.0 
1,633.4 
1,573.0 
1,515.3 
1,475.2 

Percent Change 

(1.95%) 
(0.18%) 
0.89% 
(3.40%) 
0.99% 
5.30% 
3.84% 
3.81% 
2.72% 
8.78% 

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The mayor and council are involved in a number of 
Initiatives to make the Borough more attractive to homeowners, as well as to new and relocating 
businesses. 

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: During FY 21 the Board received an increase of $1 ,750,921 in state aid 
which was utilized to restore positions eliminated in the July 2020 budget reduction, add 1.5 FTE, 
and most notably increase the length of the school day 1 O minutes. Subsequent to year end the 
District completed a complete HVAC renovation in the 51

h grade wing of the Park Avenue Complex 
which was funded in large part out of the operating budget. During FY 21 the District was notified 
that it would be awarded ESSER II funding in the amount of $3,267,314 OF which a substantial 
amount the district will apply towards HVAC upgrades at Freehold Learning Center. 

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District ls responsible for 
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the 
District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are 
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but 
not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) 
the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring 
that an adequate internal control structure Is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic 
evaluation by the District management. 

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of 
the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance 
programs. as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and 
regulations. 
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5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains 
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal 
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. 
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund and the 
debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted tor 
In the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected In 
the financial section. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line 
item basis. Open encumbrances at year~end are either canceled or are included as 
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are 
reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2021 . 

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect accounting 
principles generally accepted In the United States of America, as promulgated by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the district is organized on the 
basis of funds. These funds are explained in the "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 1. 

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: The District's total outstanding debt as of June 30, 2021 was 
$14,955,000. The remaining annual maturity schedule as of June 30, 2021 for principal as well as 
annual interest payments are detailed in the "Notes to Financial Statements". 

8. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute 
as detailed in "Notes to Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash 
management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss 
under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was 
enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking 
institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public 
depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act. 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of Insurance, including but not limited to 
general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on 
property and contents and fidelity bonds. 

10. OTHER INFORMATION: 

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants or registered municipal accountants. Gerard Stankiewicz, CPA, PSA of the accounting 
firm of Samuel Klein and Company, Certified Public Accountants, was selected by the Board's 
Finance Committee. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit 
was also designed to meet the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed 
to meet the requirements of the Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. The auditors' report on the basic financial 
statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included In the financial 
section of this report. The auditors' reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the 
single audit section of this report. 
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11. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the 
Freehold Borough Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and 
taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and 
maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been 
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our business office. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Joseph Howe, Ed. D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Patrick J. Pisano 
School Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
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SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Nl<:W.\l~ I(, N •• T. 07102·9969 
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l"Ax mn> <l24.n101 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

Freehold Borough Board of Education 
County of Monmouth, New Jersey 

Report on the Financial Statement 

!'lfl W J>HT l\IAI:-> STHEl!:'l', S!Tl't.: 808 

li'Hll.it:l!Of, IJ . :N ,J. 07728 · 2291 
t.:>110:-.:~: (7:32) 7R0-2600 
FAX (782) 780 -1 030 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type 
activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the Board of Education of the 
Freehold Borough School District, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 and the related Notes to Financial Statements, which collectively comprise the 
District's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. · 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements In 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of 
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District's internal control. 

ME:MBE:RS AMERICAN I NSTITUTE: or C t~TIF"IEO Pu euc ACCOUNTANTS 

wvvw. samuelkleln-cpa-rma .com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
<CONTINUED) 

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business type activities each major fund and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Freehold Borough School 
District, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

other Matters 

Required Supplementary I nformaJion 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management 
Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information and schedule of the District's 
proportionate share of the net pension liabillty - PERS, schedule of District contributions, schedule of the 
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District - TPAF, the District's 
proportionate share of the net OPES Liability - PERS and TPAF, and budgetary comparison information 
as identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers It to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted In the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the Information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Freehold Borough School District's basic financial statements. The introductory section, 
combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules, and statistical 
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis, as required by the Division of Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial 
Assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by US Office of Management 
and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey OMB's 
Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, 
respectively, and the other information such as the Introductory and statistical sections are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(CONTINUED) 

The accompanying Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements, Long-term Debt Schedules and 
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such Information dlrectly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying Combining and Individual Fund Financial 
Statements, Long-term Debt Schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State 
Financial Assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole. 

The other information identified above has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated February 25, 
2022, on our consideration of the Board of Education of the Freehold Borough School District's Internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Freehold Borough School 
District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Freehold Borough 
School District internal control over financial reporting compliance. 

Freehold, New Jersey 
February 25, 2022 

Jt~5f~~ 
Gerard Stankiewicz 
Certified Public Accountant 
Licensed Public School Accountant #912 

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I 



T@orougb of jf reebolb f)ublic ~cbools 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 
Freehold Borough School District 
County of Monmouth, New Jersey 

Dear Board Members: 

280 Park Avenue 
Freehold, New Jersey 07728 

http://www.freeholdboro.k 12. nj. us 
PHONE (732) 761-2100 

FAX (732) 462-8954 

February 25, 2022 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The following analysis of Freehold Borough Board of Education's financial performance provides a 
summary of the district's financial integrity. The Intent of the analysis is to provide an interpretation of the 
financial statements. As you know, school districts operate as a non-profit organization. Yet, GASB 34 is 
instrumental in providing outside entities the opportunity to measure for profit operations. Hence, financial 
information that Is analyzed utilizing GASB 34 for non-profit entities is, in our opinion, irrelevant and 
misleading. School districts are required to account for asset depreciation even though the need to match 
revenues with purchased assets are not necessary since all similar purchases are budgeted for in capital 
outlay and expensed in the operating year. 

Fund Financial Statements 

School Districts utilize two categories for reporting assets. The first category identified as Governmental 
Funds records the most activity. Governmental Funds reflects activity within the following sub-groups: 

General Fund (Fund 10) 
Fund 11 Distributed and Undistributed Instructional Accounts - Asset Producing 
Fund 12 Capital Outlay - Asset Producing 

Special Revenue (Fund 20) 
Fund 20 Grants and Entitlements - Asset Producing 

Capital Projects <Fund 30) 
Fund 30 Capital Projects/Construction in progress - Asset Producing 

Debt Service <Fund 40) 
Fund 40 Debt Service payments for Bonds and Interest - Non Asset Producing 

The second category identified as Business Type Activities, records assets purchased for the following 
sub-group: 

Enterprise <Fund 60) 
Fund 60 Enterprise/Food Service - Asset Producing 
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Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for 2021 are as follows: 

In total , net position totaled $27,039,674 which represents $1,976,567 or 7.89% increase in the net 
position as adjusted of $25,063, 107 from 2020. 

General revenues accounted for $36,944, 172 in revenue or 89.65% of all revenues. Program specific 
revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and 
contributions accounted for $4,263,214 or 10.35% of total revenues of $41,207,386. 

Total assets of governmental activities, exclusive of the Capital Projects Fund, increased by $1 ,259,511 
as cash and cash equivalents increased by $760,435. Receivables increased by $485,565 and current 
liabilities increased by $464,567. 

The District had $39,954,047 in expenses; only $4,263,214 of these expenses was offset by program 
specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily property taxes and 
federal and state aid) of $36,944, 172 were adequate to provide for these programs. 

Among major funds, the General Fund had $31,736,010 In revenues and $31,187,579 in expenditures. 
The General Fund's fund balance increased by $548,431 over 2020. The General Fund's fund balance Is 
$4,234,580. The increase was caused by lower than anticipated expenditure levels. 

The Special Revenue Fund had $4,268,259 In revenues and $4,388, 11 O in expenditures. 

Using this Comprehensive Annual Flnanclal Report (CAFR) 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These 
statements are organized so the reader can understand the Borough of Freehold School District as a 
financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly 
detailed look at specific financial activities. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provides information about the activities of the 
District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District's finances and longer-term view of those 
finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these 
statements tell how services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 
The fund financial statements also look at the District's most significant funds with all other non-major 
funds presented In total in one column. In the case of the Borough of Freehold School District, the 
General Fund is by far the most significant. 
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Reporting the District as a Whole 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

This document contains all funds used by the District to provide programs and activities, viewing the 
District as a whole and reports the culmination of all financial transactions. The report answers the 
question ''How We Did Financially During Fiscal Year 2021 ". The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of activities provides the summary. The statements include all assets and liabilities using the 
accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis 
of accounting takes into account, all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when 
cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's net position and change in those positions. This change in net 
position is important because they report on whether the District's financial position has improved or 
diminished. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two kinds of 
activities: 

Governmental Activities - AU of the District's programs and services are reported here including, 
instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and 
extracurricular activities. 

Business-Type Activities - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover all 
the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service Enterprise Fund is reported as a 
business activity. 

Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statement 

The Analysis of the District's major funds begins on page 26. Fund financial reports provide detailed 
information about the District's major funds. The District's major governmental funds are the General 
Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
Information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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The District maintains four individual governmental funds. Information Is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund and debt service 
fund. all of which are considered to be major funds. 

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, special revenue fund and debt 
service fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary 
Information for the general fund, special revenue fund and debt service fund to demonstrate compliance 
with this budget 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds 

The District maintains one proprietary fund type. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions 
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-31 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the District-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on 
pages 34 to 90 of this report. 

Other Information 

Combining fund statements can be found on pages 26-31 and schedules on pages 89-118 of this report. 

The School District as a Whole 

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net 
position may serve over time as a useful indicator of government's financial position. 

The District's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of 
activities, the acquisition and payment of debt. the acquisition and disposal of capital assets and the 
depreciation of capital assets. 

The Statement of Net Position provides the financial perspective of the District as a whole. 

Table 1 provides a comparative summary of the School District's net position for 2021 and 2020. 
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Table 1 - Comparative Summary of Net Position 

Governmenbll Activities Buslness.T;t!!e Activities Tot.al School District 

2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019·2020 2020·2021 2019·2020 

Anew 

Curren1 and other assets $ 9,220,681 $ 8,250,518 $ 106,163 $ 321,346 $ 9,326,844 $ 6,571,864 

Capital assets, net 41 ,541,895~ 41,006,899 82,360 97 155 41,624,255 41 104 054 

Total Assets $ so.1a2.s1a $ 49,257.41 7 $ 188,523 $ 418 501 $ 50,951,099 $ 49,675,918 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Loss on oereasarice of aonds $ 12,087 $ 24,173 $ 12,087 $ 24,173 

Pension 1,1B1,0!'.!1 J,5~4,J3~ 1 181 091 1544134 

Total Deferred outnows 

or re$ources $ 1,193,178 $ 1,568,307 $ 1,1 93,178 s 1,568,307 

L!abllltle11 

Current and other llal:J!l!tlea $ 1, 159,831 $ 912,894 $ 1,159,831 $ 912,894 

Net pension liability 5,a30,183 6,190,769 5,630,183 6,190,769 

Long-term liabllllies outstanding 15?041166 1(11461 1997 15 704 188 16 461 997 

Total Liabilities $ 2214941202 $ 231665.660 $ $ $ 22,494,202 $ 23,565,660 

Deferred Inflow of resources 

Pension $ 2,615,457 $ 2 457 074 $ 2615457 $ 2,457,074 

Net Position 

Net investment in 

capital a11sets $ 26,598,982 $ 25,298,663 $ 82,360 $ 97,155 $ 26,681,342 $ 25,395,616 

Restricted 4,394,098 5,405,478 4,394,098 5,405,476 

Unrestricted (deficit) '41141 11l29l 'e12s2,§~~l ]06,l63 321,3~6 ,4,035,766l ,5, 738, 188! 

Total Net Position $ 26,6511151 $ 241644,607 $ 166,623 $ 418,501 $ 27,0M,674 i 25,063, 107 

The District's combined net position were $27,039,674 on June 30, 2021, representing an increase of 
$1 ,976,567 or 7.89% over the net position from the prior year of $25,063, 107 for the net pension liability 
and payment of bonds. 

The largest portion of the District's net position is its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
construction-in-progress, buildings and improvements, and machinery, equipment and vehicles), less any 
related debt (bonds payable) used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses 
these capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending. Although the District's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources 
(namely, property taxes), since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Capital assets, net increased from the prior year due to the amount of new additions associated with the 
District's capital projects having exceeded the amount of depreciation of capital assets In the current year. 
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Table 2 shows the comparative change in net position from fiscal year 2021 and 2020. 

Table 2 - Comparative Change in Net Position 

Governmental Activities . Busine5s·T)!ee Activitie& lotal School District 

2020·2021 201 9·2020 2020-2021 2019-;;!020 :W20-2021 2019-2020 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues ~ 

Cnatges for Services $ 6,634 $ 113, 170 $ 6,634 $ 113, 170 

Operatin9 Grants and Contributions $ 4,263,214 $ 3,280,809 612,940 879,961 4,876,164 4, 160,770 

General Revenue; 

Property Taxes 10,775,172 10,775, 172 10,775, 172 10,775,172 

Federal and State Aid 26,030,019 21,687,495 26,030,019 21,687,495 

Miscellaneous 138,981 168,790 1361961 168 790 

Tota! Revenue 41,207,386 35,912.266 619,574 993.131 4 1,626,960 3619051397 

Expenses: 

Instruction 23,399,747 21 ,334,456 23,399,747 21,334,466 

Tuition 1,066,565 796,341 1,086,565 798,341 

Student and Instruction 

Related Services 5,871,642 6,328,01 1 5,871,542 5,328,011 

School Administration 1.476,842 1,359,671 1,476,642 1,359,671 

General AdministraUon 2,316,684 2,170,217 2,316,664 2,170,217 

Operation and Maintenance 

of Facilities 3,607,179 3,095,091 3,607, 179 3,096,091 

Pupil Transportation 1.745,983 1,436,719 1,745,983 1,436,719 

Interest on Debt 449,605 449,353 449,505 449,353 

t!usiness Type Actives 849,551 1,200,006 6491551 1.2001008 

Tote! Expenses 39,954,047 35,971 ,859 849,551 1,200,008 40,603,596 37i1711667 

Special and Extraordinary Items, Net 5891596 {49·1, 136) 589,696 !491, 136) 

Change In Net Position $ 1,642,935 $ (5501729) $ (2291~J77) $ (206,127) $ 1,612,958 $ (757,606) 

Net Po5ition - beginning 24,644,G06 25, 195,335 418,661 625,376 25,063,257 ;25,820,713 

Adjustments to Opening Net Position 363,609 (151) 363,456 

Adjusted Net PoslUon Beginning 25,008,215 26, 195,335 4181500 6251378 25,426, 715 25,820,713 

Net Position - ending $ 26,851,150 $ 24,644,606 $ 166,523 $ 4181651 $ 27,039,673 $ 25,063,107 
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Governmental Activities 

Revenue for Fiscal Year 2021 

Total revenues of the Governmental Activities were $41,207,386. Property taxes as approved made up 
$10, 775, 172 or 26.15% of revenues for governmental activities for the fiscal year 2021. Federal, state 
and local grants and entitlements and contributions accounted for another $30,249,265 or 73.85%. 

Expenses for Fiscal Year 2021 

Property Taxes 
26.15% 

The total cost of all programs and services was $39,954,047. Instruction comprises $23,399,747 or 
58.57% of the District's expenses other than capital expenditures. 

General and 
Business 

Administrative 
Services 

5.80% 

Plant 
Operations and 

Maintenance 
9.03% 

Pupil 
Transportation 

4.37% 

Interest on 
School nn.-----~--- Noncurrent 

Administrative~ Ii Debt 
Services 1.13% 

.:~::: .... ~f< 
Instruction 

Related 
Services 
14.70% Tuition 

2.70% 
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Expenditures for out-of-district placement of classified students equal about 2. 70% of the operating 
budget. Instructional expenses equal 58.57% of the operating budget. Instructional expenses include 
teachers' salaries, supplies and textbooks. 

Student Support Services include health, social work, child study team and guidance support. 

Maintenance and Operations are expenses mandated by the State Department of Education to maintain 
all building systems. Costs for the maintenance and custodial departments are also included here. 

Transportation costs primarily include Special Education students. 

General and Business Administrative Services are expenditures associated with the business and 
financial aspect of the District. Expenditures include payroll, transportation, accounting, accounts 
payable, benefits processing, technology and personnel departments. 

School Administrative Services relates to principals and oversight of the various school buildings. 

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants 
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The net 
cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these functions. 

Table 3 - Comparative Statement of Activities 

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services • 
% % 

,Q,Q-'Q'j ~Q1~-2Q20 Change 2020-2021 2019-20~Q .Q.b..wm 

Instruction $ 23,399,747 $ 21,334,456 9.68% $ 20,255,589 $ 19,269,740 5.12% 
Support Services: 
Tuition 1,086,565 798,341 36.10% 1,086,565 798,341 36.10% 
Pupils and Instructional Staff 5,871,542 5,328,011 10.20% 4,943,857 4,561,271 8.39% 
School Administration 1,476,842 1,359,671 8.62% 1,476,842 1,359,671 8.62% 
Other Administration 2,316,684 2,170,217 6.75% 2,316,684 2,170,217 6.75% 
Operation and Maintenance 

of Facilities 3,607,179 3,095,091 16.55% 3,607,179 3,095,091 16.55% 
Pupil Transportation 1,745,983 1,436,719 21 .53% 1,745,983 1,436,719 21 .53% 
Debt Service 449,505 4491353 0.03% 258 134 #DIV/O! 

Total Expenses $ 39,9541047 $ 35,971.859 11 .07% $ 35,690,833 $ 32,691,050 9.18% 

Business-Type Activities 

Revenues for the District's business~type activities - food service program were comprised of charges for 
services and federal and state reimbursements. 

Food service expenses exceeded revenue by $229,977. Charges for services represent $6,634 or 1.07% 
of revenue. This represents the amount paid by patrons for daily food service and catering. 

Federal and state reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and reduced lunches was 
$612,940 or 98.93% of revenue. 
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The District's Funds 

Information about the District's major funds starts on page 26. These funds are accounted for using the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds exclusive of capital projects had total 
revenues of $37, 159,632 and expenditures of $36, 796, 739. The net positive change in overall fund 
balance for the year was most significant in the General Fund. 

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, 
the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules 
present a summary of the revenues of the governmental funds exclusive of the capital projects fund for 
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, and the amount and percentage of total and 
increases/decreases in relation to prior year revenues. 

Increase/ 
2020-2021 2019-2020 (Decrease) 

Percent Percent from 2019-2020 
Revenue Amount ofTotal Amount ~ to 2020-2021 

Local Sources $ 10,958,582 29.49% $ 10,943,962 32.14% $ 14,620 
State Sources 22,935,691 61.72% 20,937,558 61.48% 1,998,133 
Federal Sources 3,265,359 8.79% 2,173,364 6.38% 1,091,995 

Total $ 37,159,632 100.00% 34,054,884 
$======= 

100.00% $ 3,104,748 

The decrease in Local Sources is primarily attributed to a decrease In the local tax levy. The increase in 
State Sources is attributed to an increase of the TPAF on-behalf pension contributions and increases in 
other state aid; however, Federal Sources remained comparable. 

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 
30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 and the amount and percent of the total and increase/(decrease) In relation 
to prior year expenditures, exclusive of the Capital Project Fund. 

2020-2021 
Percent 

E)(pendltures Amount ~ 

Current E)(pense: 
Instruction $ 7,508,045 20.38% 
Undistributed 1,086,565 2.95% 

Expenditures 25,573,993 69.43% 
Capital Outlay 1.446, 117 3.93% 
Debt Service 1,221,050 3.31% 

Total $ 36,835,770 100.00% 

2019-2020 

Bm2unt 

$ 7,729,938 

23,544,662 
1,296,392 
1,219,375 

33,790,367 $========= 
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of Total 

22.88% 

69.68% 
3.85% 
3.60% 

100.00% 

lncrease/(Decrease) 
from 2019-2020 

to 2020-2021 

$ (221,893) 

2,029,331 
149,725 

1,675 

$ 1,958,838 
=="""-""'== 



The increase in Current Expense - Instruction is attributed to increased costs of salaries of teachers and 
the increased cost of other instructional programs. 

The increase in Undistributed Expenses relates to higher administrative and benefits costs . 

Debt Service relates to the principal and interest payments on the 201 1 Series Refund ing Bonds and 
2017 Series Bonds, all of which were for building improvements and renovations. 

General Fund Budgeting Highlights 

The Freehold Borough School District's budget Is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on 
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The 
district uses four major funds: the General Fund, where the district records its budget for day to day 
operation; the Special Revenue Fund, where the district records budgeted monies from the State and 
Federal Governments; the Debt Service Fund, where they record expenses for noncurrent debt and 
Interest payments; and its Proprietary Fund where the district records its operational expenses for Its food 
service program. The most significant budgeted fund and the fund that attracts the most attention Is the 
General Fund. 

During the course of the fiscal year 2021, the District amended its General Fund budget as needed. 
These transfers are approved by the Board of Education and the Executive County Superintendent of 
Schools. Transfers that occurred during the year were necessitated by: 

• Staffing changes based on student needs 

• Mid-year salary adjustments as previously agreed upon 

• Additional Special Education Students 

• Changes in appropriations to prevent budget overruns 

In creating its budget the District uses program based budgeting as defined by the State's Chart of 
Accounts. The budgeting program and purchase order encumbrance system are designed to control 
budgets and insure fiscal integrity in the district's fiscal program. 

The District's final budget for the General Fund anticipated that revenues and expenditures would equal. 
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The District budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes. The most significant budgeted fund is the 
general fund. During the fiscal year, there were several differences between the original budget and the final 
amended budget as a result of transfers being applied to certain line items. These transfers were made 
between line items as part of the normal process as permitted by State guidelines. Readers should refer to 
Section C of the financial report for comparisons between actual and budgeted amounts. 

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for certain lines where the 
modified budgeted amounts differ from the original budget by significant amounts. All other fluctuations were 
considered immaterial and no explanations were deemed required. 

Revenue 

Miscellaneous revenues of $95,639 exceeded the anticipated amount of $30,000 by $65,639 due 
primarily to refunds from prior year expenditures and various E-Rate receipts. 

Expenditures 

• Regular programs - instruction final budget reduced the original by $120,063 or 1. 75%. Actual 
expenditures of $6,494,526 represented 94.88% of final budget. This was caused additional 
expenditures for teachers' grades 1-8 and additional purchased service. 

• Total Instructional programs final budget reduced the original by $337,291 or 2.83%. Actual total 
instructional expenditures of $11 ,034,855 or 92.61 % of final budget. The increase in the budget 
was caused by additional need for resource room and multiple disabilities. 

• Undistributed - required maintenance final budget exceeded original by $285,340 or 14.65%. 
The increase was due to unanticipated maintenance acquired throughout the year. The 
expenditures were $2, 113,640 or 94.66% of final budget. 

• Undistributed - unallocated benefits final budget was lower than the original by $408,499 or 
6.67%. Expenditures were $5,029,204 or 87.93% of final budget. The decrease was attributed to 
favorable results in health benefits. 

• Total undistributed expenditures - other support students - extraordinary services budget 
reduced the original by $16,100 or 4.17%. The expenditures were $112,973 or 30.57% of final 

budget. 

• Undistributed- Student transportation final budget equaled the original budget. The expenditures 
were $1 ,023,066 or 94.55% of final budget. 

• Total undistributed expenditures final budget reduced the original by $117,512 or 0.74%. Total 
undistributed expenditures net of on-behalf equal $14, 126,323 or 89.61 % of final budget. 
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Capital Assets 

At the end of the fiscal year 2021, the School District had $56,464,225 invested in land, buildings, 
furniture and equipment and vehicles. Table 4 shows fiscal 2021 balances compared to 2020. 

Table 4 - Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30 

Governmental Activities Buslness·T:i:ee Activities Total School District 

2020-2021 2019-2020 2020·2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 

Land $ 110,050 $ 110,050 $ 110,050 $ 110,050 

Infrastructure 13,834 13,834 

Sito and Site 

Improvements 1,038,075 1,197,383 1,038,075 1,197,383 

Building and Building 

Improvements 38,665,272 39,045,082 38,665,272 39,045,082 

Machinery and 

Equipment 1,728,498 640,550 $ 82,360 $ 971155 1 810,858 737,705 

Total Capital 

Assets • Net of 
Depreciations $ 41 ,541.895 $ 41,006,899 $ 821360 $ 97,155 $ 41 ,624,255 $ 41,104,054 

Refer to Notes to Financial Statements (Note 7) for more detailed information. 

Overall capital assets (net) increased from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021 . The increase in capital 
assets is primarily due to fixed asset additions in excess of annual depreciation. 

Debt Administration 

At the end of the fiscal year 2021 and 2020, the School District had outstanding debt as follows: 

Compensated Absences 
Serial Bonds 

Totals 

Table 5 - Debt Administration 

June 30, 
2021 

$ 749,1 88 
14,955,000 

$ 15,704,188 $ 

Refer to Notes to Financial Statements (Note 8) for more detailed information. 
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730,057 
15,725,000 

16,455,057 



For the Future 

Fiscal Year 2021 started out with another increase in state aid due to S~2 legislation. Unfortunelty the 
pandemic forced the district be virtual from September throught March with students coming back in 
person for the remainder of the school year. Along with this shift came different spending priorities along 
with the need to keep the Park Avenue Complex kitchen operating In order to continue distributing meals 
to students In a grab and go setup while they were remote. The district received additional funding from 
CARES of $872,644 which we where able to sustain an ESL positron, 0.5 FTE Literacy Coach, and 
technology equipment for remote instruction, and PPE supplies for the re-opening of schools. With 
ESSER II the district received $3,267,314 with a substantial amount of these funds going toward a 
proposed HVAC upgrade at Freehold Learning Center. Summer and wraparound programs to provide 
supplement instruction are also being planned for 2022, 2023, and 2024 utilizing these funds. 

Contacting the School District's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If 
you have questions about this report or need additional information, you may contact the School Business 
Administrator/Board Secretary at Freehold Borough Board of Education, 280 Park Avenue, Freehold, NJ 
07728. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Joseph Howe, Ed. D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Patrick J . Pisano 
School Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Exhibit A-1 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
aOB,QUGH OE EBEEHOLD SCHOQL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Governmental Business-Type 
8s;!illili~~ 8s;lillili!ii!§ Total 

&SSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,694,861.41 $ 34,258.52 $ 3,729,119.93 
Receivables - Net 1, 131,721.33 52,976.37 1,1 64,697.70 
Inventory 18,928.77 18,928.77 
Restricted: 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4,394,097.78 4,394,097.78 

Capital Assets: 
Non-Depreciable 110,050.00 110,050.00 
Depreciable 41 1431,845.00 82,359.68 41,514,204.68 

Total Assets $ 50, 762,575.52 $ 188,523.34 $ 50,951,098.86 

REFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Unamortized Loss on Defeasance of Debt $ 12,086.56 $ 12,086.56 
Pension 11181 1091.00 1, 181,091.00 

$ 1,193177.56 ' $ 1,193,177.56 

L18BILITIES 

Accounts Payable $ 719,498.52 $ 719.498.52 
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable 21,443.80 21 ,443.80 
Payroll Deductions and Paytoll Withholdings 138,032.99 138,032.99 
Unearned Revenue 120,917.94 120,917.94 
Accrued Interest on Bonds 159,937.50 159,937.50 
Net Pension Liability 5,630, 183. 00 5,630, 183. 00 
Noncurrent Llabllllles: 

Due Within One Year 902,378.19 902,378.19 
Due Beyond One Year 14,801,809.73 14,801,809. 73 

Total Liabilities $ 22,494,201.67 $ 22,494,201.67 

DEFERRED INFLOW OE B§§Q!.!BQ~§ 

Pension $ 2,610,401.00 $ 2,610,401 .00 

NET POSITION 

Invested in Capital Assets $ 26,598,981.56 $ 82,359.68 $ 26,681 ,341.24 
Restricted 4,394,097.78 4,394,097.78 
Unrestricted (Deficit) ~4.141,928. 93) 106,163.66 (4,035,765.27) 

Total Net Position $ 26,851.150.41 $ 188,523.34 $ 27 ,039,673.75 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



l\l 
Ul 

Functions/Programs 

Giwemmen1al ActMties:: 
Instruction: 

Regular 
Special Education 
Other Special Instruction 
Other lnstruciion 

Support Services: 
Tuilion 
Student and Instruction Related Services 
School Administrative SeMc:es 
Other Administrative Services 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportalion 
Interest on noncurrent debt 

Total Govemmenlal Adivities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Seivioe 

Tolal Primaiy Giwernment 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREErlOLO SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY Of MONMOITTH 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Expenses 

s 11,063,663.25 
10.566,374 .. 21 

1,566, 758. 73 
142,931.05 

1,086,564.&4 
5,671,541 .56 
1,476,642.22 
2.316,663.91 
3,607,179.16 
1,745,963.22 

449.505.33 

$ 39.954.047.26 

s 849.551 .26 

$ 40,8-03.596.56 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Program Revenues 
Charges for Operalmg Grants 

Services and Qm1ributions 

s 3, 144,. 157 .65 

927,&84.97 

191,371 .09 

s 4.26-3,213.91 

$ 6,634.11 s 612,940.00 

s 6,634.11 s 4,676.153.91 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

General Purposes 
Debt Service 

Federal and S1ate Aid not Reslric1.ed 
Misc.ellaneous 

Exoess/{Oelici() 

Special and Extraordinary RevenueJ(Expense) 

Change in Net Position 

Nel Position BegiMing 

Prior Period Adjustment (Note 24) 

Net Position - Beginning Reslaled 

Net Posilion Ending 

See accompafl)ling notes to flnanc·ial statements. 

Net (Expense) Revef'lue and Change in Net Position 
Giwemmen1al Business-Type 

Ac!Mties A.diviUes Tolal 

$ (1 1,063.,683.25) 
(7 ,442.216.36} 
(1,586, 7 58.73) 

(1-<2.931.05) 

{1 ,066,564.64} 
(4,943,856.59} 
(1,476,842.22) 
(2,3 16,683.91) 
(3,607,179.16) 
{1,745,963.22} 

(258, 134.24} 

s (35.690.833.37) 

s 

s (35,690,833.37) s 

s 10, 138,841.00 
636,331 .00 

26,()30,018.55 
138,981.80 

36.944, 172.35 

1,2.53, 338.98 s 

589,596.01 

s 1,842,934.99 s 

24,644,506.68 

363.608.74 

25,006.215.42 

s 26,851 , 150.41 s 

$ (1 1,083.683.25) 
{7,442.,216.36) 
(1,566, 7 56. 73) 

{142.,931.05) 

{1,066,564.64) 
(4.943,656.59) 
(1,476,842.22) 
(2.316,683.91) 
(3,607.179.16) 
{1,745,983.22) 

{258,134.24} 

s {35,690,833.37} 

(229,977.17) s (229.9n.17) 

(229.977.17) s (35.920.810.54) 

s 10, 138,841 .00 
536,331 .00 

26.030,018.55 
~981.60 

36.944, 172.35 

(229,9n.17) 1.C>23, 36 1.81 

589,596.01 

(229,977. 17) s 1.612,957.82 

418.500.51 25,063, 107. t 9 

363.608.74 

416,5-00.51 25,426, 715. 93 

166,523.34 s 27,039.673.75 

Exhibil A-2 
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~ 

Cs•h end Ca•h Equi11al&nls 
lnl argovommonl~l Accounts Receivable 
lnlorfund Recolvablo - Cgpil~I Projeel$ 
Other Accounts Receivable 
Re•lricled Cash and CBBh Equ!valents 
Duo from/lo NJ ·UCC 

Total AHol• 

L!ABIL!TIE!! AND FUNQ l!ll~llf::l!Oli 

Llabl!llles: 
cash end Cash Equlvalentg - Overdrall 
Accounts Payable 
Payroll DvductionJ illld Withholdings Payable 
lnlertund Payable-Debi &ervlce 
lntergovernrnental Accounts Payable -

Stalo 
Uneemed Revenue 

Tola! Llabllilles 

Fund Balances: 
Rostrielcd; 
Capital Rv$orvo 
Maintenance Reserve 
Reserve ror Excess surplus 
Unomploymonl Compcn$~tion 
Seholershlps 
Student AclMlles 
Capilal Project• 
Debi Service 
Excess Surplus - Deslgneled tor 

Sub;oquenl Year's Expenditures 
Special Revenue (Dvfi~I) 
Assigned Unreserved - Designated for 

Subsequent Yeat's ExpendllUfes 
As&loned for Olhllf Purpose; 

Tolal Fund Belences 

Total Llablllties and fund Balance 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OE FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTBIQ! 

COUNTY OF MONMQUIH 
BALANCE SHEET 

QOVEBNM~f::IIflbEUHDS 
FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDfD JUNE 30 202.1 

Spccial cspi1a1 
General Revenue Projects 
-.E!!n!L ~ ...fWlL 

$ 2,289,299.98 $ 4,372,543.31 
478,357.00 $ 626,555.61 2,802,552.00 

7,732.32 
1,612,034.83 

19076.40 

$ 4,406.500.53 626.555.61 $ 7.175.095 31 

$ 312,360,92 
s 33,887.83 261 ,787.69 

138,032.99 
s 36.11 

21,443.80 
120,917.94 

$ 171.920.82 $ 710.510 35 $ 36.11 

$ 1,812,034.83 
455,459.00 
548,533.17 
385,102.89 

$ 21 ,010,78 
579.80 

$ 7, 175,059.20 

ee7,80S.18 
(111,545.321 

14,170.62 
331 474.02 

$ 4,234,579. 71 s ,69,954.74! s 7 175 059.20 

$ 4,408,500.63 s 626,555.61 s 7 115.095.31 

Total Fund Balance above 

$ 

s 

s 

s 

Amounts reported for governmantaf acrMtlos In !ho St~iornent of Net Posillon 
(A-1) aro different bec3u•o. 

C~pilal Projeet Grant Reeelveble are nol llnsncisl re&ource& If rolatod oxpondiluros 
did nol occur 

Capital assets used In governmental ecllvllles ere nol financial rosource; and 
thoroforo ~ro nol reported In the runds, The cost of capllal assels ls $54,498,740 
and !he accumulated deproci~tion is $13,491,841 (see Nole 7) 

Deferred loss on deleasenee or dab!, unamortized (&ee Note SC) 

Noncurront li~bilitiol, including bond•, loans end leases payable are nol 
peyable In !he current period and lh1roforo ill"V nQI roported as liabllilies in 
the funds (see Nole 6). 

Cor1aln li~billlios aro nol duo and payable In the current period, end 
lherefore, ere not repOl1eel in funds; 
Ai:ciued lnlere91 Payable 

Debt 
Service 
.f.uOl1. 

127,441.99 

:MS,, 1 

127,476.10 

127,478.10 

127 478 10 

127 478 10 

(Ao;crucd inlore!I is a current llablllly lhal will be paid from tho dobt service fund 
Theroforo, !ho li~bllily reduces the resltidod ror debt ael'\lice net poalllon balance). 

Acaucd Pension Liability 
(/\cCnJcd pen•ion is a cutrent llabl!lly !hat will be paid from !ho gonor~I fund, 
altrib\Jlod to !ho fis<:QI yo~r oncMg June 30, 2020. however Will be raised In 
the budget ror the flscel year ending Jun,, 30, 202.2. 

Nel pension !labllily Is not duo ond p~yoblc i!'I the cuttent period and lhererore I& not reported 
as a liability in lhe runds. (aee Note 9) 

Nol po;ition or governmental activllles (A-1) 

See eeeompanylng notes to financial statements 
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Tola I 
GovU1TUT1enl~I 

Eund• 

$ 6.789,265.26 
3,907,464.61 

36.11 
7,732.32 

1,612,034.03 
19,076.40 

$ 1213351629.S!l 

$ 312,360.92 
295,675.52 
138,032.99 

3G 11 

21.443.80 
120.917.94 

s 898467 26 

s 1,612,034.83 
455.459 00 
548,533.17 
385,102.69 
21,01076 

579.80 
7, 175,059.20 

127,478 10 

887,805.18 
(111 ,54532) 

14,170.62 
331,474.02 

$ 11 ,447,162.27 

$ 12.335.829. 55 

$ 11,447,162.27 

(2,802,552 00) 

41 ,541,695.00 

12,086,56 

(15,704.187.92) 

(159,937.50) 

(423,823.00) 

j7,059,~93.00! 

s 26,851,150.41 



Exhibit B-2 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOb D!STBl!;!I 

~Q!.!tU! QF MQ~MQYII:! 
§IATEMENI QF REVEN!,!ES1 EXPENDITURES1 AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Special Capital Debt Total 

General Revenue Projects Service Government 

--1:!!.mL __E!!ruL __E!!ruL ...h!L!!L Eli!!!!illi 
Revenues 

Local sources: 
Local tax levy $ 10,138,841 .00 $ 636,331.00 $ 10,775 ,172.00 
interest Income $ 965.41 965.41 
Miscellaneous - Restricted 51 ,390.62 51,390.62 
Miscellaneous • UnRestricted 95,639.25 $ 35,414.35 1311053.60 

Total • Local Sources $ 10,285,870.87 35.414.35 965.41 636,331.00 10,958,581 .63 

State Sources 21,275,599.02 1, 142,026.01 518,066.00 22,935,691 .03 
Federal Sources 174,540.39 31090,818.21 3.265,358.60 

Total Revenues $ 31.736.010.28 $ 4.268.256.57 $ 955.41 s 1,154,397.00 $ 37I159,631 ,26 

Expenditures 

Current: 
Regular Instruction $ 6,494 ,5<?6 .40 $ 6.494,526.40 
Other Special Instruction 929,767.32 929 ,767.32 
Special Education Instruction 3,526,810.24 2,676,316.03 6 ,203, 126.27 
Other Instruction 83,750.99 83,750.99 

Support services and other undistrfbuted costs: 
Tuition 1,086,564.64 1,086.564.64 

Student and Instruction and Related Services 2,651,017.96 789,434.17 3.440,452.13 
School Administrative Services 865.361.32 866,361 .32 
Other Administrative services 1,357,469. 76 1,357 ,469. 76 
Plant operations and maintenance 2, 113,640.36 2.113,640.36 
Pupil Transportation 1,023,065.52 1,023,065.52 
Unallocated Benefits 9,965,032.92 605,844.83 10,570,877. 75 
Principal $ 770,000.00 770,000.00 
Interest 451,050.00 451 ,050.00 

Capital Outlay 1,090,671.99 316,514.75 $ 39,030.50 1446,117.24 

Total Expenditures $ 31 ,1871579.42 $ 413881109.7/J $ 39,030.50 $ 1,221 ,050.00 $ 36,835,769.70 

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over/(Under) Expenditures $ 548,430.86 (119,851 .21) $ (38,065.09) s ,661653.00l $ 323.661 .56 

Other Financing Sources/(Uses): 
Capital Projects Fund $ (965.41) s 965.41 

Total Other Financing Sources/( Use&) $ (965.41l s 965.41 

Net Change In Fund Balances 548,430.86 (119,IJ51.21) (39,030.50) (65,687.59) 323,861 .56 

Fund Balance/(Deficlt) beginning $ 3,352,436.58 $ 7,214,089.70 $ 193,166.69 $ 10,759,691 .97 

Prfor Period Adjustments 333.712.27 29,896.47 363.608.74 

Fund Balance July 1, Restated 3,686, 148.85 291896.47 71214.089. 70 193, 165.69 11 , 123,300.71 

Fund Balance/(Deflclt) ending $ 4,234,579.71 $ !69.954.74) $ 7,175,059.20 $ 127,47/J .10 $ 11.447,162.27 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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BOABO OF EPUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
RECONCILIATION OFSIATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
ANO CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT Of ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances • Governmental Funds 

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities In the 
Statement of Activities (A·2) are different because: 

Capital outlays and related costs are reported in governmental funds 
as expenditures. However, In the statement of activities, the cost 
of those assets Is allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
depreciated expense or amortized expense. This Js the amount by 
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period. 
Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 
Grant Proceeds 
Contributed capital assets 

$ 1,446, 117.24 

Repayment or bond principal is an expenditure in the 
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces noncurrent 
liabilities In the statement of net position and is not 
reported In the statement of activities. 

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums and similar Items 
when the debt is first issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statement of activities. This represents the following 
related to the premiums on bonds. 
Amortization of premium 

Governmental funds report the effect of defeasances and similar Items 
when the debt is first issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and 
amortized Jn the statement of activities. This represents the following 
related to the deferred loss of refunding. 
Amortization of deferred loss 

In the statement of activities, interest on noncurrent debt In the 
statement of activities is accrued, regardless of when due. 
In the governmental funds, Interest Is reported when due. 
The change In accrued interest is an item in the reconcfllatlon. 

Net pension obligation related to PERS which is attributable to June 30, 2020 
reported Jn governmental funds; however, it is reported In the statement 
of activities. 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g. compensated 
absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. 
In the governmental funds. however, expenditures for these items are reported 
in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount 
exceeds the paid amount, the difference Is reduction In the reconciliation; 
when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount, the difference Is an 
addition to the reconciliation. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (A-2) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

(1,432,930.00) 
72,669.25 

516,926.76 

Exhibit B·3 

$ 323,861 .56 

602,783.25 

770,000.00 

7,409.27 

(12,086.56) 

13,631 .25 

156,467.00 

(19, 130. 76) 

$ 1 ,842,934.99 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
PROPRIETARY EUND 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR gNDED JUNE 30, 2021 

ExhJblt .B-!1-

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund 

Current assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Receivable: 

Federal 
Inventory 

I otal Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 

ASSETS 

Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Invested in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

NET POSITION 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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$ 

Food Service 
Total Enterprise 

34,258.52 

52,976.37 
18,928.77 

$ ___ 1_06_,,_16_3_.6_6_ 

$ 205,154,93 
122,795.25 

$ ___ 8:;.:2:..:..;,3;..;;5.;...:9.;,;:;.68~ 

$ = =,;,,18;;,,;8;,;,,;,5;,,.2,;,,3.=34= 

$ 82,359.68 
106,163.66 

$ =="'=18=8==,5""'2~3.~34""" 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES 
AND CHANGE IN FUND NET POSITION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Exhibit B-5 

Business Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund 

----------------- - -
Operating Revenues: 

Local Sources: 
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Cost of Sales - Reimbursable 
Cost of Sales - Non-Reimbursable 
Salaries 
Employee Benefit 
General Supplies 
Insurance 
Uniforms 
Management Fee 
Purchased Services 

Purchased Technical services 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating lncome/(Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues: 
Federal Sources: 

National School Lunch Program 
School Breakfast Program 
Summer Program 
After School Snack Program 
Food Distribution Program 
Federal Administrative Fee 

Total Nonoperatlng Revenues 

lncome/(Loss) before Contributions and Transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Total Net Position - Beginning 

Total Net Position - Ending 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Food Service 
Total Enterorjse 

$ _ _ __;;,6.:..;;,6..;.34..;.;'...;..11.;,,,. 

$ ___ 6.:,_,6_34_._11_ 

$ 195,470.68 
2,674.90 

368,942.16 
121,741.05 
53,793.73 
4,702.78 
1,722.40 

48,774.00 
4,049.15 

32,885.58 
14,794.85 

$ _ __:;8:....:4-=-9 •c::.5-=-51:...:..2=-=8=-

$ (842,917.17) 

$ 325,042.47 
181,201 .10 
53,786.60 

1,366.08 
48,480.75 
3,063.00 

$ __ e;..._1_2.:,_, 9_40.::..:·-=-oo=-­

$ (229,977.17) 

$ (229,977 .17) 

418,500.51 

$ ==1=8=8==,5=23='=34= 



BMRD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OE MONMOUTH 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Cash flows from Operating Activities 
Receipts from Customers 
Payments to Employees 
Payments for Employee Benefits 
Payments to Suppliers 
Payments for Management Fee 

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Actjvitjes 
State Sources 
Federal Sources 

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Noncapllal Financing Activities 

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Balances • Beginning of Year 

Balances· End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating lncome/(Loss) to Net Cash 
Provjded/(Used) by Operating Activities 
Operating Gain/(Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Cash Provided/ 
(Used) by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 
Change in Assets and Liabi lities: 

Decrease In Inventory 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Exhjbjt 8-6 

Business Type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Food Service 
T olal Enterprise 

$ 6,634.11 
(368,942.16) 
(121,741.05) 
(303,21 5.24) 

(48,774.00) 

$ (836,038.34) 

$ 2,989.56 
650,093.13 

$ 653,082.69 

$ (182,955.65) 

201 ,382.10 

$ ==1'-'8.._.4_.26;::·::::::45= 

$ (842,917.17) 

$ 14,794.85 

(7,916.02) 

$ __ ....:;6..:..;:,8...;_78.:....; . ..::..;83:..... 

$ (836,038.34) 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY 

The Borough of Freehold School District (the "District") ls a Type II district located in the County of 
Monmouth, State of New Jersey. As a Type II district. the District functions independently through a 
Board of Education (the "Board"). The Board ls comprised of nine (9) members elected to three-year 
staggered terms. The purpose of the District ls to educate students in grades K-8. The District had 
an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2021 of 1,657 students. 

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations 
that are included to insure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary 
government consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate 
from the District. For the District, this Includes general operations, food service and student related 
activities of the District. 

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth In Section 
2100 of the GASS Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is 
whether: 

• the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name) 
• the District holds the corporate powers of the organization 
• the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 
• the District is able to impose its will on the organization 
• the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District 
• there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASS) Is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. The District also applies Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASS) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to 
its governmental activities provided they do not conflict with or contrad ict GASS pronouncements. 
The most significant of the District's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The District's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a 
statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements that provide 
a more detailed level of financial information. 

1. Government-Wide financial Statements 

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the 
District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary 
government, except for fiduciary funds. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued) 

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of 
the District at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct 
expenses and program revenues for each program or fUnctlon of the District's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program 
or department and therefore clearly Identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues 
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as 
general revenues of the District, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct 
expenses with program revenues Identifies the extent to which each governmental function is 
self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

During the year, the District segregates transactions related to certain District functions or 
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal 
compliance. 

Fund financial statements are designed to present financial Information of the District at this 
more detailed level. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds. 
Each major fund is presented in a separate column. 

B. Fund Accounting 

The District uses funds to maintain Its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined 
as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 

1. Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed . Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current 
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds 
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are 
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund 
assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the District's major 
governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used 
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or 
noninstructional equipment that are classified in the Capital Outlay subfund. The fund 
also includes payroll agency, payroll net and unemployment reserve accounts. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

1. Governmental Funds (Continued) 

General Fund (Continued) 

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes 
budgeted Capital Outlay in this fund . Generally accepted accounting principles as they 
pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be used to 
directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in 
such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. 

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New 
Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that 
result in the acquisition of or additions to capital assets for land, existing buildings, 
improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of 
buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred 
from and to Current Expense by board resolution. 

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Find is used to account for the proceeds 
of specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major capital 
projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The fund also includes scholarship 
accounts and student activities accounts. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial 
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other 
than those financed by Proprietary Funds) . The financial resources are derived from 
temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a 
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election. 

Debt Service Eu.nd - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds Issued to finance major 
property acquisition, construction and improvement programs. This fund is not applicable 
in this fiscal year. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

2. Proprietary Fund Type 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, financial 
position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those 
similar to businesses In the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary 
fund of the District: 

Enterprise Fund - The Enterprise Fund is utilized to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the 
Intent of the District is that the costs (i.e. expenses Including depreciation and Ind irect 
costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District has decided that periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income Is appropriate 
for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountablllty or other 
purposes. 

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" 
measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or 
noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on their statement of net position. 
Their reported fund equity (net position) is segregated into net investment in capital 
assets and unrestricted net position, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating 
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position. 

Depreciation of all exhaustive capital assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an 
expense against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary 
fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives 
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of the equipment used in the 
operations of the Enterprise Funds are approximately 1 O years. 

3. Noncurrent Debt 

Noncurrent liabilities expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in 
the General Noncurrent Debt, not in the governmental funds. This includes the outstanding 
principal balance on capital leases. 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Measurement Focus 

1, Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government~wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are 
included on the Statement of Net Position. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities 
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) 
and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This 
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government­
wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore 
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the 
government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these 
funds are included on the statement of net position. Fund equity (i.e., net position) is 
segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type 
operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net 
position. 

D. Basis of Accounting 

The modified accrual basis of accounting Is used tor measuring financial position and operating 
results of all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recogn ized when they become both 
measurable and available. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined 
and ''available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used 
to pay liabilities of the current period. State equalization monies are recognized as revenue 
during the period in which they are appropriated. A one-year availability period Is used for 
revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are recognized in 
the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on 
general noncurrent debt which are recorded when due. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Basis of AccountiJJg (Continued) 

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual and under New Jersey State Statute a 
municipality is required to remit to Its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount 
voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire 
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both 
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the established 
payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable". 

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of 
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are 
recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized when 
they are incurred. 

E. Budgets/Budgetarv Control 

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the winter of each year for the general, special 
revenue and debt service funds. The budgets are approved by the District, submitted to the 
County office for review approval and if determined to be within the allowable tax levy cap and 
within the allowable appropriation cap, become effective upon the holding of a public hearing and 
final adoption by the District. In accordance with P.L. 2011 , c202, which became effective 17, 
2012, the District elected to move the annual School Board election to the date of the November 
general election thereby eliminating the vote on the annual base budget. Budgets are prepared 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described 
later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. 
Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established 
pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1 . Transfers of 
appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year subject 
to the limitation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-2.3 (et seq.). All budget amendments must be approved by 
School Board resolution and certain others require approved by the County Superintendent of 
Schools. Budgetary transfers were made during the current year in accordance with statutory 
guidelines. The amendments made by the District were part of the normal course of operations. 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control 
device during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the 
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GMP) with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last 
state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below. 
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary Integration In the 
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting 
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant 
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are 
maintained to allow for the presentation of GMP basis financial reports. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued) 

The following presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenue and special revenue fund 
revenue from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General, Special 
Revenue and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented In the 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All 
Governmental Fund Types. 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenues" from the budgetary 

comparison schedules. 

Difference - budget to GMP: 
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that 

encumbranc-es are recognized as expenditures, and the 
related revenue is recognized. 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

State aid payments recognized for GAAP statements in the current 
year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 

State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes, not 
recognized for GAAP statements. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances • governmental funds. 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from the 

budgetary comparison schedule. 

Differences • budget to GMP: 
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not received 

are reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary 
purposes, but in the year supplies are received for financial 
reporting purposes. 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes In fund balances - governmental funds. 
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gi"neral Fund 
Special 

Revenue Fund 

$ 31 ,795,341.48 $ 4,379,244.53 

None 
None 

1,519,838.80 

(1 ,579, 170.00) 

None 
None 

68,443.24 

(179,528. 76) 

$ 31,736,010.28 $ 4.268,159.01 

$ 31,187,579.42 $ 4,388,109.78 

None 
None 

None 
None 

$ 31,187,579.42 $ 4,368,109.78 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

F. Encumbrances 

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open 
encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are reported as 
reservations of fund balances at fiscal yearend as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities 
but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services. 

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the District has received advances, 
are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end. 

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over Into the next fiscal year. An entry will be 
made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified 
budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end. 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash In banks and all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost 
plus accrued interest. Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid securities that are 
both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present 
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Generally, only 
securities with original maturities of three (3) months or less meet this definition. U.S. Treasury 
and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when 
purchased are stated at cost. All other Investments are stated at fair value. 

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial 
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible 
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts. 

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public 
funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit 
Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units 
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. 

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of 
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a 
public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories 
include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks 
the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having 
a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public 
funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral It 
has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount 
of their deposits to the Governmental Units. 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabitities and Equity (Continued) 

2. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses 

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, are recorded in the enterprise 
fund. All other expenses are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase. 

Inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the 
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses In the Enterprise Fund represent payments 
made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2021 . 

3. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered 
collectible. 

4. Tujtion Receivable 

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The 
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined. 

5. Tuition Payable 

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 were based on rates established 
by the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been 
determined. 

6. Current lnterfund Receivables/Payables 

Current interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for 
goods or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one 
year. 

7. Capital Assets 

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are 
reported In the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position 
but are not reported in the fund financial statements. 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions 
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as 
of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000.00. 
Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

7. Capital Assets (Continued) 

All reported capital assets except for land are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over 
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method under the half year convention over the following useful lives: 

Asset Class 

School Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Electrical/Plumbing 
Vehicles 
Office and Computer Equipment 
Instructional Equipment 
Grounds Equipment 
Food Service Equipment 

8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Estimated Lives 

50 years 
20 years 
30 years 

6-8 years 
5-10 years 
5-15 years 
5-15 years 
7-20 years 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future perlod(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to 
llabllltles, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

9. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation , 
sick leave and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to 
services already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the 
control of the District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the 
benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a 
specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are accounted for In the 
period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place. 

The entire sick leave and vacation leave liabilities are reported on the government-wide financial 
statements. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equitv (Continued) 

9. Compensated Absences (Continued) 

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences 
is in the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These amounts are 
recorded In the account ucompensated absences payable" in the fund from which the employees 
who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. · The noncurrent portion of the liability is not 
reported. 

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and 
liability of the fund that will pay for them. 

10. Accrued Liabilities and Noncurrent Obligations 

All payables, accrued liabilities and noncurrent obligations are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements. 

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that once incurred are paid in a timely manner and in 
full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the governmental funds. 
However, the noncurrent portion of capital leases, compensated absences and loans payable that 
will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements 
only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable, available financial 
resources_ Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount 

11 . Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt 

Deferred loss on refunding arising from the Issuance of the refunding bonds is recorded as a 
deferred outflow of resources. It is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the 
duration of the related debt as a component of interest expense. 

12. Net Position 

Net Position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, deferred inflows and 
liabilities in the government~wide financial statements. Net position Invested in capital assets, net 
of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balance of any noncurrent debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net 
position Is reported as restricted in the government·wide financial statements when there are 
limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions Imposed by creditors, grantors or 
laws or regulations of other governments. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 301 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Llabilities and Equity (Continued) 

13. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue in all funds represent program revenues that have been received but not yet 
earned. 

14. Fund Equity 

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from 
other funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for appropriation for 
expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent 
plans for future use of financial resources. 

15. Fund Balance 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions 
("GASB 54") established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily 
on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the 
resources reported in governmental funds. Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental 
funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and 
classified into the following five (5) categories, as defined below: 

a. Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not 
in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Assets 
Included In this fund balance category include prepaid assets, Inventories, noncurrent 
receivables and corpus of any permanent funds. 

b. Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated 
by constitution, external resource providers or through enabling legislation. 

c. Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed 
by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. The 
District's highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Education (the 
"Board") and formal action is taken by resolution of the Board at publicly held meetings. 
Once committed, amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the Board revised 
or changes the specified use by taking the same action (resolution) taken to originally 
commit these funds. 

d. Assigned - amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do 
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Interest Is expressed by 
either the Board or Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the 
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes, including the encumbering 
of funds. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

15. Fund Balance (Continued) 

e. Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications in 
the general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned 
to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific 
purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a 
position unassigned fund balance amount. In the other governmental funds, if 
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or 
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund 
balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to 
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the 
unrestricted fund balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and 
finally, unassigned funds. 

16. Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the School 
District enterprise fund, (the Food Service) are charges to customers for sales of food service. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expense and depreciation on Capital Assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

17. Non-Monetary Transactions 

Commodities received under the Federal Food Distribution Program are received by the district 
and are recorded as nonoperating revenue when received in the food service enterprise fund at 
market value. The use of the commodities is included in cost of sales. 

18. Allocation of Exoenses 

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses 
are those that are clearly identifiable with a function . Employee benefits, including the employer's 
share of social security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated 
based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically 
identified by function and is included in the direct expense column of the Statement of Activities. 
Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a specific function is reported separately on 
the Statement of Activities. No expenses were allocated as "Indirect Expenses". 
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YEAR ENDE.D JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity {Continued) 

19. On-Behalf Payments 

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New 
Jersey social security and post-retirement medical pension contributions for the certified teachers 
and other members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. The amounts are 
not required to be included in the District's annual budget 

20. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in 
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of management 
and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. 

21 . Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 

The District implemented GASB No. 68. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 27. It 
improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also 
improves information provided by state and local government employers about financial support 
for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive 
review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for 
pensions with regard to providing decision useful information, supporting assessments of 
accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This Statement 
replaces the requirement of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pension by State and Local 
Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, 
as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or 
equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 27 and 50 
remain applicable for pensions that are not covered by the scope of this Statement. 

The District has also implemented GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions 
made Subsequent to the Measurement Date·an amendment to GASB No. 68. The objective of 
this Statement is to address an Issue regarding application of the transition provisions of 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to 
amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or 
nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of 
the government's beginning net pension liability. 

Statement 68 requires a state or local government employer (or nonemployer contributing entity 
in a special funding situation) to recognize a net pension liability measured as of a date (the 
measurement date) no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year. If a state or local government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity makes a contribution to a defined benefit pension 
plan between the measurement date of the reported net pension liability and the end of the 
government's reporting period, Statement 68 requires that the government recognize its 
contribution as a deferred outflow of resources. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets. Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

21 . Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (Continued) 

In addition, Statement 68 requires recognition of deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources for changes in the net pension liability of a state or local government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity that arise from other types of events. 

22. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Other Post-Retirement Benefits ("OPES") 

In 2018 the District implemented GASS #75 which addresses accounting and financial reporting 
for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers. This 
Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources, revenues and expense/expenditures. The Statement 
GASS #45 supersedes Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits with 
other than Pension. 

The participating local education employer allocations included In the supplemental Schedule of 
special funding amounts by employer are provided as each local education employer is required 
to record in their financial statements, as an expense and corresponding revenue, their respective 
amount of total OPEB expense attributable to the State of New Jersey under the special funding 
situation and to include their respective amount of total OPEB liability in their notes to their 
financial statements. 

23. GASS Statement No. 84 Fiduciary Activities 

The District implemented GASS Statement No. 84 Fiduciary Activities on July 1, 2020. The 
objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary 
activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be 
reported . This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities. The focus of the 
criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity 
and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included 
to Identify component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary 
activities. The District reclassified the payroll agency, payroll net and unemployment reserve 
accounts to the General Fund. The Special Revenue Fund was adjusted to include student 
activities and scholarship accounts. There was no adverse impact on the financial statements of 
the District. 

24. Management Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

H. Other Accounting Standards 

The District is currently reviewing the following for applicability and potential impact on the 
financial statements: 

• GASS Statement No. 87. Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the 
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for 
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial 
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabil ities for leases that previously 
were classified as operating leases and recognized as Inflows of resources or outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning 
after June 15, 2021 . The District does not expect this Statement to impact its financial 
statements. 

• GASS Statement No. 88. Certain Disclosure Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings 
and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement Is to improve the information that 
is disclosed In notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct 
borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include 
when disclosing information related to debt. 

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes 
to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; 
and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance related 
consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant 
subjective acceleration clauses. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning 
after June 15, 2019. The District does not expect this Statement to Impact its financial 
statements. 

• GASS Statement No. 89. Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and 
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period 
and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2020. Earlier application is encourage. The requirements of this Statement 
should be applied prospectively. The District does not expect this Statement to Impact its 
financial statements. 

- 47 -



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

H. Other Accounting Standards (Continued) 

• GASS Statement No. 90. Majority Equity Interests - an Amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to Improve the consistency 
and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate 
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain 
component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest 
in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment If a government's holding 
of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets 
the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a 
special purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an 
endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those 
governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied 
retroactively, except for the provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity Interest in a 
component unit and (2) reporting a component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent 
equity interest. Those provisions should be applied on a prospective basis. The District does not 
expect this Statement to Impact Its financial statements. 

• GASB Statement No. 91. Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of this 
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity In practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) 
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beg inning 
after December 15, 2021. The District does not expect this Statement to impact Its financial 
statements. 

• GASB Statement 92. Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance 
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative 
literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASS Statements. 
Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective as follows: 

{a) The requirements related to the effective date of Statement 87 and Implementation Guide 
2019-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are 
effective upon Issuance. 

{b) The requirements related to intra-entity transfers of assets and those related to the 
applicability of Statements 73 and 7 4 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 . 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

H. Other Accounting Standards (Continued) 

GASB Statement 92. (Continued) 

(c) The requirements related to application of Statement 84 to postemployment benefit 
arrangements and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities 
are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021 . 

(d) The requirements related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) associated 
with AROs in a government acquisition are effective for government acquisitions occurring in 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020. Implementation has been postponed to June 
15, 2021 . The District does not expect this Statement to impact its financial statement. 

• GASB Statement 93. Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The objective of this 
Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that result 
from the replacement of an IBOR. Some governments have entered into agreements in which 
variable payments made or received depend on an interbank offered rate (IBOR) - most notably, 
the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). 

Effective Date: The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for 
reporting periods ending after December 31, 2021 . All other requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021 . Earlier application is encouraged. 
The District does not expect this Statement to impact its financial statement. 

• GASB Statement 94. Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by 
addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2022 and all PPPs should be recognized and measured using the facts and 
circumstances that exist at the beginning of the period of implementation (or if applicable to 
earlier periods, the beginning of the earliest period restated). Implementation has been 
postponed to June 15, 2021 . The District does not expect th is Statement to impact its financial 
statement. 

• GASB Statement 95. Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. 
The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and other 
stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing 
the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first 
became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2019 
and later. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective immediately. The District does 
not expect th is Statement to impact its financial statement. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

H. Other Accounting Standards (Continued) 

• GASB Statement 96. Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This 
Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 
information technology arrangements (SBIT As) for government end users (governments). This 
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription 
asset - an Intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the 
capitalization criteria tor outlays other than subscription payments. including Implementation costs 
of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the 
standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established In Statement No. 87, Leases, as 
amended. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. Assets 
and liabilities resulting from SBITAs should be recognized and measured using the facts and 
circumstances that existed at the beginning of the fiscal year in which this Statement is 
Implemented. Governments are permitted, but are not required, to include in the measurement of 
the subscription asset capitalizable outlays associated with the initial implementation stage and 
the operation and additional implementation stage incurred prior to the implementation of this 
Statement. 

• GASB Statement 97. Certain Component Unit Criteria and Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement 
No. 32. The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and 
comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units In circumstances in which a 
potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government performs 
the duties that a governing board typically would performs; (2) mitigate costs associated with the 
reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other 
postemployment benefit (OPES) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or 
OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund 
financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the 
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred 
compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for 
benefits provided through those plans. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial 
reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 . For 
purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential 
component unit, the requirements of this Statement that provide that for all other arrangements, 
the absence of a governing board be treated the same as the appointment of voting majority of a 
governing board if the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically 
would perform, are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021 . Earlier 
application of those requirements is encouraged and permitted by requirement as specified within 
this Statement. The Board considered the effective dates for the requirements of this Statement 
in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and in concert with Statement No. 95, Postponement of the 
Effective Dates of Cert.ain Authoritative Guidance. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

I. Subseauent Events 

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions from June 30, 2021 
through February 25, 2022, the date that the financial statements are issued for possible 
disclosure and recognition in the financial statements, and items that have come to the attention 
of the District have been disclosed. 

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits. and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are defined as short­
term, highly liquid securities that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash; usually only 
securities with original maturities of three (3) months or less meet this definition. 

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market. The District classifies certificates of 
deposit that have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from 
the date of purchase, as investments. 

Deposits 

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located In 
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of 
the United States that insures deposits made In public depositories. School districts are also 
permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund. 

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that 
exceed depository insurance llrnlts as follows: 

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of 
collected public funds on deposit. 

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital 
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to 
100% of the amount exceeding 75%. 

All collateral rnust be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve 
Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York or a banking institution that is a 
member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

D~gosits (Continued) 

As of June 30, 2021, cash and cash equivalents (Deposits) of the District consisted of the following: 

Checking Accounts (Operating) 
Investor Account - Cash 

Reconciliation: 
Governmental Funds 
Enterprise Funds 

Allocation of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Unrestricted 
Restricted: 
Capital Projects 

Casb and Cash Egulvalents 

$ 3,871,932.53 
4,251,135.18 

$ 8,123,067.71 

$ 8,088,959.19 
34, 108.52 

$ 8, 123,067. 71 

$ 3,750,524.40 

4,372,543.31 

$ 8, 123,067 .71 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Risk Analysis - All of the balances were covered by either federal depository insurance or 
Government Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA") as of June 30, 2021 and are considered to have 
minimal custodial risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk - The Investor Account is collateralized by U.S. government securities (both 
U.S. Treasury and Federal Agency) and other permitted money market instruments and not exposed 
to custodial credit risk. The checking accounts were on deposit in a bank which had the Government 
Unit Deposit Protection Act coverage ("GUDPA") as of June 30, 2021 which minimizes credit risk. 

Investments 

New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities: 

• Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by 
the United States of America. This includes instruments such as Treasury bills, notes 
and bonds. 

• Government money market mutual funds. 

• Any federal agency or instrumentality obligation authorized by Congress that matures 
within 397 days from the date of purchase, and has a fixed rate of interest not dependent 
on any index or external factors. 

• Bonds or other obligations of the school district or local unit of which the school district is 
a part. 

• Any other obligations with maturities not exceeding 397 days, as permitted by the 
Division of Investments, New Jersey State Department of Treasury. 

• Local government investment pools. 

• New Jersey State Cash Management Fund. 

• Repurchase agreements of fully collateralized securities. subject to special conditions. 

Custodial Credit Risk - The District had no securities as of June 30, 2021 that could be 
categorized as an Investment as defined by GASB No. 3 as amended by GASB No. 40. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

4. RESERVE ACCOUNTS 

A CAPITAL RESERVE 

A capital reserve account was established by the Board by resolution on October 17, 2000 by 
inclusion of $1.00 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures In subsequent 
fiscal years and was supplemented from time to time. The capital reserve account Is maintained in 
the general fund and its activity Is included in the general fund annual budget. 

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects In the district's approved 
Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may 
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget 
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year end. A district may also appropriate 
additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate 
proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized 
pursuant to N.J. S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to NJ.A. C. 6:23A-5. 1 (d) 7, the balance in the account cannot 
at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP. 

Analysis of Capital Reserve Activity since Inception: 

Capital Reserve Account Establishe Octobe 17, 2000 

Contributions from Board 
Prior to June 30, 2020 
During year ended June 30, 2021 

Less Withdrawals: 
Prior to June 30, 2020 
During year ended June 30, 2021 

Balance June 30, 2021 
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$ 4,973,027.43 
1 ,000,000.00 

$ 3,966,398. 15 
394,605.45 

$ 1.00 

$ 5,973,027.43 

$ 4,361 ,003.60 

$ 1,612,024.83 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

4. RESERVE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) 

B. MAINTENANCE RESERVE 

The Sohool District establlshed a maintenance reserve account for the accumulation of funds for 
use as required maintenance of a facility in subsequent fiscal years. 

Funds placed in the maintenance reserve account are restricted to maintenance projects in the 
School District's approved Maintenance Plan (M-1). A School District may Increase the balance 
in the maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget 
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at yearend of any unanticipated revenue or 
unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. The balance in the account cannot at any 
time exceed four (4) percent of the replacement cost of the school district's school facilities for the 
current year. 

Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 324,305.82 
Contributions from Board 

During year ended June 30, 2021 200,000.00 

Less Withdrawals -
During year ended June 30, 2021 68,846.82 

Balance June 30, 2021 [Budgetary Basis] $ 455,459.00 

Fund Balance June 30, 2021 [GAAP Basis] $ 455,459.00 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

5. INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2021 consisted of Federal Sources, State 
Sources, State Aid , and transportation. All receivables are considered collectible in full . A summary 
of the principal items of intergovernmental accounts receivable follows: 

General Fund: 
State Aid: 

Extraordinary Aid 
TPAF FICA Reimbursement 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Federal Aid: 

Title I Part A 
Title I Part A Reallocation 
Title II Part A 
Title Ill Part A 
Title IV Part A 
IDEA Part B 
21st Century Grant 
Pandemic Relief Fund 
ESSER II 
CARES ESSER I 

Due from MOESC-Nonpublic 

Capital Projects Fund: 
NJEDA Grant 

Capital Project Fund Accounts Receivable: 
Reconciliation of Capital Project Fund from B-1 to A-1: 

Balance per Statement 8-2 
Less: Adjustment for Expenditures Not Incurred 

Accounts Receivable in District·Wide Financial Statements 

Proprietary Fund: 
Federal Sources: 

Breakfast 
Lunch 
Administrative 
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Government Fund 
Financial Statements 

$ 474,877.00 
3,480.00 

$ .. 478,357.00 

$ 338,808.87 
9,164.80 

11,981 .45 
40,218.71 
86,438.00 
23,287.73 
20,837.46 
12,000.00 
26,516.83 
84,594.19 

653,848.04 
21,443.80 

$ 675,291.84 

$ 2,802,552.00 

$ 3,956,200.84 

$ 2,802;552.00 
2,802,552.00 

None 

$ 

$ 

Business Type 
Activities 

18,441 .66 
31,471.71 

3,063.00 
52,976.37 



6. INVENTORY 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

The value of federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A of $48,481 (required by the 
Single Audit Law of 1984) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the 
date of the purchase and has been Included as an item of nonoperating revenue in the financial 
statements. For the year ended June 30, 2021 , the federal donated commodities food inventory of 
$6,852 was included in the year end food and supplies amount of $18,928. 

7. CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 

The following schedule Is a summarization of the changes in capital assets by source for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2021 : 

Beginning (Transfer) Ending 

ail 1aa~~ Additions Reti[emea~ Balance 
!igii~rnm~nlii!I Ai<!lvitles: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 110,050.00 $ 110,050.00 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 110,050.00 110,050.00 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 16,275.00 $ (16,275.00) 
Site Improvements 1,982,552.00 (111 ,626.00) 1,870,926.00 
Building and building improvements 49,530,248.00 $ 883,445.00 50,413,693.00 
Machinery and equipment 2.859,615.00 1,209,941.00 4.069,556.00 

Totals at historical cost 54,388,690.00 2,093,386.00 (127 ,901.00) 56,354.175.00 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Infrastructure (2,441 .00) 2,441.00 
Site Improvements (785, 169.00) (47,682.00) (832,851.00) 
Building and building improvements (10,485,166.00) (1,263,255.00) (11,748,421 .00) 
Machinery and equipment ~2.219,065.00) (121 ,993.00) (2,341,058.00) 

Total accumulated depreciation (13,491,841 .001 !1.432,930.00) 2,441.00 (14,922,330.00l 

Total capital assets being depreciated 
net of accumulated depreciation $ 40,896,849.00 $ 660.456.00 $ 125,460.00 $ 41,431,845.00 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 41 ,006,899.00 $ 660,456.00 $ 125,460.00 $ 41,541 ,895.00 

Allocation of Additions: 
General Fund $ 1,090,571 .99 
Special Revenue Fund 316,514.75 
Capital Project Fund 39,030.50 
Other contribution 647,268.76 

$ 2,093,386.00 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

7. CAPITAL ASSETS, NET (CONTINUED) 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Additions Retirements ~ 

BusJnes:i-Iir:12~ 8sc11v111e~i: 

Furniture, machinery and equipment $ 205,154.93 $ 205,154.93 

Totals at historical cost 205,154.93 205,154.93 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Furniture, machinery and equipment (108,000.40) $ (14,794.85) $ ( 122. 795.25) 

Total accumulated depreciation $ (108,000.40) $ (14,794.85) $ (122. 795.25) 

Business type activities capital 
assets, net $ 97,154.53 $ (14,794.85) $ $ 82,359.68 

Depreciation expense was charged to Governmental Activities functions as follows: 

Regular Instruction 
Special Education Instruction 
Other Special Instruction 
Other Instruction 
Support Services and Undistributed Cost: 

Student and Instruction Related Services 
School Administrative Services 
General and Business Administrative Services 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Pupll Transportation 
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$ 413,403.93 
394,855.07 
59,183.60 

5,331 .10 

218,999.25 
55,083.89 
86,408.64 

134,542.10 
65 122.42 

$ 1,432,930.00 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 the following changes occurred in liabilities: 

Amounts 

Beginning Ending Due Wittlin 

Balance Additions Reuroments Balance One Year 

G2v1,m1men!al Aclivitjg§; 

Bonds Payable • 

General 

Obligation Debt $ 15,725,000.00 $ (770,000.00) $ 14,955,000.00 $ 790,000.00 

Add - Premium on 

Sala or Bonds 7,409.27 (7,409.27) 

16,732,409.27 (777 ,409 27) 14,955,000.00 790,000.00 

Compens11ted 

Absences P11yable $ 730,057.16 $ 19,130,76 $ 749.187.92 $ 112,378.19 

$ 730,057.16 $ 19 130.76 s 749.167.92 s 112.376.19 

$ 16.462,466.43 $ 19130.76 s (777,409.27! $ 15.704,187.92 $ 902,378,19 
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Noncurrent 

Portion 

$ 14,165,000.00 

14,165,000.00 

$ 636,809.73 

s 636,809.73 

s 14.801 ,809.73 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

A. Bonds Payable Currently Outstanding 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipal ity through 
referendums or in the case of refunding In accordance with Local Finance Board requirements. 
All bonds are retired in serial Installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued 
by the District are general obligation bonds. As of June 30, 2021, the District had the following 
serial bonds outstanding. 

General Serial Bonds: 

$15,605,000 School Bonds Series 2017 -
The District issued bonds dated July 19, 2017 in the amount 
of $15,605,000. The purpose of the bonds is to finance the 
portion of the Board's local share of the costs of rehabilitation 
of the Freehold Leaming Center, the Park Avenue 
Elementary School and Freehold Intermediate School (the 
"Renovation Project"). The bonds are payable commencing 
August 15, 2019 through August 15, 2037 ranging in 
maturities from $510,000 to $900,000 at interest rates 
ranging from 2.50% to 3.00%. 

$2,485,000.00 School District Refunding Bonds Series 2011 -
These bonds were issued to refinance $2,339,000.00 of 
General Obligation Bonds Series 2001 . Annual remaining 
maturity of $280,000.00 on August 15, 2021 with an interest 
rate of 5.00%. The bonds are not subject redemption 

$ 14,675,000.00 * 

prior to maturity. 570,000.00 

$ 15,245,000.00 

* Redemption: The bonds maturing prior to August 15, 2026 are not subject to redemption 
prior to maturity. The bonds maturing on or after August 15, 2026 shall be subject to 
redemption at the option of the Board in whole or in part, on any date on or after 
August 15, 2025 at a price of 100% of the bonds to be redeemed, plus unpaid accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption. 

Bonds Pledge 

The Bonds are general obligations of the Board and are secured by a pledge of the full faith and 
credit of the Board for the payment of the principal thereof and the interest thereon and, unless 
paid from other sources; the Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable 
real property in the school district, without limltatlon as to rate or amount. The Bonds are 
additionally secured by the provisions of the New Jersey School Bond Reserve Act. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

A. Bonds Payable Currently Outstanding (continued) 

Continuing Secondary Market Disclosure 

The District, In conjunction with the issuance of the Bonds, has agreed to undertake and provide 
certain information to Bondholders on a continuing basis. The Securities and Exchange 
Commission ("SEC") Rule 15c2·12(b)(5) "Continuing Disclosure" requirements, which the District 
has adopted, requires that various financial information about the District and the Municipality be 
provided annually to various information repositories. This has been complied with for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the Municipality through 
referendums. All bonds are retired In serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. 
Bonds Issued by the Board are general obligation bonds. 

Five Years and Thereafter Payments 

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding at June 30, 2021 Is as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 

2022 $ 

Refunding Bonds Serjes 2011 Issue 

Principal Interest Total 

280,000.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 287,000.00 ======= 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

A. Bonds Payable Currently Outstanding (continued} 

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding (continued): 

School District Bonds Series 2017 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2022 $ 510,000.00 $ 418,875.00 $ 928,875.00 
2023 810,000.00 402,375.00 1,21 2,375.00 
2024 825,000.00 381 ,937.50 1,206,937.50 

2025 855,000.00 360,937.50 1,215,937.50 
2026 875,000.00 337.125.00 1,212,125.00 

3,875,000.00 1,901 ,250.00 5,776,250.00 

2027 900,000.00 310,500.00 1,210,500.00 
2028 900,000.00 283,500.00 1, 183,500.00 
2029 900,000.00 256,500.00 1, 156,500.00 
2030 900,000.00 229,500.00 1, 129,500.00 
2031 900,000.00 202,500.00 1, 102,500.00 

4,500,000.00 1,282,500.00 5, 782,500.00 

2032 900,000.00 175,500.00 1,075,500.00 
2033 900,000.00 148,500.00 1,048,500.00 
2034 900,000.00 121,500.00 1,021 ,500.00 
2035 900,000.00 94,500.00 994,500.00 
2036 900,000.00 67,500.00 967,500.00 

4,500,000.00 607,500.00 5,107,500.00 

2037 900,000.00 40,500.00 940,500.00 
2038 900,000.00 13,500.00 913,500.00 

1,800,000.00 54,000.00 1,854,000.00 

$ 14,675,000.00 $ 3,845,250.00 $ 18,520,250.00 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

A. Bonds Pa)lable Currentl)l Outstanding {continued} 

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding (continued): 

GRAND TOTAL 
Fiscal 

Year Ending 
June 30, . Principal Interest Total 

2022 $ 790,000.00 $ 425,875.00 $ 1,215,875.00 
2023 810,000.00 402,375.00 1,212,375.00 
2024 825,000.00 381 ,937.50 1,206,937.50 
2025 855,000.00 360,937.50 1,215,937.50 
2026 875,000.00 337, 125.00 1,212,125.00 

4, 155,000.00 1,908,250.00 6,063,250.00 

2027 900,000.00 310,500.00 1,210,500.00 
2028 900,000.00 283,500.00 1, 183,500.00 
2029 900,000.00 256,500.00 1,156,500.00 
2030 900,000.00 229,500.00 1, 129,500.00 
2031 900,000.00 202,500.00 1.102,500.00 

4,500,000.00 1,282,500.00 5, 782,500.00 

2032 900,000.00 175,500.00 1,075,500.00 
2033 900,000.00 148,500.00 1,048,500.00 
2034 900,000.00 121,500.00 1,021,500.00 
2035 900,000.00 94,500.00 994,500.00 
2036 900,000.00 67,500.00 967,500.00 

4,500,000.00 607,500.00 5,107,500.00 

2037 900,000.00 40,500.00 940,500.00 
2038 900,000.00 13,500.00 913,500.00 

1,800,000.00 54,000.00 1,854,000.00 

$ 14,955,000.00 $ 3,852,250.00 $ 18,807,250.00 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

B. Bonds and Notes Authorized But Not Issued 

As of June 30, 2021 the District has no unissued debt authorizations but not issued. 

C. Defeasance 

As a result of the accounting requirement in accordance with GASB #23/#65, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Refunding of Debt Reported by Proprietary Activities, the recording of the 
transaction related to the new vs. old debt and related costs resulted in an accounting loss which 
in conjunction with the premium will be amortized over the remaining life of the bond issue. 

Unamortized Loss on Defeasance 
Beginning 

Loss Balance Amortization 

2011 Series Refunding Bonds $ 138,952.00 $ 24,173.14 $ 12.086.58 $ 

D. Compensated Absences 

Refer to Notes to Financial Statements - Note 11 for further detail. 

E. Operating Leases 

Ending 
Balance 

12,086.56 

The District is leasing copiers and computers. The unit prices of all individual items lease 
purchased are less than the capitalization threshold for fixed assets or do not qualify as capital 
assets and as a result, are classified as operating leases. The following is a schedule of the 
future minimum lease payments under the operating leases and the present value of the net 
minimum lease payments at June 30, 2021. 

Year Cogifi!r§ 

21-22 $ 6,910.84 
22-23 6,910.84 
23-24 4 233.04 

$ 18,054.72 

Computers 

$ 19,979.83 

$ ====19;,;·=97=9=. 8=3::::. 
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9. PENSION PLANS 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Description of Plans: All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public 
Employees' Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund that have been 
established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits 
(Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems 
will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division of Pension 
Issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension 
and Annuity Fund. 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) 

The State of New Jersey, Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) is a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan with a special-funding situation, by which the State of New 
Jersey (the State) is responsible to fund 100% of the employer contribution, excluding any local 
employer early retirement incentive (ERi) contributions. TPAF Is administered by the State of 
New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about 
TPAF, please refer to Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be 
found at www.state.nLus/treasury/pensions/annrprts.shtml. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66, TPAF provides retirement, death 
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, 
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are 
always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become 
vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before 
retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full Interest credited to the members' accounts. 
The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF: 

Tier Definition 

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to 

November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were elig ible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to 

May 22, 2010 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 201 o and prior to June 

28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 

Service retirement benefits of 1/55lh of final average salary for each year of service credit is 
available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching 
age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60th of final average salary for each year of service credit 
is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. 
Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 
and 4 with 25 or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or 
more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that 
a member retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is 
available to members who have at least 1 O years of service credit and have not reached the 
service retirement age for the respective tier. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) 

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division 
of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional Information about PFRS, please refer to 
Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at 
www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrprts.shtml. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death 
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except tor medical benefits, 
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following 
represents the membership tiers for PERS: 

Tier Definition 

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to 

November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to 

May 22, 2010 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 201 O and prior to June 

28,2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 

Service retirement benefits of 1/551
h of final average salary for each year of service credit is available 

to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. 
Service retirement benefits of 1/601

h of final average salary for each year of service credit is available 
to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement 
benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 with 25 or more 
years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. 
Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age 
at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. 
Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 
years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 1 O years of service 
credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier. 

Funding Policy: The contribution policy Is set by New Jersey Statutes and contributions are 
required by active members and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions 
may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P .L. 2011 , 
employee contribution rate for TPAF and PERS is 7.5% of employees' annual compensation. 
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both the TPAF and PERS. 
The actuarially determined contribution Includes funding for cost-of~living adjustments, 
noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the 
District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS {CONTINUED) 

Funding Policy (Continued) 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the 
State In accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are 
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASS Statement No. 68 and the State is 
treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not 
contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension 
liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local participating 
employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local participating employers must 
disclosure the portion of the nonemployer contributing entities total proportionate share of the net 
pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer. 

During the year ended June 30, 2021 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan with special funding 
situations, the annual pension costs equals annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost 
sharing multi-employer pension plan, the annual pension costs differs from the annual required 
contribution due to the enactment of Chapter 114, P.L. 1997. 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 

2021 
2020 
2019 

Three.Year Trend Information for PERS 

$ 

Net Cost Percentage of 
to District APC Contributed 

377,961 
334,203 
358,362 

100% 
100% 
100% 

Employee 
Contribution 

$ 202,433 
197,673 
186,426 

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the District) 

Pension Paid on-behalf of District 
Fiscal Year APC Total Employee TPAF 

Ended June 30 Contributed On-Behalf of Contribution FICA 

2021 100% $ 3,080,650 $ 914,505 $ 887,747 
2020 100% 2, 138,572 1,082,747 888,670 
2019 100% 1,874,768 838,440 807,668 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 the State of New Jersey contributed $3,080,650 to the 
TPAF on behalf of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey 
reimbursed the District $887,747 during the year ended June 30, 2021 for the employer's share of 
soclal security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries. This amount 
has been included in the general-purpose financial statements, and the combining and lndlvidual fund 
statements and schedules as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIA~STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees Retirement Svstem (PERS) 

The information for PERS was abstracted from State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement 
System Schedules of Employer Allocations and Schedules of Pension Amounts by Employer as of 
June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 Independent Auditor's Report dated June 4, 2021 and June 5, 
2020, respectively. 

The District reported a liability of $5,630, 183 and $6, 190, 769 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively. The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 (the Measurement Date), and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension llablllty was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating school districts, actuarially determined. 

District Proportionate Share 

Difference - (Increase) 

June 30, [Measurement Date] 

0.0345253577 % 

0.0001674743 

0.0343578834 % 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 , the District recognized pension benefit of $156,467. At June 30, 
2021 , the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
PERS from the following sources: 

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43.15A and requires contributions by active 
members and contributing employers. Employee contributions for 2021 were seven and 50/1001

h 

percent (7.5%) for PERS. Employer's contributions are actuarially determined annually by the 
Division of Pensions. 

The local employers' contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate, which 
includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 an option for local 
employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts 
certified for payments due In State fiscal year 2009. Such employers wlll be credited with the full 
payment and any such amounts wlll not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries wil l 
determine the unfunded liabillty of those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and 
accrued liability contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the 
employer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of 
assets. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Changes of Assumptions $ 182,650 $ 2,357,411 
Difference between expected and actual experience 102,516 19,911 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 192,444 
Changes in proportion 279,658 233,079 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 423,823 

Total $ 1, 181,091 $ 2,610,401 

The $423,823 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school 
district contributions subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 
2021, the plan measurement date is June 30, 2020) will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability In the year ended June 30, 2022. other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Collective balances (Local Group) are as follows: 

Collective deferred outflows of resources 

Collective deferred inflows of resources 

Collective net pension liability 

Collective total pension expense 

District's proportion of Local Group 

$ 
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$ 

Amount 

(706,485) 
(644, 100) 
(368 ,086) 
(148,848) 

(31 ,847) 

June 30, [Measurement Datez 
2020 2019 

2,347,583,337 $ 3, 149,522,616 

7,849,949,467 7,645,087,574 

16,435,616,426 18, 143,832, 135 

407,705,399 974,471,686 

0.0345253577 % 0.0343578834 % 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumgtions 

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2019, which rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation used the 
following assumptions, applied to all periods In the measurement. 

Inflation Rate: 
Price 
Wage 

Salary Increases: 
Through 2026 
Thereafter 

Investment Rate of Return 

Modality Rates 

2.75% 
3.25% 

2 . 00~6 . 00% (based on year of seNlce) 
3.00-7.00% (based on year of seNice) 
7.00% 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee 
mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101 .4% adjustment for females , and with 
future improvement from the base year of 201 O on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality 
rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table 
with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99. 7% adjustment for females, and with future Improvement 
from the base year of 201 O on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled 
retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% 
adjustment for males and 117 .2% adjustment for females, and with futu re Improvement from the base 
year of 201 O on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018. It is likely that future experience will 
not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these 
assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the 
experience deviates, the larger impact on future financial statements. 

Long-Term Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at 
June 30, 2020) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the 
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the 
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected futu re real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected Inflation. Best estimates 
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation 
as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table: 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees Retirement System (PE~S) (Continued) 

Long-Term Rate of Return (Continued) 

Asset Class 
Target 

Allocation 
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

US Equity 
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 
Emerging Market Equity 
Private Equity 
Real Assets 
Real Estate 
High Yield 
Private Credit 
Investment Grade Credit 
Cash Equivalents 
U.S. Treasuries 
Risk Mitigation Strategies 

Discount Rate 

27.00 % 
13.50 
5.50 

13.00 
3.00 
8.00 
2.00 
8.00 
8.00 
4.00 
5.00 
3.00 

7.71 % 
8.57 

10.23 
11.42 
9.73 
9.56 
5.95 
7.59 
2.67 
0.50 
1.94 
3.40 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2020. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from 
employers and the nonemployer contributing entity will be based on 100% of actuarially 
determined contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments 
was applied to all projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees Retirement System <PERS) <Continued) 

Sensitivity of The Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. 

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 
30, 2020 (measurement date) , calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as 
what the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 
-percentage point lower or 1- percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

June 30, 2020 [Measurement Date ] 

District's proportionate share 
of the pension liability $ 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. 

1% Decrease 
6.00% 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

7.00% 

7,086,047 $ 5,630, 183 $ 

1% Increase 
8.00% 

4,392,760 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) or by visiting their website at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/pers 1. 

Teachers Pensionsand Annuity Fund (TPAF) 

Data for the TPAF was abstracted from the State of New Jersey Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 
Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations and Schedules of Pension Amounts by 
Employer and Nonemployer as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 Independent Auditor's Reports 
dated June 4, 2021 and June 5, 2020, respectively. 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the 
State In accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are 
considered to be In a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is 
treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute 
directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or 
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local participating employers. 
However, the notes to the financial statements of the local participating employers must disclose the 
portion of the nonemployer contributing entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability 
that Is associated with the local participating employer. 

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District recognized at June 
30, 2021 (Measurement Date June 30, 2020) was as follows: 

- 72 " 



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund CTPAFl (Continued) 

Net Pension Liability: 
Districts proportionate share 

(Measurement Date] 
June 30. 2020 

None 
State's proportionate share associated with the District $ 63,072,785 

$ 63,072,785 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The 
net pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
school districts and the State, actuarially determined. The proportion of the TPAF net pension liability 
associated with the District is as follows: 

District Proportionate Share 

Difference - Increase 

June 30, [Measurement Date J 

0.0957842634 % 

0.0024159510 

0.0933683124 % 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and revenue of 
$3,922, 134 for contributions provided by the State. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation used 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation Rate: 
Price 
Wage 

Salary Increases: 
Through 2026 
Thereafter 

Investment Rate of Return 

2.75% 
3.25% 

1.55% - 4.45% (based on year of service) 
2.75% - 5.65% (based on year of service) 
7.00% 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund CTPAF) (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income 
Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and 
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement 
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree 
mortality table with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future 
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates were 
based on the Pub-201 O Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for 
males and 100.3% adjustment for females , and with future improvement from the base year of 201 0 
on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at 
June 30, 2020) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the 
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the 
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and Inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected futu re real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates 
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation 
as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the table as follows: 

~ 74 -



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund CTPAF) (Continued) 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued) 

Asset Class 
Target 

Allocation 
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

US Equity 
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 
Emerging Market Equity 
Private Equity 
Real Assets 
Real Estate 
High Yield 
Private Credit 
Investment Grade Credit 
Cash Equivalents 
U.S. Treasuries 
Risk Mitigation Strategies 

Discount Rate 

27.00 % 
13.50 
5.50 

13.00 
3.00 
8.00 
2.00 
8.00 
8.00 
4.00 
5.00 
3.00 

7.71 % 
8.57 

10.23 
11.42 
9.73 
9.56 
5.95 
7.59 
2.67 
0.50 
1.94 
3.40 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.40% as of June 30, 2020. This 
single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 2.21% as of June 30, 2020, based on the Bond 
Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal 
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the 
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member 
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be based on 78% of the actuarial 
determined contribution for the state. The state contributed 50% of the actuarially determined 
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members th rough 2062. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit 
payments through 2062, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after 
that date In determining the total pension liability. 
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9. PENSION PLANS {CONTINUED) 

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund CTPAF) (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District 
as of June 30, 2021 (measurement date June 30, 2020) calculated using the discount rate as 
disclosed above as well as what the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated 
with the District would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 
1-percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

State's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability associated 
with the District 

Pension Plan Fiduciaty Net Position 

$ 

1% Decrease 
4.40% 

74,026,429 $ 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

5.40% 

63,072,785 $ 

At 
1% Increase 

6AO% 

53,884,216 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued TPAF financial report. 

Additional Information 

Collective balances of the Local Group are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred inflows of resources 

Net pension liability 

Total expenses - non-employer 

2020 

$ 9,589, 140,982 
14,409,361,877 

65,848,796,740 

4, 114,319,534 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

June 30, 
2019 

$ 10,077,460,797 
17,525,379, 167 

61,370,943,870 

3,642, 191 , 152 

The State provides post-retirement medical (PRM) benefits for certain State and other retired 
employees meeting the service credit eligibility requirements. In fiscal year 2020 the State paid PRM 
benefits for 143,053 State and local retirees. 
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10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Data for the TPAF was abstracted from the State of New Jersey Local Education Retired Employee 
Plan as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 Independent Auditor's Reports dated January 21 , 2022 
and December 8, 2020, respectively. 

The State funds post-retirement medical benefits on a "pay-as-you-go" basis, which means that the 
State does not pre-fund or otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM 
expenses that the State may incur in future years. For fiscal year 2020 the State contributed $1.578 
billion to pay for pay-as-you-go PRM benefit costs incurred by covered retirees. The State's pay-as­
you-go contributions have remained consistent with fiscal ·year 2019 amounts. The State has 
appropriated $1 .775 billion in fiscal year 2021 as the State's contribution to fund pay-as-you-go PRM 
costs. 

In accordance with the provisions of GASS Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, the State is required to quantify and disclose its 
obligations to pay Other Postemployment Benefits (OPES) to retired plan members. The new 
standard supersedes the previously Issued guidance, GASS Statement No. 45, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, effective for fiscal year 2018. 
The State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language names the 
State as the legal obligor for benefit payments. For fiscal year 2020 the total OPEB liability for the 
State is $65.50 billion, a decrease of $10.5 billion or 13.80 percent from the $76 billion liability 
recorded in fiscal year 2019. 

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes 
Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et. Seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the 
program are found In Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GAS BS No. 75. 

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75. 

At June 30, 2019 the following employees (statewide} were covered by the benefit terms: 

Active Plan Members 
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Not Yet Receiving Benefits 

Total Plan Members 

Three~Year Trend Information for TPAF Medical (Paid on-behalf of the District) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 

2021 
2020 
2019 

Post·Retirement Medical 

$ 965,428.00 
793,371.00 
850,392.00 

216,804 
149,304 

0 

366, 108 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make 
employer contributions to OPES for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The District's 
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 th rough 205 of GASBS 
No. 75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective net 
OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. The District is required to record in their financial 
statements, as an expense and corresponding revenue, their respective amount of total OPEB 
expense attributable to the State of New Jersey under the special funding situation. Accordingly, the 
following OPEB liability note information is derived from reports provided by the State of New Jersey 
Division of Pension and Benefits and is reported at the board of education level. Note that actual 
numbers are published in the NJ State's CAFR: 
( https://www. n j. gov /treasu rv/ om b/pu bl icatlons/archives. shtm I). 

The portion of the TPAF OPES Llability that was associated with the District recognized at June 30, 
2021 (Measurement Date June 30, 2020) was as follows: 

Net OPEB Liability: 
Districts proportionate share None 
State's proportionate share associated with the District $ 68,474,634.00 

$ 68,474,634.00 

The proportion of the PERS and TPAF Net OPES Liability associated with the District's liability is as 
follows: 

June 30, [Measurement Date] 

0.0101300000 % 0.0093200000 % 

Total Nonemployer OPES Ljabllity 

The total nonemployer OPES liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of June 30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The actuarial assumptions vary for 
each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation 
used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Salary increases: 
through 2026 

Thereafter 

TPAF/ABP PERS 
(based on service years) (based on service years) 

1.55-4.45% 

1.55-4.45% 
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10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPES) (CONTINUED) 

Total Nonemployer OPES Liability (Cootjnued) 

Preretiremeot mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers" (TPAF/ABP), 
"General" (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully 
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. 
Postretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-201 o "General" classification headcount­
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality Improvement projections from the central 
year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-201 O "General" c lassification 
headcount-weighted disabled mortality tale with fully generational mortality improvement projections 
from the central year using Scale MP-2020. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of actuarial 
experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2018 for 
TPAF and PERS, respectively. 

100% of all retirees who currently have healthcare coverage are assumed to continue with that 
coverage, 100% of active members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement, having 
a coverage blend of 85% and 15% in PPO and HMO, respectively. 

Health Care Trend Assumptions 

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term 
trend rate after seven (7) years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fu lly-insured Medicare 
Advantage trend rate for fiscal year 2021 through 2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical 
trend is 4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and 
decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven (7) years. For the Medicare Part B 
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The discount rate utilized was 3.50% as of June 30, 2019 and 
2.21 % for June 30, 2020. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 was 2.21%. This represents the municipal bond return rate as 
chosen by the Division. The source Is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which 
includes tax-exempt general obligatlon municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. 
As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, It is not considered in the 
calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate. 

- 79 -



BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENl:FITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of Total NonemRloyer OPES Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following represents the total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 (Measurement 
Date), calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer 
OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that Is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 

June 30, 2020 [Measurement Date] 
At 1% 

Decrease (1 .21 %) 

$ 82,811, 139 $ 

At Discount 
Rate (2.21%) 

68,474,634 

At 1% 
Increase (3.21%) 

$ 57,651 ,288 

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate 

The following represents the total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020, calculated using 
the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPES liability would be if 
it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point 
higher than the current rate: 

June 30, 2020 [Measurement Date] 
Healthcare Cost 

1 % Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase 

$ 55,450,089 $ $ 83,483,570 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2019. 
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10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes In the Healthcare Trend Rate 
(Continued) 

Shown below are details regarding the Total OPEB Liability for the measurement period from June 
30, 2019 to June 30, 2020: 

Balance as of June 30, 2019 Measurement Date 

Changes Recognized for the Fiscal Year: 
Service Cost 
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 
Changes of Assumptions 
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience 
Gross Benefit Payments 
Contributions from the Members 

Net Changes 

Balance as of June 30, 2020 Measurement Date 

Total OPEB Liability 

$ 

$ 

$ 

38,914,324 

1,942,870 
1,409,947 

12,507,963 
14,855.485 
(1, 192,087) 

36,132 

29,560,310 

$ 68,474,634 
=====~=~ 

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change In the discount rate from 3.50% as of June 
30, 2019 to 2.21 % as of June 30, 2020. 

The components of the Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2020 (Measurement Date) are as follows: 

Total OPES Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Net OPEB Liability 
Net Position as a Percentage of OPEB Liability 
OPEB Expense 
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Measurement Date 
June 30, 2020 

$ 68,474,634 
None 

$ 68,474,634 
0.0% 

$ 4, 171,699 
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10. OTHER POST.EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

OPES Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPES 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the board of education recognized OPES expense of $4, 171,699 
determined by the State as the total OPES liability for benefits provided through a defined benefit 
OPES plan that is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS 
No. 75 and In which there is a special funding situation. 

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District proportionate share of school retirees OPEB is zero, 
there is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources. At June 30, 2020, the State reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to retired school employee's OPES from the following 
sources: 

The following table Illustrates the Deferred Inflows and Outflows as of June 30, 2020 under GASS 75 
prior to any reduction due to the Fiscal Year 2021 amortizations. 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

Changes of Assumptions 11,647,310 $ 7,813,344 
Differences between Actual and Expected Experience $ 10,396,233 9,260,595 
Changes in Proportion 5,346,689 9,544 

Sub-total 27,390,232 17,083,483 
Contributions made in Fiscal Year Ending 2021 

After June 30, 2020 Measurement Date None None 

Total $ 27,390,232 $ 17,083,483 

Amount recognized In the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPES will be recognized in the OPEB expense as follows: 

Measurement Period Ending June 30, 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Total Thereafter 

$ (43,866) 
(43,866) 
(43,866) 
(43,866) 
(43,866) 

(4,750,264) 
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10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued TPAF financial report. 

Additional Information 

Collective balances of the Local Education Group are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred inflows of resources 
Net OPES liability 
Total expenses - non-employer 

2020 
$ 24,023,298,802 

19, 101 ,933,244 
67,809,962,608 
3,337,755,596 

June 30 
2019 

$ 1,921,145,183 
20,887,639,826 
41 ,729,081,045 

1,015,664,874 

The total nonemployer OPES liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit 
obllgations that are provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits are 
the responsibility of the individual local education employers. 

11. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASS 16), "Accounting for 
Compensated Absences". A llablllty for compensated absences attributable to services already 
rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and 
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts in accordance with various 
employment agreements under the District's personnel policies. In the event of termination, an 
employee Is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay 
and begin vesting with the employee after fifteen years of service. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is recorded in the 
Statement of Net Position. The current portion of the compensated absence balance of the 
governmental funds is reported separately on the Statement of Net Position. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those 
funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2021 no liability existed for compensated 
absences in the proprietary fund types. 
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12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The District offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans. which are administered by the 
entities listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts 
deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination , retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows: 

• AAA Equitable • AIGNariable Annuity Life Insurance Co. 
• Lincoln National Life • Security Benefit Life Insurance Company 
• Legend Employee Benefit • Ameriprise/IDS Financial Services 
• Siracusa Benefits Program 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

Property and Llabilitv Insurance: The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for 
property, liability and surety bonds. A complete schedule of Insurance coverage can be found In the 
Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Health Benefits: The District has elected to provide health insurance to its employees based on a 
monthly per employee premium basis (a traditional plan). 

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance: The District has elected to fund its New 
Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under 
this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits 
paid to its former employees and charged to Its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly 
for amounts due to the State. 

14. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2021 which will be 
liquidated in the normal course of business in the ensuring year. 

Fund 

Governmental Funds: 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 
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Receivable 

$ 36.11 

Payable 

$ 36.11 
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15. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

The District has a deficit fund balance of $111,545.32 in the Special Revenue Fund as of June 30, 
2020 as reported In the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that 
In the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts 
must record the last state aid payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school 
budget year. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the 
current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions. GASB Statement No. 33 requires that 
recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government 
recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last 
two (2) state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize the last 
state aid payment on the GMP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. 
Due to the timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the Special Revenue Fund 
balance deficit does not alone indicate that the district is facing financial difficulties. 

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that 
is reported as a direct result from a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is 
not considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The 
District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $111,545.32 in the Special Revenue Fund is equal to 
the last state aid payment in the Special Revenue Fund. 

16. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED 

General Fund - Of the $4,234,579.71 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2021 , $331 ,474.02 is 
assigned - for other purposes (encumbrances); $1 ,612,034.83 is Restricted for Capital Reserve 
account; $455,459.00 is Restricted for Maintenance Reserve; $887,805.18 assigned - excess surplus 
designated for subsequent years' expenditures, $14, 170.62 is FFCRNSEMI funds assigned for 
designated for subsequent year expenditures, $548,533.17 reserve for excess surplus and 
$385, 102.89 reserve for unemployment claims. 

Special Revenue Fund - The deficit of $89,954.74 at June 30, 2021 Is a result of the net effect, of 
the $21,010.78 restricted for student activities, $579.80 restricted for scholarship and reduced by the 
deficit of $111,545.32 related to grants (see Note 15). 

Debt Service Fund - All of the $127,478.10 fund balance at June 30, 2021 is restricted for Debt 
Service. 

Capital Pro!ects Fund - The $7, 175,095.20 Capital Projects Fund fund balance at June 30, 2021, 
was created by the issuance of School District Bonds Series 201 7 $15,605,000.00, the award of 
grants In the amount $25,388,020.00 plus a capital reserve transfer of $685.00 less expenditures 
incurred to date of $33,818,609.69. These funds are earmarked toward the court-ordered building 
expansion. It is anticipated that the project will be closed out in the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 
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17. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS 

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7 as amended by P.L. 2004 c73 (S1701), the designation for 
Reserved Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey 
Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school 
districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they 
did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance In their subsequent years' 
budget. There was excess surplus at June 30, 2021 on the budgetary basis of accounting (refer to 
Note 18) as a result of fiscal year 2018-2019 school year of $717,216.51 and for fiscal year 2020-
2021 school year of $1,602,668.17. 

18. RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES-GENERAL FUND 

The Unreserved General fund balance is presented on a GAAP basis and a reconciliation to the 
budgetary basis is as follows: 

Balance on a budgetary basis as per general fund 
budgetary comparison (Schedule C-1) 

Less: Allocation of State aid payment of $1,579, 170.00 
not recognized on a GAAP basis 

Balances on a GAAP basis on the governmental 
fund balance sheet (Schedule B-1) 

19. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

$ 

Unassigned -
Fund Balance 

525,035.00 

525,035.00 

None 

Reserve for 
Excess Surplus 

$ 1,602,668.17 

1,054, 135.00 

$ 548,533.17 

A Grant Programs - The school district participates in federally and state assisted grant programs. 
These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their 
representatives. The school district is potentially liable for expenditures which may be disallowed 
pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of any material items 
of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures. 

B. Pending Litigation - As of the date of this report, the management has represented that there 
was no litigation pending which, in the event of an adverse or unfavorable outcome, would 
materially impair the financial position of the District. 

C. Commitments ·The District has contractual commitments at June 30, 2021 to various vendors, 
which are recorded in the general fund as fund balance assigned for other purposes In the 
amount of $331,474.02. 

20. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state governments. A 
significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, could have an effect on the District's 
programs and activities. 
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21. NET POSITION-NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

Net investment in capital assets, Governmental Activities, consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or 
acquire the capital assets. The net investment in capital assets of $56,464,225.00 indicated as part 
of the Governmental Activities net position is calculated as follows: 

Capital assets, net of depreciation 
Bonds payable (used to build or acquire capital assets) 
Deferred loss on defeasance of debt 

22. TAX ABATEMENTS 

$ 

Amount 

41,541 ,895.00 
(1 4,955,000.00) 

12,086.56 

$ 26,598,981.56 

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an 
agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to 
forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that 
contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. However, 
the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into tax abatement 
agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or 
municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the 
school district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A 54:4-76 require that 
amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the school 
district. 

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise 
their minimum tax levy using the required local share provision at N.J.S.A.18A:7F-5(b), the loss of 
revenue resulting from the municipality or county having entered Into a tax abatement agreement is 
indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the 
New Jersey Department of Education based upon district property value and wealth. 

The Borough of Freehold provides for long-term tax exemptions, as authorized by New Jersey State 
Statutes. N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. sets forth the criteria and mechanism by which property taxes 
can and are abated. The exemptions provided by the Borough of Freehold are for senior citizen 
housing projects and a technology center. Taxes abated include municipal, local school and county 
taxes. 

The Borough of Freehold recognized revenue of $416,769.00 from the annual service charge In lieu 
of payment of taxes in 2021 and taxes in 2021 that otherwise wou ld have been due on these long­
term tax exemptions amounted to $1,451,581 .00 based upon the assessed valuations of the long­
term tax exemptions properties. A portion of the $1,034,812.00 abatement would have been 
allocated to the District. 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

23. COVID-19 CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC 

The COVID-19 Coronavirus outbreak in the United States has caused the Governor of the State of 
New Jersey to mandate closures and a curfew for all nonessential citizens and businesses. The 
management of the District (which Is essentfal) has evaluated the impact of the situation and has 
determined that overall there Is no adverse impact on its June 30, 2021 financial statements 
(audited). Financial Impact for the year ending June 30, 2022 is uncertain at this time. A significant 
portion of the revenue to support the District operations is state aid and taxation; however, the 
outcome Is uncertain at this time. 

24. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - GASB No. 84 

The District implemented GASB No. 84 related to former Fiduciary Funds accounting being into 
reclassified into the Governmental Funds. The reasoning related to the fact that the District has 
control of the funds and as such, are more properly reflected In the Governmental Funds. The 
reclassification was reflected as a prior period adjustment to the Governmental Funds (basic financial 
statements B-2) and the Statement of Activities (A-2), effective July 1, 2020, and no retroactive 
restatement of financial was done since financial statements are not comparative. The 
reclassification involved liabilities and fund balance with no adverse impact on the financial position of 
the District. 

- 88 -
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 



CD 
(0 

REVENUES: 
Local sources: 

Local tax levy 
Miscellaneous-Restricted 
MiscellaneouS-:U nRestricted 

Total - local sources 

State sources: 
Categorical Special Education AKI 
Categorical Transportation Aid 
Categorical Security Aid 
Equalization Aid 
Extraordinary aid 
Nonpublic transportation - cost reimbursement 
On behalf-TPAF - pension oontributiol'IS (nonbudgeted) 
On behalf - TPAF - post retirement medical (ncmbudgeted} 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARJSON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budget 
Bl.ldget Transfers 

s 10,138,841.00 

30,000.00 

10.168,841.00 

1,438,457.00 
407,350.00 
739,721 .00 

14,765,525.00 s (1,430,309.00) 
275,000.00 

On behalf - TPAF - long-term disability insurance (nonbudgeted) 
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions (nonbudge!ed) 

Total- state sources 17,626,053.00 ( 1 ,430,309.00) 

Federal sources: 
Medical assistance program 145,593.00 
FFCRNSEMI 

Tolal - federal sources 145,593.00 

Total revenues $ 27.940,487.00 $ {1 ,430,309.00) 

Final 
Budget Actl.lal 

s 10.138,841.00 $ 10,138,841.00 
51,390.62 

30,000.00 95,639.25 

10.168,841.00 10.285,870.87 

1,438.457.00 1,438,457 .00 
407,350.00 407,350.00 
739.721 .00 739,721.00 

13,335,216.00 13.335,216.00 
275,000.00 474,877.00 

3,480.00 
3,030,650.00 

965,428.00 
2,004.00 

887,747.22 

16, 195,744.00 21,334.930.22 

145,593.00 160,369.77 
14,170.62 

145.593.00 174,540.39 

s 26.510,178.00 s 31.795,341.48 

$ 

$ 
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Variance 
Final to A.clual 

(65,639.25) 

{65.639.25) 

(199,877.00) 
(3,480.00) 

(3, 080 ,650. 00) 
(965,428.00) 

(2,004.00) 
(887,747.22) 

~5 . 139, 186.22) 

(14,776.77) 
(14,170.62) 

(28.947.39) 

(5.233,772.86) 



EXPENDITURES: 
CURRENT EXPENSE: 

Regular programs - instruction: 
Salaries of teachers: 

Kindergarten 
Grades 1 - 5 
Grades 6 - 8 

I Home instruction: 
ID Salaries of teachers 0 

Purchased professional - educational services 

Total home instruction 

Regular programs - undistributed instruction: 
Other salaries for instruction 
Purchased professional -·educational services 
'Lease Purchase Equipment 
Other purchased services (400-500 series) 
other purchased services (580 series) 
General supplies 
Textbooks 
Other objects 

Total regular programs - instruction 

Tolal regular programs • Instruction 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 570,573.00 s (2,398.00) 
3 ,330, 055. 00 2,045.00 
1,784,213.00 16,861 .00 

5,684,841.00 16,508.00 

7,400.00 (4,005.00) 
3,600.00 9,005.00 

11.000.00 5,000.00 

242,285.00 
175.310.00 30,184.00 
145,000.00 (80,000.00) 

89,810.00 400.00 
2,600.00 

577,920.00 (92, 155.15) 
28,000.00 

8,1 58.00 

1,269,083.00 _ (141,571 .15) 

6,964,924.00 (120.063.15) 

Final 
Budget Actual 

s 568,175.00 s 568,174.50 
3,332, 100.00 3,228,31 1.57 
1,801 ,074.00 1.737,983.10 

5,701,349.00 5.534,469.17 

3,395.00 3,395.00 
12,605.00 12,542.57 

16,000.00 15.937.57 

2.42,285.00 236,183.76 
205,494.00 197,224.25 

65,000.00 64,751.73 
90,210.00 78,249.58 

2,600.00 
485,764.85 362,911 .54 

28,000.00 3,252.80 
8,158.00 1,546.00 

1, 127.511 .85 944.1 19.66 

6,844,860.85 6,494,526.40 

s 
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Variance 
Final to Actual 

0.50 
103,788.43 
63,090.90 

166,879.83 

62.43 

62.43 

6.101.24 
8,269.75 

248.27 
11 ,960.42 

2,600.00 
122,853.31 

24,747.20 
6,612.00 

183.392.19 

350,334.45 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
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EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTI NU ED): 
Home Instruction 

Early childhood: 
Salaries special ed. home instruction 
Purchased Professional - Educational Services 

Total early childhood 

Total special education - instruction 
I 

ID Other Instructional programs: "' Basic skills/remedial - instruction: 
Salaries of teachers 
General supplies 

Total basic skills/remedial - instruction 

Bilingual educalion - instruclion: 
Salaries of teachers 
Purchased professional - educational services 
General supplies 
Tex1books 

Total bilingual education - instruction 

Scflool sponsored co/extracurricular activities - instruction: 
Salaries 
Purdlased services (300-500 series) 
Supplies and materials 
Oiiier Objects 

Total school sponsored co/extracurricular activities - inst. 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budge I 
Budget Transfers 

s 8,000.00 
13,000.00 

21,000.00 

3.860.645.00 s 61,966.00 

319,311.00 (221,362.00) 
250.00 

319,561 .00 {221 ,362. 00~ 

893,288.00 (57 ,832. 00) 
43,005.00 

5.625.00 
4,000.00 

945,918.00 __ {57 ,832.00) 

55,000.00 
4,420_00 
1.400.00 1,500.00 
6,775.00 {1,500.00) 

67,595.00 

Final 
Budget 

$ 8,000.00 $ 
13,000.00 

21,000.00 

3,922,61 1.00 

97,949.00 
250.00 

98,199.00 

835,456.00 
43,005.00 

5,625.00 
4,000.00 

888,086.00 

55,000.00 
4,420.00 
2,900.00 
5,275.00 

67,595.00 

Actual 

1.405.81 

1.405.81 

3.526,810.24 

84,103.20 

84,103.20 

803,001.78 
38,614.40 

4,047.94 

845,664.12 

34,920.00 

1,839.99 
385.00 

37,144.99 

$ 
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Variance 
Final to Actual 

6,594.19 
13.000.00 

19,594.19 

395.800.76 

13,845.80 
250.00 

14,095.80 

32,454.22 
4,390.60 
1,577.06 
4,000.00 

42.421 .88 

20,080.00 
4,420.00 
1,060.01 
4.890.00 

30.450.01 



EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 

Sdlool sponsored athletic·- instruction: 
Salaries 
Purchased services 

Supplies alld Materials 
Other objects 
Transfer lo cover deficit 

Total school sponsored athletic - instruction 
I 

CD Total other instructional programs w 
I 

Total instructional programs 

U ndistrlbtJted expenditures: 
Instruction: 
Tuition to other LEAs widiin Hie state - regular 
Tuitlon to other LEAs within Hie state - special 
Tuition to private school for the disabled - slate 

Total undistributed expenditures - instruction 

Attendance and social work: 
Salaries 

Total attendance and social work 

Health services: 
Salari.es 
Purchased professional - teclmical services 
Other purchased services 
Supplies and materials 
Other objects 

Total health services 

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE JO, 2021 

Original Budget 
Budqet Transfers 

$ 57,000.00 
250.00 

15,000.00 
8,125.00 

14,000.00 

94.375.00 

1,427,449.00 s (279~1_94.00) 

12,253,018.00 ___1337 ,291.15) 

s 40,000.00 
322,934.00 203,000.00 
901,949.00 ~203,000.00) 

1,264,883.00 

46,629.00 1,100.00 

46,629.00 1,100.00 

238,986.00 1,387.50 
28,125.00 10,000.00 

500.00 
9,000.00 22,145.00 
2,250.00 

278,861.00 33,532.50 

Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 57,000.00 $ 46,544.00 
250.00 

15,000.00 
8,125.00 62.00 

14.000.00 

94,375.00 46,606.00 

1, 148,255.00 _1,013.518.31 

11 ,915,726.85 11,034,854.95 

40,000.00 5,962.25 
525,934.00 514,785.00 
698,949.00 565,817.39 

1,264,883.00 1 ,086,564.64 

47,729.00 47,728.24 

47.729.00 47.728.24 

240,373.50 231,203.45 
38,125.00 17,700.00 

500.00 
31, 145.00 26,831 .52 

2,250.00 3a0.00 

312,393.50 278,114.97 

s 
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Variance 
Final lo Actual 

10,456.00 
250.00 

15,000.00 
8,063.00 

14,000.00 

47,769.00 

134,736.69 

8a0,871 .9Q 

34,037.75 
11 , 149.00 

133, 131 .61 

178,318.36 

0.76 

0.76 

9,170.05 
20,425.00 

500.00 
2,313.48 
1,670.00 

34,278.53 



CD 
~ 
• 

CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 
Other suppo.rt services - students - related services:. 

Salaries 
Purchased professional - educational services 
Supplies and mal:e1ials 

Total olher support service - student- related seNioes 

Undistributed expenditures (continued): 
Other support services - students - extraordinary services: 

Salaries - OHler 
Purdlased professional - educational serv[ces 
Suppli.es anti materials 

BOARD OF EDUCATtON 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND. 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FlSCAL YEAR EN OED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budget 
Budget T ransfers 

$ 45e,390.oo $ (97' 112.50) 
174,700.00 85,875.00 

3,700.00 

637,790.00 ~1 1 ,237 .50) 

26,951 .00 
353,005.00 (16,1 00.00} 

5,700.00 

Total other support service- student- extraordinary services 385,656.00 (16,1 00.00~ 

Oiiier support seniices - students - regular: 
Salaries of other professi.onal staff 197,398.00 4,050.00 
Salaries of seael:arial and clerical assistanls 81,590 .. 00 (3,2.18.00) 
Other Purchased selVices (400-500 series) 71 , 100.00 
Suppfles and materials 7,550.00 (83.2.00) 
Other objects 2,170.00 

Tolal ottier support services - students - reguJar 359,808.00 

Other support services - students - special: 
Salaries of other professional staff 482,546.00 2,023.00 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 124,.847.00 (8,303.00> 
Salaries - otll:e1 5,000.00 2,881 .00 
Unused vacation payment 8,960.00 
Purchased professional - educational selVices 53.900.00 22,969.00 
Other purcllased professional and technical services 22,300.00 (8,600.00) 
Other purchased services 16,171.00 7,600.00 
Misc. Purchased services (400-500 series} 2,000.00 
Genera( Supj}lies 3,628.00 
Supplies and materials 15,000.00 
Other objects 1,100.00 

Total other support services - studenls - special 726,492.00 27,530.00 

Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 362,277..50 $ 315,651.03 
260,575.00 252,056.00 

3,700.00 537_9g 

626,55.2.50 568,245.02 

26,951.00 
336,905.00 109,053.70 

5.700.00 3,919.56 

369.556.00 112,973.26 

201,448.00 201.448.00 
78,372.00 73,759.98 
71 ,100.00 41,420.17 

6,718.00 1,434.76 
2,170.00 485.52 

359,808.00 318,548.43 

484,569.00 484,446.07 
116,544.00 116,143.56 

7,881 .00 7,880.59 
8,960.00 8 ,959.86 

76,869.00 57,818.72 
13,700 .00 
23,771.00 23,764.9.2 

2,000.00 103 .. 66 
3,628.00 478.99 

15,000.00 13,626.43 
1, 100.00 995.00 

754,022.00 714,217.80 

$ 
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Variance 
Final to AcluaJ 

46,626.47 
8.519.00 
3,1 62.01 

58,307.48 

26,951 .00 
.227 ,851 .. 30 

1.,780.44 

256,58.2.74 

4,61 2.02 
29,679.83 
5 ,283.24 
1.684.48 

41.259.57 

12.2.93 
400.44 

0.41 
0 .1 4 

19,050.28 
13,700.00 

6.08 
1,896.34 
3 ,.149.01 
1,373.57 

105.00 

39,804.20 
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EXPENDITURES {CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 

U11distributed expenditures (continued): 
Improvement of l11Structio11al services: 

Salaries of supervisors of instruction 
Salaries of other professional staff 
Salaries of secretarial and derical assista11ts 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FlSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 255,630.00 
33,600.00 
61,140.00 

Salaries of Facilitators, Math Coaches and Literacy Coaches 83.680.00 s (36,658.00) 
Purchased professional - leclinical seivices 7,250.00 
Purchased professional - educational services 5,900.00 
Other Purchased Services 1,820.00 
Supplies and materials 4,500.00 
Other objects 3,SS0.00 

Tolal Improvement of instruclional services 457,170.00 {36,658. 00~ 

Educational media service/school library: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 67,826.00 1,886.00 
Salaries - Oltler 11,406.00 127.00 
Purc.hased professional and educational services 3,000.00 1,000.00 
Purchased professional technical services 43,005.00 
Supplies and materials 15,900.00 (3,013.00} 

Total educational media service/school Ubrary 141,137.00 

Instructional slaff training services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 67,331_00 
Purchased Professional - Educational Services 2,000.00 120.00 
Other purc.hased services (400-500) 4,300.00 1,760.00 
Renlal 1,500.00 
Purchased professional - ed0<:ational services 15,325.00 (660.00) 
Other purchased services (400-500 series) 4,000.00 
Supplies and materials 7,030.00 

Total instructional staff training services 101,486.00 1,220.00 

Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 255,630.00 $ 255,630.00 
33,600.00 32,915.00 
61,140.00 58,640.00 
47,022.00 44,431.00 

7.250.00 5,050.00 
5,900.00 149.00 
1,820.00 845.00 
4.500.00 2,729.80 
3,650.00 2,191 .00 

420,512.00 402.580.80 

69,712.00 69,712.00 
11,533.00 11,532.50 
4,000.00 3,n1 .oo 

43,005.00 38,878.40 
12,887.00 7,468.42 

141, 137.00 131,362.32 

67,331.00 67,331.00 
2,120.00 1,890.00 
6,060.00 5,756.72 
1,500.00 

14.665.00 669.00 
4,000.00 1,320.40 
7,030.00 280.00 

102.706.00 77.247.12 

s 
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Variance 
Final to Actual 

685.00 
2,500.00 
2,591 .00 
2,200.00 
5,751 .00 

975.00 
1.no.20 
1,459.00 

17,931.20 

0.50 
229.00 

4, 126.60 
5,418.58 

9,774.68 

230.00 
303.28 

1,500.00 
13,996.00 

2,679.60 
6,750.00 

25,458.88 



EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 
Undisiributed expendi!ures (continued}: 

Support services - general administration: 
SaEaries 
Legal services 
Audit fees 
Arohilecl fees 
Other purohased professional seJVices 
Purchased Technical Services 
Communicationsltelephone 

r.o 
BOE- othef purchased services 

CD Miscellaneous purchased services 
BOE ln-tiouse training/meeting supplies 
General Supp~es 
lnhouse Training~Meals 
Miscellaneous expenditures 
BOE membership dues and fees 

Total support services - general administration 

Support services - school administration:. 
Salaries of principals/assistant principals 
Sa!a.ries of secretarial and clerical assistants 
Purohased professional & technical services 
Olher purchased selVices (400-500 series) 
Olher purchased services 
Supplies and materials 
other objects 

Total support services - soh.ool adminislJalion 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 299,492.00 s 757.00 
25,500.00 (9,750.00) 
48,000.00 
20,000.00 

9,850.00 (7.00) 
1,000.00 

93,525.00 10,000.00 
4,000.00 

11,415.00 
74,055.00 

7,950.00 
460.00 

3,371.00 
17,000.00 

615.,618-00 1,010.00 

530,200.00 300.00 
209,542.00 (9,587.00) 

61 ,010.00 25,503.00 
25,815.00 1,576.00 

5,000.00 (5,000.00) 
36,400.00 (12,362 .. 00) 

5,800.00 f430.00~ 

873,767.00 

Final 
Budget Actual 

s 300,259.00 s 299,469.94 
15,750.00 15,284.00 
48,000.00 41,230.00 
20,000.00 19,619.56 

9,843.00 7 ,705.00 
l,000.00 898.91 

103,525.00 91,792.76 
4,000.00 

11 ,415.00 900.00 
74,055.00 67,144.37 
7,950 .. 00 3,836.55 

460.00 
3,371.00 

17,000.00 16,018.84 

616,628.00 563,900.03 

530,5.00.00 530,499.69 
199,955.00 199,634.25 
86,513.00 86,51 1.82 
27,39 1.00 2.5,142.58 

24,038.00 19,668.98 
5,370.00 3,854.00 

873.767.00 865.361.32 

s 
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Variance 
Final to Adual 

789.06 
46£.00 

5,770.00 
380.44 

2,138.00 
101.09 

11,732.24 
4,000.00 

10,515 .. 00 
6,910.63 
4,113.35 

460.00 
3,371.00 

981 .16 

52,7.27.97 

0.31 
270.75 

1.18 
2,248.42 

4,369.02 
1.,516.00 

8,405 .. 68 



EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED>: 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 

Undistributed expenditures (continued): 
Central services: 

Salaries 
Unused vacation payment 
other purchased professional service 
Purchased technical services 
Miscellaneous purchased services (400-500 series) 
SuppUes and materials 

I 

<O T olaJ central services 
-....J 
I 

Admin. info. Technology: 
Salaries 
Purctiased technical services 
Other purchased services (400-500 series) 
Other objects 
Supplies and materials 

Total admin. Info. Technology 

Required maintenance for school facmties: 
Salaries 
Purchased technical services 
General supplies 
Other purchased services 
other objects 

Total requrred maintenance for school facilities 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL Fl.IND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budget 
Budget T ransfers 

s 439,779.00 $ (4,503.00) 
7,500.00 5,250.00 

39,420.00 9,959.00 
9,416.00 

18,260.00 (7,075.00) 
9,100.00 1,619.00 

523,475.00 5,250.00 

276,743.00 
26,540.00 

1,000.00 
4,000.00 
3,225.00 

311 ,508.00 

199,583.00 (3,000.00) 
272,691 .00 227,046.82 

29,900.00 12,287.56 
2,500.00 
1,000.00 

505.674.00 236,334.38 

Final 
fu!Qgfil Actual 

$ 435,276.00 $ 430,993.29 
12,750.00 
49,379.00 45,036.70 

9,416.00 4,601 .04 
11, 185.00 9,8-52.93 

__ 1_0,719.00 10,204.28 

528,725.00 500,688.24 

276,743.00 274,122.74 
26,540.00 15,667.07 

1,000.00 
4,000.00 
3,225.00 3,091.68 

311 .508.00 292,881.49 

196,583.00 18-4,508.50 
499,737.82 470,493.59 

42,187.56 33,573.87 
2,500.00 1,311.00 
1,000.00 954.95 

742,008.38 690,841.91 

$ 
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Variance 
flllal to AcbJaJ 

4,282..71 
12,750.00 
4,342.30 
4,814.96 
1,332.07 

514.72 

28,036.76 

2,620.26 
10,872..93 

1,000.00 
4,000.00 

133.32 

18,62.6.51 

12,074.50 
29,244.23 

8,613.69 
1, 189.00 

45.05 

51, 166.47 



EXPEN DtTURES (CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED):. 

Undistribuled expenditures (continued): 
Other operation and matntenance of plarrl: 

Salaries 
Purchased professional and tecllnical se1Vices 
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous purchased services 
General supplies 

<.D 
Energy (natural gas) 

co Energy (heat and eleclricity) 

Total other operation and maintenance of plant 

Care and upkeep of grounds: 
Salaries 
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services 
General supplies 

Total care and upkeep of grounds 

Security: 
Salaries 
Purdlased professional services 
General supplies 

Total security 

Total operation and maintenance of planl. 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2.021 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 518,336.00 $ 14,105.00 
7,570.00 (1,225.00) 

30,500.00 (1 2,511 .00) 
11 7,877.00 18,836.00 

2,610.00 (2,500.00) 
100,000.00 69,358.88 
120,000.00 (2.7,000.00) 
250,000.00 4,500.00 

1, 146,893.00 53,563.88 

43,717.00 2 ,540.00 
99,550.00 10,157.00 
16,000.00 (4 ,798.00~ 

159,367 .. 00 7,899.00 

71,558.00 3,500.00 
54,000.00 (25,957.00) 
10,000.00 

135,558.00 (22,457 .00) 

1,947,492.00 285,340.26 

Final 
Budget Actuat 

$ 532,441 .00 $ 500,526.52 
6,345.00 4,075.00 

17.,989.00 11,866.21 
136,713.00 136,712.40 

110.00 86.14 
169,358.88 166,843-40 

93,000.00 90 .. 170.79 
254,500.00 251,420.47 

1,2.10,456.88 1,161,700.93 

46,257.00 46,.254.63 
109,807.00 97,000.00 

11 ,202.00 8,623.73 

167,266.00 151 ,878.36 

75,058.00 73,620.80 
2.8,043.00 27,858.00 
10,000.00 7,740.36 

113, 101.00 109,219.1 6 

2.232.832.26 2. 113,640.36 

$ 
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Variance 
Final to Actual 

31,914.48 
2,270.00 
6,122.79 

0.60 
23.86 

2,515.48 
2.829.21 
3,079.53 

48,755.95 

2.37 
12,807.00 

2,578.27 

15,387.64 

1.437.20 
185.00 

2,259.64 

3,881.84 

119.191.90 
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BOARD OF EDUCATlON 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EN OED JUNE 30, 2021 

OriginaJ Budget 
Budget Transfers 

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED}: 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED}: 

Undistributed expenditures (continued): 
Sl1Jdenl transportation : 

Contracted services - aid in J[eu of payments - nonpubric schools s 10,000.00 $ 3,085.00 
Contracted services - a[d in lieu of paymenls - charter scilools 1,000.00 
Contracted seNices - Vendors (other than between home & schooQ 45,000.00 (3,085.00} 
Contracted services - Special Education Sl1Jdents - vendors 11,000.00 
Contracted services (special education sludents) - j oint agreemenls 425,000.00 (508.00) 
Contracted Services - Reg Ed - ESC & CTSA 60,000.00 (60,000.00) 
Contracted seMc:es (special education sl1Jdenls} - ESC & CTSA 530,000.00 60.508.00 

Total student transp-ortation 1,082.,000.00 

Unallocaled benefits: 
Group Insurance 40,000.00 2,704.00 
Social security cootribulion 285,030.00 4,637.00 
Other retirement contributions - regular 360,000.00 8,596.00 
Unemployment compensation 30,000.00 
Workmen's compensation 155,000.00 (3,217.00) 
Health benefits 5, 189,985.00 (425, 120.00) 
Tuition reimbursement 35,000.00 (4.,208.00) 
Other employee benefits 33,000.00 8,109.00 

TolaJ unalloca.ted benefits 6,128,015.00 {408,499.00~ 

Total personal services - employee benefits 6 .. 128,015.00 (408,499.00) 

On behalf - TPAF - pension contributions (non budgeted) 
On behalf - TPAF - post retirement medical (non budgeted) 
On behalf - TPAF - long-term disability (non budgeted} 
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions (non budgeted) 

Total on behalf - Contrlootlons 

T olal undistribu!ed. expenditures 15,881,787.00 ~117,51 1 .74) 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES - CURRENT EXPENSE s 28, 134.805.00 $ (454,802.89) 

Final 
Budget AcllJal 

s 13,085.00 s 13,082.55 
1,000.00 

41,915.00 5,500.00 
11,000.00 

424,492.00 413,975.00 

590.508.00 590.507.97 

1,082, 000.00 1,023,065.52 

42,704.00 42,703.29 
289,667.00 289,666.77 
368,596.00 368,595.44 

30.000.00 538.SO 
151,783.00 118,342.00 

4,764.865.00 4, 139,857.95 
30,792.00 30,792.00 
41, 109.00 38,707.75 

5,719,516.00 5,029.203.70 

5,719,516.00 5,029,203.70 

3,080,650.00 
965,428.00 

2,004.00 
§_8_7.7_47~ 

4,935,829.22 

15,764,275..26 19,062, 1 52.48 

s 27 ,580,002 .11 s 30,097.007.43 

s 

s 
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Variance 
Final to Acl1Jal 

2 .. 45 
1,000.00 

36,415.00 
11,000.00 
10,5t7.00 

0.03 

58,934.48 

0.71 
0..23 
0.56 

29,461.50 
33,441.00 

625,007.05 

2,401 .25 

690.312.30 

690,31230 

(3,080,650.00) 
(965,428.00) 

(2,004.00) 
(887,747.22) 

{ 4 ,935.829.22) 

(3, 297 ,877.22~ 

(2,417.,005. 32) 



EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 
CAPITAL OU11A Y: 

Equipment: 
Undistn'buled expenditures: 

Jnstruclion 
Requfred Macntenance 
Security 
Water Bottte Refill Station 

Total undistributed expenditure equipment 
~ 

0 Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services: 0 
Construction Services 
A1chlte<:ltJral I Engineering SelV'ices 
Ass'essmenl for Debt Servfce on SDA Funding 

Total facilities acquisiHon and cooslJuctfon servi.ces 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL OUTLAY 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDJTURES 

.Excess/deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources 
over/(under) expenditures and other financing soorcesl(uses) 

Fund balance, July 1 

Prior Period Adjustment 

Fund Balance, July 1 Reslaled 

Fund balance, June 30 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Bud.get 
Bu® et Transfers 

s 185,379.45 
7,369.00 

20,000.00 

212,748.45 

$ 500,000.00 682,557.44 
3,800.00 

22,899.00 

522.,899.00 686,357.44 

522,899.00 899,105.89 

s 28.657, 704 .00 s 444,303.00 

(717.217.00) (1,874.61 2.00~ 

4 ,872,275.38 

333,712.27 

5,205,987.55 

s 4.488,770.55 $ (1,874,612.00) 

Final 
~ 

s 185,379.45 s 
7,369.00 

20.000.00 

212.748.45 

1, 1 82,557.44 
3,8.00.00 

22,899.00 

1,209,256.44 

1,422, 004.89 

s 29, 102,007.00 $ 

(2,591 ,829.00~ 

4,872,275.38 

333,712 .27 

5,205,987.65 

$ 2,61 4, 158.65 $ 

Actual. 

157,148.35 s 
7,369.00 

20,000.00 

194,517.35 

873,155.64 

22,899.00 

896.054.64 

_1,090,571 .99 

31 ,187,579.42 $ 

607,762.06 

4,872.275.38 

333.712.27 

5,205,987.65 

5,813,749.71 $ 
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Valiance 
final to Acl\Jal 

18,231.10 

18,231.10 

309,401.8.0 
3,800.00 

313.201.80 

331.432.90 

~085,572.42) 

(3, 148,200.44~ 

(3, 148,200.44> 



. ....>. 

0 

Data.ii of: 
Fund balance appropria!ed 

Detail of budget transfers: 
Reserve for prior year-end encumbrances 
Withdrawal from Mainlenance Reserve 
Withdrawal from Capital Reserve 
Fund Balance Appropriated 
Less Reduction in Stal.e Ard 

Recap.ilulalion of fund balance: 
Committed for year-end encumbrances 

BOARD OF EDUCATION. 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR TH E FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Originat Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 717,217.00 

$ 1 ,239,202. 73 
68,846.82 

394,605.45 
171,958.00 

(1.430,309.001 

s 444,304.00 

Assigned - reseNe for excess surplus - designated for subsequent year's expoo.ditures 
Restricted: 

Unemployment 
Majntenance reseJVe 
Capital resenre 
Reserve for Excess Surplus 

FFCRA/SEMI 
Unassigned - UnreseJVed 

Reconciliation to governmental funds statemenls (GAAP}: 
Last State Aid Payment not recognfzed on GAAP basis 

Fund balance per governmental funds (GAAP} 

Final 
Budget 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Actual 

331,474.02 
887,805.18 

385,102.89 
455,459.00 

1,612,034.83 
1,602,668. 17 

14,170.62 
525,035.00 

5,813,749.71 

1,579, 170.00 

4, 234,579. 71 
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Variance 
Final to Actual 



Exhibit c.2 

BOARD OF EDU~A!IQl::I 
EIQBQ!.!!2H QF FREEHOLD SCHOO!. C!IUBl~I 

~Q!.!t:!IX QF MONMOUTH 
BUQ!,lWB:i'. ~QM~ARISON SCHEDULE 

§f&~lal. B&~5N!,!E FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JUNE 30. 2021 

Final Var1ance 
~ Actual f inal to Actual 

REVENUES: 
Stato Sources $ 1,291,220.00 $ 1,253,571 ,43 $ 37,648.57 
Fodera! Sources 3,820,088.54 3,090,818.21 729,270.33 
Local Sources 121,753.41 35 414.25 86,339.16 

Total Revenues s 51233,061.95 $ 4,379,803.89 s 853,258.06 

EXPENDITURES; 
lnslructlon: 
Salaries ot Teachers $ 1,371, 161.84 $ 1, 174,176.37 $ 196,965 47 
Othar Salaries tor Instruction 151,621.47 151,620.64 0.83 
Purcha&ad Protoss!onal and Technie<1I Services 413,305.00 218,789.65 194,515.35 
Other Purehasod Professional and Technical Services 400-500 Serles 40e,530,00 396,073.76 12,456.24 
Other Miscellaneous Purchases 

Purchased professional - aducatlonal Instructional Supplies 821 ,169.07 723,392.63 97,796,44 
Purchased professional - educational 
General Supplies 19,943.38 19,943,36 
Textbooks 12,279.00 12,262.98 16.02 
Other Objects 48,387.00 48,367,00 

Total Instruction 3.246.416.76 2,676,316.03 570.100.73 

Support Services: 
Salaries of Other Profession;il Staff 90,297.50 70,237.69 20,059.81 

Salaries of Prlnclpals/Assitant Principals/Progr.im Directors 57,449.00 57,448,63 0.37 
Salaries or Salaries of Other Profession;il Staff 135,271.82 135,271.82 
Sal;iries of Secretarial and Cterlcal Assistants 27,340.00 27,340.00 
Other Selaries 202,695.00 147,869.46 54,825.55 
Salaries of Facilitators, Math Coaches, Literacy Coaches 
and Master Teacher.; 38,736.80 38,736.80 

Parsonal Services-Employee Benefits 664,027.05 605,844.83 58,182.22 
Purchased Professional and Technical services 133,058.96 81 ,211.05 51,84190 
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Servlcos 15,251.32 11 ,751,92 3,499.40 
Other Purehased Professional· Education Services Additional 122,475.00 122,476.00 
Miscell<1neous 38,000.00 36,000.00 2,000.00 
Other Purchased Professional Services 44,149.30 44, 149.30 
Purchased Property Services 5,:377.74 5,377.74 
Other Purchased Services 1,645.00 1,045.00 600.00 
Suppl!es and Material 94,355.96 60,046.81 34.~09. 15 

Total Support Services 1,670.130.44 1,395,279.00 274,851.44 

Facllltles Acquisition and Construction Services: 
Non-Instructional Equipment 316,716.00 315,716.00 
Instructional Equipment 796.75 798.75 

Total Facilitles Acquisition and Construction Services 318,514.75 3161514.75 

Total Expenditures $ 6,233,061 .95 $ 4,388, 109. 76 $ 844,952.17 

Excess (Oeficiancy) or Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures $ (8,305.89) $ 8,305.89 

Fund Balance July 1, (Restated) 29 896.47 

fund Balance; June 30 $ 21,690.58 

Recapitulation 
Restricted: 

Scholarships $ 579.80 
Student Activities 21,010.78 

Total Fund Balance $ 21 ,590.58 
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and 
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expendjtures 

Sources/Inflows of Resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the 
budgetary comparison schedule 

Difference - Budget to GAAP: 
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in 
that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and 
the related revenue is recognized. 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

State aid payments recognized for GAAP statements in the 
current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 

State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes, 
not recognized for GAAP statements. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes In fund balances -
governmental funds. 

Uses/Outflows of Resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from 

the budgetary comparison schedule 

Difference - Budget to GAAP: 
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 

not received is reported In the year the order are placed 
for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are 
received for financial reporting purposes. 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and change in fund balance -
governmental funds. 

- 103 -

General 
Fund 

C-1 $ 31,795,341.48 

None 
None 

1,519,838.80 

(1,579, 170.00) 

B-2 $ 31 ,736,010.28 

C-1 $ 31,187,579.42 

None 
None 

B-2 $ 31 I187 ,579.42 

Exhibit C-3 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

C-2 $ 4,379,803.89 

None 
None 

68,443.24 

(179,988.56) 

B-2 $ 4,268,258.57 

C-2 $ 4,388, 109.78 

None 
None 

B-2 $ 4,388, 109. 78 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART Ill 



SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING 

FOR PENSION (GASB 68) 



' ....... 
C> 
~ . 

Year 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS} 
LAST EIGHT (8) FISCAL YEARS* 

Dislrict's 
proportionate 

share of the net 
District's pension liability 

proportionate (asset) as a 
District's proportion share of the net District's percentage of its 
of the net pension pension liability covered- covered-employee 

liability (asset) (asset) employee pa}'.roll payroll 

0.034525357700 % $ 5,630,183 $ 2,640,712 213% 

0.034357883400 6,190,759 2,637,982 235% 

0.036027990000 7,093,730 2,485,670 285% 

0 .034555413400 8,043,948 2,477,067 324% 

0.033500426000 9,921 ,865 2,476,951 400% 

0.031926584400 7,166,878 2,335,002 307% 

0.033408153600 6,254,920 2,262,692 276% 

0.031048884100 5,934,059 2,139,216 360% 

Plan fiduciary 
net position as 
a percentage 
of the total 

pension 
liability 

58.32% 

56.27% 

46.40% 

48.10% 

40.14% 

47.92% 

48.72% 

52.08% 

Note: Only the last eight (8) years of information are presented as GASB 68 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 
Eventually a full ten (10) years schedule will be compiled. 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information: 
Benefit Changes - There were none. 
Changes of Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 to 7 .00% as of June 30, 2020. 

Exhibit L-1 



__.. 
0 
01 

Con1raclually 
required 

Year contribution 

2021 $ 377,961 

2020 334,203 

2019 358,362 

2018 329,290 

2017 297,613 

2016 260,534 

2015 257,942 

2014 256,590 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS) 

LAST EIGHT {8} FISCAL YEARS• 

Contributions 
in relation to 

the 
contracltJally Co111ribution 

required deficiency 
conmbution (excess) 

$ 377,961 None $ 

334,2.G3 None 

358,362 None 

329,290 None 

297,613 None 

260,534 None 

257,942 None 

256,590 None 

Exhibit L-2 

District's Contributions as a 
covered- percentage of 
employee covered-employee 

payroll payroll 

2,640,712 14 .. 31% 

2,637,982 12.67% 

2,485,670 14.42% 

2,477,067 13.29% 

2,476,951 12.02% 

2,335,062 11 .16% 

2,262,692 11.40% 

2,139,216 11 .99% 

Note: Only the l.ast eight (8) years of information are presented as GASB 68 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 
Eventually a full ten (10) years schedule will be compiled. 
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District's 
Proportion of Net 

Year Pension liability District 

2021 0.9578426340 % $ None 

2020 0.0933683124 None 

2019 0.0926271510 None 

2018 0. 089537 4944 None 

2017 0.0860139147 None 

2016 0.0807544200 None 

2015 0.0842835590 None 

2014 0.08803.26060 None 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 
TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND ITPAF) 

LAST .El.GHT (8) FISCAL YEARS* 

Proportionate Share of District's 
Net Pension Uabili~ {Asset~ Covered-Employee 

State Total Payroll 

$ 63,072,785 $ 63,072,785 $ 11,787,000 

57,301,075 57,301,075 14,436,609 

58,927,404 58,927 ,404 11,179,175 

60,369,407 60,369,407 10,127,412 

67,664,022 67,664,022 9 ,717,992 

51,040,248 51,040,248 9,409,200 

45,046,819 45.,046,819 8,796,726 

44,490,987 44,490,987 8,463,685 

Note: Only the lastfive (6) years of information are presented as GASB 68 

Notes to Requi red Supplementary Information: 
Benefit Changes - There were none. 
Changes of Assumptions- The discount rate changed from 3.50% as of June 30, 2019 to 2.21 % as of June 30, 2020. 

Exhibit L-3 

District's 
Proportionate Share 

of Net Pension 
liability (asset} Plan Fiduciary 

as Peroenta.ge of Net Position as 
Covered-Employee Percentage of Total 

Payroll Pension Liability 

None 24.60% 

None 26.95% 

None 26.48% 

None 2.5.41% 

None 22.33% 

None 28.71 % 

None 33.64% 

None 33.76% 



SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING 

FOR OPES (GASS 75) 



.... 
0 _.,. 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service cost 

Interest 

Changes of assumptions 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

SCHEDULE OF REQUJRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE OISTRICrS 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY FOR PERS AND TPAF AND RELATED RATIOS 
LAST FOUR (4) FISCAL YEARS • 

2021 2020 

$ 1,942,870 $ 1,917,672 

1,409,947 1,676,314 

12,507,963 580.216 

Differences between expected and actual experience 14,855,485 (6,072,727) 

Benefit payments (1, 192,087) (1, 194,554) 

Contributions from members 36,132 35,410 

Net changes in total OPEB liability 29,560,310 (3,057 ,669) 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 38,914,324 41,971,993 
Total OPEB liabinty- ending $ 68,474,634 $ 38,914,324 

Covered-employee payroll (PERS and TPAF) -$ 14,.42],71~ $ 17,074,891 

Total OPEB fabilily as a percentage of covered-emptoyee payroll None None 

Exhibit M-1 

2019 2018 

s 2,131 ,476 $ 2,566,278 

1,805,471 1,553,031 

(4,816,496) (6,659,090} 

(4,902,608} 

(1 , 122,316) (1,131,184} 

38,789 41,653 

(6,865,684) (3,629,312} 

48,837,677 52,466,989 

$ 41 ,971 ,993 $ 48,837,677 

$ 13,664,845 $ 12,604,479 

None None 

Note: Only last four (4) years of information is presented as GASB 75 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Eventually a full ten (10) 
years schedule will be compiled. 

Notes to Requi red Supplementary Information: 
For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven (7) years. For post-65 medical 
benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal years 2021 t.hroogh 2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 
4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and decreases to 1 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven (7) years. For 
the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. 

Changes of Assumptions - The discount rate utilized was 3.50% as of June 30, 2019 and 2.21% as of June 30, 2020. 



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 



BOARD OF EQ!,!CAllON 
!!!:lBOOGH OF ~!i!i!:JQ!.!l SCKOOL DISTRI£[ 

COMB IN I!§ ~HEDUl.E Qf REVENUES ANO :EXPENDITURES 
liPEOIAL REVEN~ fl!!!!;!-B!,!~ARY BASlli; 
E:QR THE RSCAL YEAR ENDED ,!!,!NE 30, 20~ 

~ 

Total T1llo Ill nn.11 Tiao·I TI1te l TillelV ... _Rell«! CIV<$Acl Cores A.di DVllllll ESRSU!>f>O<t B<v...,... ........ ~ ........ Realbaf.ed Pait .A Fund Reier R·erer b>n.zi:a1ion CO,ldo Service> 
FonoRI T-• 
~ ---me 

REVSIUES: 
Stal I SOU rces $ 1~3.511-43 $ 1,2S3.51UJ 
fodedlSOtr'CU M2,529.48 s 70,00.2.91 S ?B,569.45 s 1.023,IKID..&7 s :?0~949..60 $ 1U&OB s 24.,000.00 s 719.3'48.19 s 2oe,oe.e.oo s 7,9ro.l2 $ 21i,516..IJ J,OI0,8Ul21 
Lccal soua:s 35•14 2S :J.S 4'1-L.25 ----

To·1a1 ~nues $ 2.121,515.14 $ 70002.91 $ 78 569.45 $ _ j.023,00o.&7 $ __ :JQL!l-l9~31L $ 11,U4.38 s <4j)OC!J~_ S 11'9~8.19 s 208,066.00 s 7,81C.32 s 28,516.&3_ $__.'!,l'l?,803.f.9 

EXPEl«lflURES: 
lnslNCllon: 

Sltlries aftl!achers s 4!la.~ s 3&,105.00 s 518,11<7.CO s 21,.457.50 s 1~.=.00 $ 1.174,0'6.:n 
ceersa11e:sr.crin!iln.lr:;lJoa , 5' .62Q.6.C 1SU2Cl.64 
Pssc.based prufes.sional and 1edtnkal sef\lfces 1M,387.77 ?.148.50 44 ,391.CO $ 1U84.sa 218,?0a.t!S 
O!:>er PuMasca ~..,.. S..VJces. (Series .00.500) J.SS.073.71' 1.DD0.00 :l$,07l.7~ 

Gtner:at supp!es (WJW<lionall r~.s:;o_ea 14,S51.2! 59,116li6 1.27•.oo 5210.21l<Z.39 s 7,810.U 723,392,63 
Tc"1bocl<> 1;!,:Mi2.9a 12<!6Z.~ ----
TClal-.ctlon 1291,919.70 52.11>2.7- ---- 663201 iii __B..73L!O 11 .e&4.3tl ti24."2S.l9 7,97032 2.57ll. 316.CXI 

Sll!IP"<I serv1ces: 
Snrios 25,334.1!9 1,.000.00 2£,334.E9 
Salolles ol other p!Vfess"'1815laff 13,.255,00 $ 30,641.CO 43,llll~ 

_,. Salaries ol Prindpa'Js/Assltaol. Princpa~ Or<dors S?.«8.6:> 57.4<a.s 

0 SaLlnc-s ell Sal.ices cl clt'Alr ~sklf:aJ std 135,211"'2 1.i.s.211.u 

CD SalMSes cl SetteUl'iaJ .al):! Qerical AS!isl'AtllS 27,3<0.00 27,3"11.CO 
Otheor .. t.rie5 147.)169.4·~ 147,ll&HS 
Sallries cl Fa:iRalors, Math Coodles- LlteoJy eo..clles 

and Masler Tea~rs 35.,736,80 $8,73il0 
Pe ..... 1 .. ~oyeebendls 227Jl05.97 3~5.fl 2,313-46 'l2S,98t. 1S 1.1t8.30 '4..S72.80 foOS,94<.a:l 
Purohased~ andli:Chdc:alsemces ~.561.0S 28,870.CO 7.211D.00 1.sco.00 Sl.211.0S 
Other pun::tlrria.sed protess1c:nal seNkes 122.475.00 122.475.00 
other purQ:lesed ptO(essJonal services 1.644.30 UC0.00 4.8«~ 

Other purcti:asecJ ~ PKrlessionJill SG3.62 &,604.CO 7,107..Q 
~ane;cus;Serwiees 12.JI0(),00 12:000.CO 
:Suppl es and ~rials: 21..21IO:e. 10,133.97 U 95.07 s 28,518-&'I 60,0••U1 
~r:anecus SeMa!s 24.c@.OO 24,DOO.CO 
OtherPurd'.Las.ed~ 1J)45.00 1 . 04~-CO ----

Tol111ls:;;ipport.Stf'w'IOeS 1137. 11>2.5& 17.200.13 ~ 3!9,79!.9 1 7.218.SO 24000.00 4-U??.80 26.518.113 1~.:mi.oo 

FaOOSes 111o:;,.its&n and cons1NCf1»·set'\icts: 
N~lmtrudion.al eq~nl 109,650.00 s 2ll6,056.00 115.716.CO 

lnrtruc:Sonml equ~nt 798.75 ---- 79575 

T01a·1 aac.ntte::s a:qusifJan .ad: cxm1rud.ion servk:es. 7lHl,75 ---- IOQ.6!0.00 200 006.00 31S51-<.7S 

Tatat .. peali1wes s 2.129.!Zt.03 $ 7-0.G02.91 s 7'&.51!8..C.S $ _ 1,0Zl,OoJIA7 $ :SO.,'i-49.80 __ s 11,164.38 5 __24000.00 s - 779>1_6.19 s 208,o:&.OO s 7,91()..'.l;! $ 26.516.eJ $ -<.=.t09.76 

E.ICessl(deC'ideoey Gf ~ anrt 
(l:ncleQ expend~ (8,205.89) (a.305.45) 

F...t !>Anoe, ll<gftnllqofyew(asAd)lso<d) 29~.'7 ---- 2U96.47 

FUld ba\1nce·. end CIC Jear $ 21~.sa $ 21.5~.S. 



BOM!;! QF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FR~~!:!Q!,D SCHOOL lll§IBIC7 

Q;!MBllll!lQ ~HED!.!!,E OF ~E~ AND EXe~rl!QITURES 
~ECIAL REVE~E F!,!NID • §!lQQETARY 1!6:Zlli 
FOR THE f!SCAL YEAR ENCIED JUNE 30, 202] 

~ 

IDEAPan. B 
_ _,.,..,. 

TCIUI C!!!e!r 19'2 Muifa~ T0\111 
Bro1911 l'llltil ICEAPK 21sl. Noapub[C Canled 
Fcna..i R·egu·m Grant CedUr/CLC c..,.... r-lanpllttlc FDnlf1llrd 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

REVENUES: 
State scurce:s. s 1.229. 109.14 $ 7~2.611 s 16.5111.00 s l.25l.,S7l .. O 
F-soorc.es s ol38,Bl4.a1 s 19.333.92 s 295..095.n $ 78.~.IHl 832.S211,{ll 
Local.....,.,.. ~ous '3-SAH.2.5 

Tola'l~es s 1,-~·23:119 $ ol38 ·634 .&1 s 1U3J.il2 s .2115095.77 $ 78~.1!8 s 7,!!2.ff s 16~19.00 $~15.14 

EXJ'ENCfl\IRES.: 
lnstnJd.on: 
$Maries of1eacbers s -,,OU.62 s 9S..2Dl25 $ 31.&~00 s 41G..OQ.87 
Othersa!adul'c<""""'1ko 13.2.2118.72 s 111,333.92 151,JiZ0.64 
Pwcha.5ed pn:1Jessiln11 and 1cctmie.al seMccs 127~63 .3S Mil2.75 8,S71>.00 s 7,!M2.llt s 15.St9.DD 1&>,.3117.77 
Olller P\lld\aS<d~~ (5"""'5~ $ 3&5,0n.78 :19S,0Jl.71; 
Gene,.I supjilles (11!.*udlon>I} 37,.300'42 3l,,920.64 l ;ll».82 79.530.$!1 
Te"1bool:> 12.2112 .8/i 1:2'.262 .'M 

Toto I """11<Uon ~726.01 :)95,Dn.78 s 111.33!..92 1n .s.1• .iM .c>!l'T0&.82 7.9•2.69 16..S1 D.OD ~91 1:1.70 

~rt...wces: 
sanu 
Salaries or other profe.s&!cnal staff 
S•ries of Pr1ndpals.1Assbnl Prlnci~s..Program Dh~cb::f5 57.•48.83 57,«B.& 

0 Salaries of Salaries oe olher Profession.al Stotr 1.15,271 .82 1~$.2.71.Q 

CD smne• o1 s=-i - Clerical As:siSt""" 27.340,00 27.~co 
Olber1e'tmes 3P45.00 11s.,9J0.01 s 25;.Z94.4< 1•7,859..-45 
Sa!arle• ol FO<Cllllll°"' r.talh CooCllts, Llle,.iycooc11 .. 

and M.1sRJ Teathers 35.736.llO 36.736~ 

"""'°""'~ee11>ener .. 1~• ... 54 30.191.11 4;170.32 227.005.97 
P"'*2d prclessional- lechnl<al servlees 0 ,56Ul6 CJ,561.0S 
O!be< pcr<hased prvfe>Slollll ...V.CZS 122.C75.00 122.• 75.CO 
Oii,..-~ prvfes.siAln.IS<nic= 1,844.:IO .. -~ 
OU-..r 1>••tho11>ed .. Mc>os Pn>lesslcrull 03.04 9C>.SS 501.,;2 
MlsceUllDl!OuS. Services. 10 .. 000.00 i.ooo.oo 12,000.00 
s~ IUd ........ ~.b 19,2$3 .U7 Z.946.97 22.20~~~ 

Misodla-~ow: Se.Nie.as 
Ofho<,Pw<tursed 5er.1oes 1~5 ;00 111<5.00 

Tobi suppo<t ser.icu 511U05.05 s •3. 56 1~ 16"2.4 81 .13 31 755.34 $37.102..56 

F-=iilies aequislion acd CODSINd.lon seMczs:: 
-.slrudloallr:qoipmetO 

li\Sllru<li.,,..oqitpmenl 798.75 7!1S..7S 

T~ fadii:ics aoo:r=ls111on and ainstruc!ion .. l'<loes 79<1.75 79-S.75 

l - upondllU:es s 1,2T2_g29.8B 5 -4:18,63-UI s 19.33392 s 291l.D!l5.77 s 7!.460.93 s 7,9(2Jl9 .$ 1&.519.00 s 2.129,821..03 

~deOcieacy ol revenues -.1 
(U!'del) e.q>endiures (005'89) (8,Jns..891 

find balar!ce. l>elllndng ol )1!11< (as Adj:.sled) 2U911.C7 29 89&.C7 

Funll l:o'-<, - of >'"" $ 21.siio.sa s 21,59a,58 



!!Q,!!!D QF EDUCATION 
BORO!,!g!j QE E!!EEHOl.D S~OOL DISTRICT 

COMEIS>llNG SCHEDl!!,!i Qf REVENUE§ AND ElCPE!!liTIJE!!7;5 
SPECIAL RE\IEN!,!E F~O - BV!;!QET!!fil BASI~ 
FOR TIE~oll!,.YEAR Er«lED~~!i 30 2021 

~ 

N.,._,.~ NewJooaf 
Toe.I ctllol<r 193 Hll!dcacoed £!!!!!!er 225 T<Cal 

Bn>19'* - Nlll\IM>llo NcOf"i .. C Norpt:C. Clnied 
fol'lldlnt Public NoJ1llUlft E.ram. ard Com~• lai1ill H:nl!'Q »Dop.bl<; - "--l 
~ ~ ~ __£l!ll.,_ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

REllENJES: 
Sl81e souroes s 29,555_00 $ 1&.ZIB.ll9 S 15,103,()0 $ 11,•2UO s 
F'tdel'3tl $04.I rces. 

7,l!00.11<! $ H,MI0.92 $ 12.262.M 5. 1.1'8,924.ZJ s 1 ,229, t0!l7• 

LocMISOtJrces. $ lS,4H.25 lS414-2S 

Tdilt reverr..es $ lS.• M25 $ 28,S!>S.CO s 18,239.119 s ~.703.IJI!) s 11425.60 s 7,200.112 s 19,W>.82 $ 12,262.M s 1,118,924.ZI S-12!!:!,.52U9 

EXl'ENDrTllR.ES: 
lnsvucli Dn: 

Sala<l<scl'"""'- s 363,012.&2. s li!.l,012.62 
Other salaries for in51Ndian u2.2115_n 132,2115_n 
Purcil>s<d - • nd !<cm.cal seMcos $ 29.555-00 s 11!.Z!B.Cl9 S S.703JIO s 17,•25.eo s 7.20)..02 $ 19,.0.82 30,940_40 s 127,ll6:u3 
other Pu'.ttiased pnJfl!SSIOOll SerAces CSeoes 40G-5DD) 
Gen-S<ffl'..s tlrm,....,ic<>aO s ~ns.11 14,524.25 ~7.300.42 
Te-.ls s 12.262.98 l 2.262..ia 

Tatoll1151~ 22.nB.17 29.555.00 1S.23Bm 8.703.00 17.4.25.eO 7 .200.G2 19,«0.82 ~gg 540.164-39 &72.n3.07 

SuppM services:: 
S:Olatlos 
S31aries-c:r1 ctlherp:o:l'e:.s.slonall SUI 

...... s..J•rie$of PriotipolslAssitarrt Pricq>oj.,Program DireCID<s S?,4.Q..63 67,4<11.63 ...... ,5a1anes .ar Sllaes or athef' Pftl:ressioNI st..rr 135,211-62 1lS,211 ''2 
0 s.ranes of Seoretallll and c1e11ca1 ~ ZJ,340.CO Zl.3'4.00 

Other salaries 645.00 3,000.00 3.8<5..c!O 
S ... rie>o!Fatill:ab:f>, MlllllCcad>es.U.raiy Coad!es 

and Mast.er Tuch~ 38.~ao 38.73580 
PtGo,,..--.employee tenellls 192.444-54 192.<"-54 
Pud\ased professional and 1echnbl setVicas 
O!J>orll'J(dlasedpotessioNIS<Mces 122."75-00 122.05.CO 
c:e.er putellaSoc:t potessionM .-ices 1,644..30 1,644,30 
c:>l'.er p.Kdlased seivic:es. Prof essicNll 
Mbcellioeous. Senfce..s 
Su,Jllllies - mal.ella!S 19.=_97 19,253-97 
Ml:scel~ous.Sen'iices 

OlberP\J rciillSed Ser.Ices 1 IMS.DO 1.041'.CO 

Tctal-SUPJIOl1 :servkes 20~.~7 ___2I!.36 Ul!> !&9,3D5C6 

F3dities acqi.i:sitian and c:or..slrUd.ion setVk.es: 
NDIHnUNdlonal eqoipmcct 

111$1t\.diOQaJ<qllpr!ltlt 795.75 7!15.7S 

Tol:iM f-adWe:s il~J:n and COnstnxfGn serrices 79575 79675 

TUii 9-ndWrei s o,=..u $ ~.555.00 s 16Zl8.09 s 6 .703.00 s 17.425.(00 5 7.200D2 s •9,&00..92 $ 12.262.9' , 119',9242J. $ 1,Zn,629~ 

Exa!szi(de'!'~ or,.,.... .. ,.. ·<M<I 
<u..'*r)upencllures {8.30U91 (a.305.~ 

Furd l:olmoe, liegl:'l<lng ol yoar (as A<tlusiodJ 29 8116..47 29 895.47 

Furd balmoe,. end af )'le'• s 21 51n68 s _21,590.58 



BOARD QF §lUCATIQN 

BORD!!!ll!! QE ffiE§HOUl l!CJ.IOOL Dl:iTRICT 
COMBINtN~ li!;HED!.!!.& QF ~NUES AND EXPENDITURES 

SPECIAL RE\IElitJE F~ • BUDGET AR't !!A:il~ 
FOR THE!:§!;;~ Vlia!! E~ED J~ 39, 202t 

~ 

l..oal 
F<Odl<llcl Frtthali Tola! 
6duurUco ~ 21'l N.l!!IG eco .. eou,. c.mecs 

Grants. a.nts c:.Nury saroty G"'"""'° Discount rum~ Bllise S1udeol FOIW<lnt 
~ m!::2lll! 2020-21121 Grams Granl 5iWil ~ ~ Sc:!dallNP'l ~ 

REVENUES; 
Slioe SOOl<e$ 

Federal sou.roes 
LDC31 soun::es s tl),21SAS $ 4,2l'9.72 $. 2.895.00 $ 3,ni.co S ·4 -32S.OO $. 1 COO.DO s I 690.00 s S457.72 $ 559..36 s 3~4U .2S 

Tctaj l'e:\'t:D.la$ $ 10276.o!S $ 4 219.72 $ ~.00 $ unoo s •.m..oo· $ 1.000.00 $ 1,6.00..00 $ S,457.7'2 $ 559~ s 35.4 14.25 

EXPENDrT\JRES; 
~ 

saiane.s ct t.ea~rs 
OtherYllries b imtrudJon 
Purehased ""'1essialal ..S led:l>ical ser.ices 
other """'11ased P'Ule>Siollll Service• (Sellos 400.500) 
Geneal "'fflies (lmtnidionaQ s 10.na.4.S $ 4,219.72 $ 2.~DO s c.:12S.ao $ 1,000.00 s 22,77S.17 
leJ1tloot:s 

T<llollmtJU<llOn 10.276A-S 4.719.72 2.19S.DO 4,3:25.CO 1 ,0:0.DD 22.716.11 

SUppoll .s.tr.ik;e~ 
Salaries 
&U.,,..ot<t:>er~ sta~ 

~ SalariesotF°""""l>IAWla,.~ls/PJOgl8m D.....,,, ..... Sllaries of .$Maries cJ1 O\"ter ~DRiii Slstf __.. 
s.ianes or s.cttlarlll and Olefical Assis'.-s 
otber Sltaries $ e.5.oo 645.00 
Sala ..... or FadlllolDn, MA Coa<Us. Uter:uy Coad! .. 

an:S Masi.t::r Teac.hecs 
Peaonal semces.em!*>YM beneflls 
Pt«h2sed prufes.sioRlll and tcchni:a:I services 
oe.er pirchasocl ,....._ serrices 
O:!>e<1u~lu1socl~ seroioes 
t::lltl!r P"hased smvi:.es: Pmfcublal 
MW:lella><ou> ~ 
Su!'Pie:s-malerlllS s UOUY.> $ 15.172.97 $ 150.00 1 9.2S'l.~7 
MlSOtt !Meo us. Ses:W::cs 
01hesl'urchasocl s ..... - --- - ---- ---- 1.04S.DO t~l!O 

T .... suppcoo ><"'ices ---- ~ 1.690.00 15 172.97 150.00 20.!M.1&7 

FKiB~ .acquslio.n Md CQQ51rud.Jon se.l\lkes:: 
-<qo0pmn 
lm>Ndianoleqr.ipmen ----
ToalfmttiesatJJJlsi1""'ardconslM1ko...w:ei ---- ----
lolaleJCpOndhns 5 10,2m .. c5 $ •.m .n s 2.BSS.00 ~ $ 4.325,00 1,000.00 1.-.00 15,172.97 1~00 $ __ .~720.14 

~derfdarc:y ol ~nues ~J 
{under) uper<Rures (B,l1s..25} .wt.3B ~.3DSS) 

Fund b>I.,.,.,, beglMng od year C... MjUSled) ---- ---- 2g,728.1)3 170.44 298!1!t47 

Fund balanoe. ad or~ s 21,010.78 $ 519.80 $ 21,51111.s.! 



Exhibit E-2

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES:
  State sources 1,172,005.96$  1,172,005.96$     1,119,924.00$     52,081.96$         

      Total revenues 1,172,005.96$  1,172,005.96$     1,119,924.00$     52,081.96$         

EXPENDITURES:
  Instruction:
    Salaries of teachers 387,086.00$     363,012.62$        363,012.62$        -$                    
    Other salaries for instructors 160,889.00       132,287.47          132,286.72          0.75                    
    Purchased professional and technical services -                    32,500.00            30,940.80            1,559.20             
    General supplies 69,620.96         65,044.96            14,524.25            50,520.71           

      Total instruction 617,595.96$     592,845.05$        540,764.39$        52,080.66$         

  Support services:
    Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 57,448.00$       57,449.00$          57,448.63$          0.37$                  
    Salaries of other professional staff 135,854.00       135,271.82          135,271.82          -                      
    Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 27,269.00         27,340.00            27,340.00            -                      
    Other salaries 3,000.00           3,000.00              3,000.00              -                      
    Salaries of Facilitators, Math Coaches, Literary Coaches 89,952.00         38,736.80            38,736.80            -                      
    Personal services-employee benefits 118,412.00       192,444.54          192,444.54          -                      
    Other Purchased educational services 122,475.00       122,475.00          122,475.00          -                      
    Other Purchased Professional/technichal services -                    1,645.00              1,644.30              0.70                    

      Total support services 554,410.00$     578,362.16$        578,361.09$        1.07$                  

Facilites acquistion and construction services:
       Non-Instructional equipment
       Instructional Equipment -$                  798.75$               798.75$               -$                    

       Total Facilities acquistion and construction services -$                  798.75$               798.75$               -$                    

      Total expenditures 1,172,005.96$  1,172,005.96$     1,119,924.23$     52,081.73$         

Total 2020 - 2021 PreK Aid Allocation 1,127,385.00$    
Add: Actual PreK Aid Carryover June 30, 2020 44,620.96           

Total Funds Available for 2020 - 2021 Budget 1,172,005.96$    

Less: 2020 - 2021 Budgeted PreK (Including prior year budgeted carryover) 1,119,924.23      

Available & Unbudgeted Funds as of June 30, 2021 52,081.73$         

CALCULATION OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER

FREEHOLD BORO BOARD OF EDUCATION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID EXPENDITURES
PRESCHOOL - ALL PROGRAMS

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 



Number 

1640-070-17-2000 

~ 1640-040-17-1000 
~ 

c.> 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
CAPtTAL PROJECTS FUND 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Expenditures to Date 
Original Prior Current 

tssue/Proiect Title Date Appropriations Years Year 

Additrons/Rehab. - PAE & FIS 01/1111 7 $ 28,920,395 . .00 $ 22, 130,085.07 $ 31,844 .. 00 

Additions/Rehab. - FLC 01/11/17 12,073,310.00 11,649,530.23 7,186.50 

$ 40,993,705.00 $ 33,779,615.30 $ 39,030.50 

Exhibit F-1 

Unexpended 
Balance 

June 30. 2021 

$ 6, 758.465.93 

416,593.27 

$ 7, 175,059.20 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
.BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES) EXPENDITURES. AND 
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE· BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Revenues 
Bond Sale Proceeds 
Transfer from capital reserve 
Contributions from SDA 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Purchased professional and technical services 

Total expenditures 

Excess( deficiency) of revenues 
over/(under) expenditures 

Other financing sources/(uses) : 
Interest Earned 
Transfer in/( out) - Debt Service Fund 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 

- 114 . 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

39,030.50 

39,030.50 

(39,030.50) 

965.41 
(965.41) 

(39,030.50) 

71214,089.70 

7, 175,059.20 



Exhibit F-2a 
BOARD OF EQ!.!CAIIOH 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL Ql§IB!CI 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
S~tl!;Q!.!L!i QF ERQJECT REVENUES1 EXPENDITURES, PROJECT B~LA!::fC!i 

~t:U:! EBQ~ECT STATUS· BUDGETARY BASIS 
ADDITIONS & REHABILITATION TO fARIS,AVfiiH!.!E ~LEMENTARY AND FREEHOLD INTERMEDIATE S~ljQQLS 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Revised 
Authorized 

Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost 
Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

State sources - SDA Grant $ 14,794,980.00 $ 14,794,980.00 $ 14,794,980.00 
Transfer from Capital Reserve 685.00 685.00 685.00 
Bond Sale Proceeds 14, 124,730.00 141124?30.00 14,124,730.00 

Total revenues $ 28,920,395.00 $ 28,920,395.00 $ 28.920,395.00 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
Salaries $ 42,302.00 $ 42,302.00 $ 42,302.00 
Purchased professional and 

technical services 2,642,511 .57 $ 31,844.00 2,674,355.57 2,674,355.57 
Construction services 18,855,203.46 18,855,203.46 18,855,203.46 
Equipment 418,306.34 418,306.34 418,306.34 
Other purchased services 67,761 .89 67,761.89 67,761.89 
Supplies 102,469.81 102,469.81 102,469.81 
Other objects 1,530.00 1,530.00 1,530.00 

Total expenditures $ 22, 130.085.07 $ 31,844.00 $ 2211611929.07 $ 22,161,929.07 

Excess (deficiency) or revenues 
over/(under) expenditures $ 6,790,309.93 $ (31,844.00) $ 6,758,465.93 $ 6,758,465.93 

Additional project information: 
DOE Project Number 1640-070-17-2000 
SDA Project Number 1640-070-17-G3LT 
Grant Number G5-6403 
Grant Date 1/11/2017 
Bond Authorization Date 6/19/2017 
Bonds Authorized $ 14, 124,730.00 
Bonds Issued $ 14, 124,730.00 
Original Authorized Cost $ 27,835,015.00 
Additional Authorized Cost (Cancelled) $ 1,085,380.00 
Revised Authorized Cost $ 28,920,395.00 

Percentage Increase over Orlglnal 
Authorized Cost 

Percentage completion 76.63% 
Orfglnal target completion date 12/31/2020 
Revised target completion date 

Allocation: Prior Periods C1.!1I~Dl Y~ii!C Total 
Grants $ 10,899,752.93 $ 15,684.16 $ 10,915,437.09 
Local 11,230,332.14 16,159.84 11 ,246,491 .98 

$ 22, 130,085.07 $ 31,844.00 $ 22, 161 ,929.07 

Expenditures allocation: 
Grants 49.2531 % 
Local ~ 

100.0000 
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Exhibit F-2b 

BO~B!2 QE EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEt!QLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY QE MQNMOUTH 
CAPITAL PROJgCT~ E!.!ND 

SCHEDUL!; OE eRQ~ECT REVENUES, !;XPl;l!IQII!.!RES1 PROJECT BALANC§ 
81::11:! ~BQ~ECT STATUS· BUDG§I6BY BASIS 

ADDITIONS &REtl~BILITATION TO FREEHOLD b~8Bl!llNG CENTER 
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 

Revised 
Authorized 

Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost 
Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

State sources - SDA Grant $ 10,593,040.00 $ 10,593,040.00 $ 10,593,040.00 
Transfer from Capital Reserve 
Bond Sale Proceeds 1,480,270.00 1,4_801270.00 1,480,270.00 

Total revenues $ 12,073,310.00 $ 12,073,310.00 $ 12.073,310.00 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
Salaries $ 39,717.00 $ 39,717.00 $ 39,717.00 
Legal 659.30 659.30 659.30 
Purchased professional and 

technical services 1,485,593.99 $ 7,186.50 1,492,780.49 1.492,780.49 
Construction services 9,474,260.64 9,474,260.64 9,474,260.64 
Equipment 558,460.82 558.460.82 558,460.82 
Other purchased services 48,203.54 48,203.54 48,203.54 
Supplies 41,476.13 41.476.13 41,476.13 
Other objects 1, 158.81 1.158.81 1,158.81 

Total expenditures $ 11.649,530.23 $ 7.186.50 $ 11,656,716.73 $ 11 ,656,716.73 

Excess (deficiency) or revenues 
over/(under) expenditures $ 423,779.77 $ (7,186.50) $ 416,593.27 $ 416,593.27 

Additional project information: 
DOE Project Number 1640·040-17-1000 
SDA Project Number 1640-040·17-G3LS 
Grant Number G5·6402 
Grant Date 1/11/2017 
Bond Authorization Date 6/19/2017 
Bonds Authorized $ 1,480,270.00 
Bonds Issued $ 1,480,270.00 
Original Authorized Cost $ 13,416,520.00 
Additional Authorized Cost (Cancelled) $ (1 ,343,210.00) 
Revised Authorized Cost $ 12,073,310.00 

Percentage Increase over Original 
Authorized Cost 

Percentage completion 96.54% 
Original target completion date 12/31/2020 
Revised target completion date 

Allocation: Prior Pi::ci!2Qii Current Year Total 
Grants $ 10,614.459.06 $ 6,395.21 $ 10,620,854.27 
Local 110351071.17 791.29 1,035,862.46 

$ 11 ,649,530.23 $ 7,186.50 $ 11,656, 716. 73 

Expenditures allocation: 
Grants 88.9892 % 
Local ~ 

jQQ,QQQQ 
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Exhibit 1-1 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
NONCURREN1T DEBT 

SCHEDULE OF SERIAL BON OS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Original 
Date of Amount 
Original of Annual Matu rities Interest Balance Balance 

Issue Issue Issue Date Amount Rate .Ju l~ 1, 2020 lssued Retired June 30, 2021 

201 1 Refunding Bonds 7fl/2.011 $ 2,485,000.00 8115/2021 280,000.00 5.00% $ 570,000.00 $ 290,000.00 $ 280,000.00 

2017 School Bonds 811312017 15,605, 000.00 811512021 510,000.00 2.50% 
8/1512022 810,000.00 2.50% 
8/15/2023 825,000.00 2.50% 
8/1512024 855,000.00 2..50% 
8/1512025 875,000.00 3.00% 

....... 
8/1512026 900,000.00 3.00% 
8/15/2027 900,000.00 3.00% 
B/151202.8 900,000.00 3.00% 
8115/2029 900,000.00 3.00% 
B./15/2030 900,000.00 3.00% 
8115/2031 900,000.00 3.00% 
8115/2032 900,000 .. 00 3.00% 
8/1512033 900,000.00 3.00% 
811512034 900,000.00 3.00"k 
8/1512035 900,000.00 3.00"/o 
8/1512036 900,000.00 "3.00% 
8/15/2037 900,000.00 3.00% 15, 155,000.00 480,000.00 14,675,000.00 

s 15,725,000.00 $ 770,000.00 $ 14,955,000.00 

Total 



Exhibit 1-2 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

DEBT SERvtCE FUND 
BUDGET.ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202.1 

Original Final Varian ce 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actuat 

REVENUES: 
Local Sources: 

Local Tax levy $ 636,331.00 $ 636,331.00 $ 636,331.00 

State Sources: 
Debt SeNioe Aid $ 518,066.00 $ 518,066.00 $ 518,066.00 

Total Revenues $ 1, 154,397.00 $ 1, 154,397.00 s t,154,397.00 

_.. EXPENDITURES: 
_.. 

ReguJar Debt Service: co 
Interest $ 451 ,050.00 $ 451,050.00 $ 451,050.00 $ 
Redemption of Principal no.000.00 no,000.00 770,000.00 

Total Regular Debt SeNice s 1,221,050.00 $ 1,221,050.00 $ 1,221,050.00 $ 

Total Expenditures $ 1,221 ,050.00 s 1,221,050.00 $ 1 ,221 '050.00 $ 

Excess/(DefJCiency) of Revenues Over/(Unde<) Expenditures (66,653.00) (66,653.00) $ (66,653.00) 

Olher Financing Sources: 
Operating Transfer In: 

Capital Projects Fund $ 965.41 s 965.41 

Excessf(Oeficiency) of Revenues and Olher Financing 
Sources Over/(Under) Expenditures (66,653.00) (66,653.00) s (65,687.59) $ 965.41 

Fund Ba.lance, July 1 $ 193,165.69 $ 193,1 65.69 193, 165.69 

Fund Balance, June 30 s 1.26,512.69 $ 126,512.69 $ 127,478.10 $ 965.41 



STATISTICAL TABLES (SECTION) 

(UNAUDITED) 



Contents 

FREEHOLD BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

INTRODUCTION TO STATISTICAL TABLES (SECTION) 
(UNAUDITED) 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the district's financial performance and well being have 
changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain Information to help the reader assess the 
district's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 
district's outstanding debt. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help 
the reader understand the environment within which the district's 
financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the 
reader understand how the information In the district's financial report 
relates to the services the district provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless othe!Wise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year. 
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Exhibit J -1 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
LAST TEN {10} FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Year Endin11 June 30, 
2012 2013 2:014 2015 2016 2017 2.018 2.019 2:020 2021 

Govemmen1a1 activi1ies 
lnvesled In capital assets s 3,321,268 $ 4, 132,4(18 s 4,782,647 $ 5,498,976 s 6,392,2.87 s 8,862.920 s 8,322,052 s 24,025,271 $ 25,298,663 s 26,598,982 
Reslricied 1,740,095 880,248 864,913 1,250,488 1,332.286 1,808.155 13, 115,479 7 ,777,904 5,405,478 4 ,39-4,098 
Unrestricted 795,716 1.187,662 (5.220,4~ {5,474.726l (6,011.289) Q:.429,966l (6.607,840~ (6,059,534) (4,141,929) 

T o1al governmental activities net assets s 5.061.363 s 5.808,372 $ 6.815.222 s 1,529.009 s 2.249.847 s 4 ,659,786 S 14,007.51>5 s 25.195.335 s 24.644 ,607 s 26.851,150 

Business-type activities 
lnves1ed in capi1al asse1s s 37,925 s 45,658 $ 54,700 s 56,563 s 68,413 s 91,n1 s 83,250 s 112,965 $ 97,155 s 82,360 
Unreslrieled 175.782 232,487 258674 284.237 362:,224 428,235 526.882 512,263 321,346 106, 164 

Tolal business-type activities net as-sets s 213,707 s 278,143 s 313,374 s 340.BOO s 428,637 s 518,006 s 610.132 s 625.228 :s 418,501 s 188 ,524 
I 

->. District...wde "3 
0 Invested in capital assets $ 3 ,359,193 s 4 ,178,064 s 4,817,347 s 5 ,555,539 s 6,458,700 s 8 ,954,691 s 8 ,405,302 s 24,138,236 $ 25,395,817 s 26,681,342 

Restricted 1,740,095 800.248 864,913 1,250,488 1,332.286 1,808,1 55 13,115,479 1.1n.9o4 5,405,478 4.394,098 
Unres1nct.ed 175,782 1,028.203 1.446.336 i4,938,218) !5. 112,502) (5,585,054) (6,903,084) (6.095.577) (5.738, 188) (4.035,765) 

To1al district ne1 posiljon s 5,275.070 s 6.086.515 s 7,128.596 s 1,869,609 s 2.678,484 s 5.1n.192 s 14.617,697 s 25.820.564 s 25.063, 107 s 27.0~.674 

Note: tn 2015 the effec1ive elate of GA.SB No. SB related to pension liabiliUes (TPAF &. PERS) an acfius1menl was made for 1he provision of lhe oot pension liability for PERS .. Amoun1s from years prior lo 2015 are not a.vaiabl.e. 

In 2016, the effective date or GASS No. 75 reJated to posi,.empiD)'ment benefits (heallh benefits) adjustment was made for 1he proYlsion of tne liability - amoun1s for years prior to 2017 are not available. 

In 2021 GASS No.84 rela1ed to fiduciary accounting was impleml!f'lted. 



E:dlibit J-2 
Shem 1 of3 

BOROUGff OF FREEHOl..U SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUtfTY OF r.tatJMOOTH 

CHA.NGE ltf NET POS!T!ON 
LAST TEtf [UI) RSCAL, YEARS 

IJNAUrnTED 
(acetr.J81 basis of a~g} 

Fiscal Year Endi~ .. me 30, 
.2012 20'13 2014 20'15 2016 2017 20,B 2019 2020 _____1!£1 

Expenses 
Govemmanear adivioos 

rnslnlcOOn 
Regular s 8_554,.;!;6 s 8,B4iD.Y.IB s 9,016,413 $ 10,228,333 s 11,489.638 $ 12,721 ,154 s 9,992,268 s 9,669,747 s 10.278.,640 s 11,083,663 
Special educalicn 2.345,285 2,660.173 3,G26.315 3,237.427 3,804.410 ~.431,357 B,663,747 9,C>18,13B 8.948, 180 10,51!6,374 
Diiler special edutalioo 1.(l32,1 12 1,066.1190 846.143 942,358 t,Cl55.4e5 3,857 160,309 1,856,713 1,917.,595 1,51!6,759 
Ol!ler instruction 138,463 129.790 i23,51:4 162,765 176.171 1,436,137 1,576,1'31 1B7.26B 190,040 142,931 

SLI",.pon SeNioes: 
Tuition 814,041 920. 169 92~247 1.033,<65 &JB,801 925,634 1, 123.214 978,195 796,341 1,01!6,565 
S1u<fen1 & instruction related services 3,392,310 3.527.885 3,375,872 1.047,754 4.509.672 5,342.679 5,724.636 5,431.~8 5,328,011 5,87\,542 
School A<!rninislralive service 857,476 1.023,1S6 973,066 3,200,923 355,257 1,379.2111 1.436.1!56 1,423.057 1,359,671 1,476.1142 
Get1eta1 admstrat>oo 1;605,784 1.622,290 1.630,102 3,023,700 Z.290,224 2,122.881 2,.266.900 2.40·3 ,517 2,170,217 2,316,,E84 
Cernral Services 

' Cen1ral Services 
....>, 

Plant ·c,ieraftOOS and rrainlenance 1,764,008 1,668,160 1;il77,194 2,114,376 2,220,1315 2,326.561 2.511.295 3.016,125 3,095,091 3.607.179 

"' __.. PupiJ lranspMalicn 537.-046 1e:s.1>n 656,820 779.883 1,006,637 1·,051,525 1,637,56'1 1.521,543 1,4315,719 1.745.983 
Oltier suppor1 services 170.078 

lrtleresl on 10119-lenn debt 189,BiS 160,571 134.624 105 749 61,290 438,363 526,463 449353 449.5!l5 

Tolal govemmenlal adMlie:s BXJ:<!nses 2 1.21 1 .. 1S9 22,<ID<l,Cl54 22.~10.277 26,004.64<1 28,322.180 31.822,297 35,551.265 35,2:!4,134 35,971.859 39,954,047 

Business-type actmlies: 
Food servlce 782 883 765.615 8<16.,112 919.4\B 985.~09 1,,0 , 6,1 29 1,012,41 1 1,075,748 1.200..00B 849,551 

T~ b<.Jsi~ype adivities expe<1se 762 .~ 765.6'15 ~.1 12 919.41.8 965.409 1,016 .129 1,012,411 1.0 75.748 1200,006 849,551 

T<>lal cislrlct e•penses S 2 U l94,062 s 23.169.€09 s 23.256;3!!8 s 26.924,052 s lS.307.58.9 s 32.838.42'5 s :J0.563.699 s 37.309.882 s 37.171,E/57 s 40,600,596 



E>hibilJ.-2 
~~2of~ 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL. DISTRICT 
COONlY OF r.IDNP«JUTH 
CHl\NGE IH ~ET P05n1QN 

LAST TEN {101 FISCAL YEARS 
UNAUDITED 

(accrual basis dar:corm.~g> 

Fssca! Year End¥lg June 30, 
2oi 2 2013 20i4 2015 2016 2017 2016 2019 2(}20 ~1 

Program Revenues. 
GD>lemmerual adivities: 

Charges for services: 
lns1rtciioo tluilioo) s $ s - s $ s s s s - s 
PL.Ulil 1ranspooalioo 
C..nlral and olher su~pan services 
Special schools 

Operaling gr'lds ar<I ocnlribUlioo.s 2.726 .• 840· 2,373,943 2.4i!l8,.157 2.520.DSa 3,038.795 3,173,672 3,609,an 3.~.132 3,280,009 .;,2.€3,214 
Cap~al grams "'1d cor,\rllru1ions 

Total govemme'1lal acUvilles program revenues 2..726,84() 2.373943 2,436,157 2,520.093 3.038,795 3 , 173,67'~ 3,609.87'2 3.~ .. 132 3.~80,009 __ 4,263.214 

Business;-l)>J!"' ac:li\>tties: 
Charges fi¥ sertioes 

-"" FoodseMc:e s 155,093 s 142,253 s 145,066 s 143,804 s 163,247 s 164.614 s 16'3,,435 s 178.406 s 1\3,170 s 6.634 
I'\) Operaling grants a'1d con1ril:oltions 661,347 687,798 736.257 603040 906 925 940.885 941.103 912..436 879 961 612..940 
I'\) 

Total busilless lype>ldivilies program re.enoos 816.440 630,051 BS1,34,3 946.844 1.on1n 1.105.499 \ ,\04,537 t.09Q844 993.131 619-574 

Total dlslrict program revenues s 3.54J..2fl0 $ 3-200,995 s 3,319.500 s 3,465,!<42 s ~.110,967 s 4279.17 1 s 4.714,400 s 4.555.975 s 4,213.9>© s 4.l!S2,7l!S 

Net [Expense)IRewn11e 
G<wemmen1al acti'lilies s (18.484,35'9) s (20,030, 11 1} s ( t 9,972. 1201 s (23,484,5'16) $ (25,2B3.3B5} s (28,648;625) SPl.941,416) s {32.769,002) s ['...2,69\.050) S (35.690,B'.!3) 
Business-tyi:e aclWtties 33,557 64,437 35.2:31 27.426 &s.763 89.370 92.1 2.'G 15,0$ f20S.3771 (229.977) 

Tc'..al district-wide· net expense s (1ll.4SO.B021 s 119.$6.5.67 4! s (19. 900.8<11l~ S~23.457.12D! s (25, 190,622) s C2B.559,255l Sj31,849.29D} s ~32,753 . 9061 s (32,897.927) s, C35.920 .610l 

Gen....,I Revenues a11d Olh..- Change In Nel. Po5'tion 
GD>lemmllfltaJ a.cfr.> ilies: 

Proper!'/ 1alces levie<Hor ge""'ral P""PDSl!S. nd $· B,~961' s 8.434.346 s a.911.m s 9,72S,469 s 10.S66, 13a s 11,05'1,967 s 11,235.266 s 10,235.266 s 10.119,336 s 10,136,841 
Tares levied lilr debt service 636,987 661,926 556,871 545,360 556,881 524,926 353,320 590.351 655,836 636,331 
Unresllic:1ed grarllS aoo C"'1b:ibUlians \0,566. 1·38 11,502,743 11,311,9 S6 13,749,934 14.848,687 17,171.566 19,405.432 21. 110.444 21-li87,495 2S,031D.019 
Reslricted grants 2,015,788 
Tuition Rooeffl!d 
Dlest.,,.,nl earnings 991 
Miscellaneous i0CC<11e 159)91 157,116 95,383 147,490 124,974 29 9,771 190,932 265.,476 160,790 138,982 
Transfers (211 ,0Sll) 13,437 100,008 15.903 6S5 
Speaal and Exlrao rdinasy Items (92.457) {10,133) 10 .. 104,251 11.755,229 ~~91,136) .589,596 

Tela! ljllllemmBlltal ad-rvities s 19.440795 S W.775:569 s 20.978,970 s 24, 184;256 s 26,004.224 s 31.056,56'.J s 41,289.201 s ~3 :956. 7eo s 32, 1 .W.321 s 37.533.7&9 



_.. 

"' (,) 

2012 2013 

Gen""al Reven~ ... a11d Other Cllange In Net Posillon (Con1inued~ 
Business-1ype adivities.: 

li:lveslmenl eami1>;1s 
Transfers s s 
Special ar.:I Ex1raol:dinaiy llems 

Tolal business4ype· activi1ies 

Total dislricl.-wid'e s 19.4'10.795 s 20. 775.569 

Chan~ In Net Posl'tion 
Govemmenlal ai:Wi1ies s 9.56,436 s 745.459 
Busines:s-l)>pe acfrvilies 33,551 64.437 

T01al dis1rict _s __ 9l!S,99l s 809.0":6 

BQROLJGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL OIST'RIC'T 
COUNTY OF MONMOOIH 

CliANGE. It.I NE:1i POSITION 
LAST TEN {10) FISCAL YEA.RS 

UNAUDITED 
(aCCIT)8/ oasis of ac:o:xm1Ni9> 

Fis::a1 Year Enagi June JO, 
2014 2!>15 2016 2017 

s s $ s 
1.074 

1 .07~ 

s 20,976.970 s 24.18.t,256 s 26,005,296 $ 31.058,553 

s 1,006,65-0 s 6W,710 s 720.,839 s 2.-«:e,938 
35,2l1 27.4L"\> 67.837 1!13'370 

s 1.042,061 s 727. 136 s e«l,676 s 2,499,30B 

2018 2019 --1!E_0 

s s s 

s 41,289.201 s 43,956,700 s 32. 140.321 

s 9.347.785 s t 1, 167.764 s (550,72.9) 
92.128 15.096 !2:C~.Bn) 

s 9,439.911 $ 11.202.l:SD s (757,&'6) 

licle'. In 2015 tt-.e effeclive date ol GASB No. 68 re!ated to p8!>50on liabiiil ies (TPAF &. PERS) an adj.Jslmen1 was macfe for the proris1oo of 1he net pension liai.v fC< PERS. Atnooots !rem veers prior lo 20'15 are not availabla 

In 20fB, It., ett"°live da!e ci GASB N·o. 75 relaleQ to post-e07¥Jloymenl benefits Cheallh benefils) aqustmeru was made 1011he provision of 1he liatW:r - amoun1s ror years prior 10 2017 are not available. 

In 2021 GASB Nc>.!14 reial!ed to fiduciary acc.ounmg was impleme<lted. 
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2021 

s 

s 37,533.769 

s 1.B42,9·36 
(229.971) 

s 1,612:.959 



_., 
I\.) 
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I 

2012 21)13 

General Fund 
Reserved 
Unreserved 
Reslricted s 1.797,396 $ 1,787.008 
As~ 121 ,933 34,988 
Unassigned ___ 17_,073 

Total general food $ 1,936,402 $ 1,622,fil!§_ 

All 01her~mrnenlal Funds 
Reserved 
Unreserved (deficit), reported l n: 

Special revenue lund s (2.6,456} s (14,598) 
Capital proj;eci.s ruoo 359.602 359,602 
Debt ~ef\lice n.1d 10,466 10,$07 

Total al olhef governmental funds s 343.632 =s 355.5 11 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

FUNO BALANCES ·GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN (101 FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 
(modiJfe<f acclVal ba~s of acrouming' 

2014 2()15 2016 

$ 1 .731,217 $ 2,361 .604 s 2.48'.Z,537 
97,351 138.473 175,669 

~.628,568 s 2,500.077 s 2.658,206 

$ (17,391) s (15,02[}) $ (16.1111} 
179,802 179,BD1 69,571 

119.923 348 360 

s 252.334 s 165, 130 s 7 1.750 

2017 20, 6 2019 

s 3.410,733 $ 2,588.884 s 2,173,,570 
23,535 902,785 1,684,316 

s 3,434,266 s 3,491 .670 s 3,857.686 

$ ( 1B.18 1) s (21,343) $ (21,343) 
39,235,747 21]67,764 7,612,1.67 

1.003 ___ 95_,920 174,440 

s 39.2 !6,569 $21.662.341 s 7,765,264 

Note:GASB 54 was lmpemented in lhe 2D1 1 fiscaJ year. which required the presen!a1ion of fund balan00$ 10 be reported in cfrfferenl ciassilicalions from those presented in prior year.> 

(See Notes l.o financial s1atements • Nol.e 2.G 1 S(a-<:}. Prior years have not 'been reS!al:ed abo\le and are nol required to be. 

In .2021 GASB No.64 reb!.ed l o fiduciary acocUClt1ng was implemented. 
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2.020 2021 

$ 1.006,640 $ 4,220,409 
Z.021,490 14,171 

s 3,-026,130 $ 4.234,SSO 

s (68.443} s (89,955} 
7,2:14,090 7,175,059 

193.166 1.27.476 

s 7.338,613 s 7.212. 582 



Exhibil. J-4 
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BOROUGH OF FREEl-IOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

CHAMGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAl. FUNDS 
LAST TEN (10} FlSCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 
(modified accrual basis o.f accounting} 

2012 201 3 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Revenues 
Tax le...y $ 6.,905,954 $ 9,102.274 $ 9,466,591 S 10,27D,849 s 11, 123,020 s 11 ,579,895 s 11,588,586 s 10,825.617 s 10.775, 172 s 10.n5,172 
Bonds Proceeds 15;605,00D 
Miscellaneous 176,722 157,116 153,285 208,051 156,037 348,172 225,052 265,4n 168,79() 182,949 
State sources 10,748,331 11,571,783 11,688,720 12,100,225 12,409,447 38,557,060 14,200,513 18,161,020 20.937,558 22.936,151 
Federal sources 2,547.718 2,290.535 2,003.523 2,129.142 3,017,166 3.310,413 3,443,579 3,425.108 2,173,364 3.265,359 

Total re"enue 22,378.725 23. 121,708 23,314,119 24,708.267 26,707,670 69.400,540 29,457,7'3(1 32,677,222 34,054,884 37.159,631 

Expen.dilures 
ll'ISlruction 

->. R.egufar Instruction 6,316,553 6,415,514 6,691,137 6,8£3,550 7,538,855 7,480,927 5.699,285 6, 123.649 6,414,620 6,494.526 
N Special educaoon inslruc1ion 1,652.998 1,827.625 2,124,971 2,060,345 2.397,49() 2.476,351 4,744,879 5,145,646 5.584,316 6,203,126 
01 Olher special lnslruciion 727,450 726,233 594,131 599,749 665,153 2,155 98,750 1,059,4&0 1,196,719 929.767 

Other instruction 97,606 89,178 86,727 103,586 11 1,021 802,548 863,200 106,857 118,599 83,751 
Support Services: 

Tuition 814.041 920,169 924,247 1,033,465 808,801 925,634 1,123,214 978,195 798,341 1,086,565 
Stude.nt & inst related services 2,505,789 2,568,857 2,501,284 2,810,741 2,954,040 3,157,622 3.275,749 3,392,976 3,325,067 3,440,452 
General administration 522.781 469,794 477,322 522,965 1,443,270 770,738 786,92.9 1,37',472 1,354,373 1,357,470 
School administrative seNices 606,326 707,&02 685,221 740,856 538,972 1,186,318 1,246, 1Cl2 812,011 848,534 005,361 
Q!nlral seivioes 385,073 414,271 412,805 416,507 
Admin. intormation technology 226,816 237,624 256,626 244,004 
Planl operations and maintenance 1,243,360 1,150,508 1,177,666 1,345,619 1.399,101 1,3-0D, 13'9 1.375,362 1,721,033 1.,931,562 2,1 13,640 
Pupil transportation 378,519 527,658 461,196 496,329 £34,370 587,618 696.844 668,209 696,617 1,023,066 
Employee benefils 5,017,859 5,680,31}3 5,512,353 5,874,573 6,585,190 7,709,836 6,708,269 9,362,292 9,604,192 10,570,878 

Capital outlay 70,076 744,540 706,168 240,771 683,046 2,337.192 17,326,815 14.434,673 1,594,459 1,446,117 
Debi seivic:e: 

Principal 580,000 63C,OCIO 650,0CIO 65-0,00CI 690,000 675,000 305.000 300,000 745,000 770,000 
Interest and other chaf9es 179,236 179,200 149.169 121,231 93,612 65,581 48.331 711,408 474.375 451,050 

Total expendilures 21 ,324,485 23,289,076 23,411 .025 2~.124,29 1 26.542.921 29,477,659 46,498.729 46.4D.a,082 34,966.785 36,835,769 

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues 
over (under} expendilures 1.Cl54,240 (167,368) {96,906} 583;976 164.749 39.922,681 (17.040.999) {13, 730,860) {931.900) 323,862 



2012 2013 
Otller Financing sources (uses) 

Capital teases (non-budgeted) $ es.4n 
Cancellalion of Grant Receivable $ (807.698) 
Transfers out ~6! 

Total other financing soorces (uses) (!-07.BSB) 65,471 

Net change in fund balances s 246.342 $ {101 ,897) s 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapitatexpenditures 3.57% 3.59% 

• ..... 
N 
O> 

Source: District records 

• 
~te: Noncapital expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay. 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COLJN'l'Y OF MONMOUTH 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 
(modirled accroal basis of accoonting) 

2014 2015 2016 2017 

s ~100JXlO) 

{100,000) -
!96,906) s 563.976 s 64,749 s 39,922,881 

3.52% 3.23% 3.03% 2.73% 

2of8 2019 

s {257,830) 

(257,830} 

s ~17.298,829} s (13,730.860) $ 

1.21% 3.16% 

2020 

!931.900) 

3.66% 

Exhibit J-4 
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2021 
·---

s 323.862 

3.45% 
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Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

$ 

Interest on 
Investments 

3 $ 

45 
237 

3,187 
3,334 

26,157 

Source: Distr&ct records 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

GENERAL FUND - OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

E-Rate Miscellaneous Tuffion 

125,193 $ 20,957 $ 8,957 
25,939 68,734 9,709 
27,639 44,350 4,928 
65,541 59,654 8,148 
40,119 31,465 12,470 
40,055 223,835 25,655 
42,198 30,086 15,701 
33,649 29,124 -
28,409 402 9,445 

107,152 6,027 7,694 

$ 

Refund of 
Prior Year 

Expenditures 

4,681 
32,570 
14,666 
11,32.8 
39,229 

8,606 
6,841 

19,004 
1,819 

-

ExhibttJ-5 

Use of Building Annual Totals 

- $ 159,791 
$ 5,770 142,72.1 

3,771'. 95,354 
2,800 147,471 
1,680 124,963 
1,575 299,771 

940 96,.003 
2,205 87,169 
1,645 45,054 

- 147,030 
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fiscal 
Year 

BOROUGH Of FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROP:ERTY 
bAST TEN (1 Dl FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 

En tied Farm Total Assessed Pllll lic utililies 
JI.Cle 30, Vacant land Residemial ~ Of arm Commercial lndusllial Apallmenl Value . 

2012 10,244,400 767,610.400 - 241.264.600 25.345.900 22,388,400 I .ll66.853,700 
2:013 10,236,400 764,566.800 239 ,340,,300 25.345,.900 22,388,400 t .052,376.800 -
2:014 10,235.100 755.357..200 - 237.225.100 25.345,.900 22,388,400 1,050.551.700 
2015 10,120,100 741,225.SOO Z30 ,456,500 25.345,900 22,065,400 T .029.213.400 
2016 10,627,200 739 ,568..800 229,822.500 2:5 ,353,.000 22,454,100 t ,027,82.5.600 
2017 9,632,BOO 746,201,020 231,066.700 25,373,900 32,137,100 1,044.411.520 -
20111 9,600,100 754,455,000 233,736.,500 25.411 .800 32.216,500 1.055.469.900 
2019 10,783,000 771,996.400 234,733.,200 25.450.200 40,897,000 1,083,359.800 
202.0 8,.676,000 790,539,300 239,787.500 25,327,700 41,.548,500 1, 105..879.000 
202:1 9,459,200 817,015,000 - 24'3,600,000 .25,570.200 42,1.55.600 1, 1YJ' .893.000 

Soun:e: Municipal Tax Assessor 

ND4e: Real prcpeny i$ reqi.ired to be assessed al"""'" pert:entage of true value ttair or man~t va~Je) eszabfoslled by •ad! CCU11y board cl laXa'x 

Reassessmeat ocxur.s ...tien the CO<Jnly Board of Taxation reques1s Treasuy lo order a reassessment 

a Taxabfe Value of MadliDe>y, lnlCJlemems.ooa Equipmenl ofTdeph<lne, Tel~graph and MessengerSyslem ecrr.>arnes 

b Tax rales are per S100 of Assessed VallJaiion 

ExhibilJ-6 

Estimated Actual Total DireCI 

Tax-Exempt (Col.Ulfy SdloolTax 

Pr~e~ Nel Valualion E9uaU2ed) Value Rate• 

206,799,500 1,273,0SJ.200 1, 136,846,368 0.&42 
21)7 .086,800 1.269.463.600 1,029,563.181 0..862 
2:06,2.99.500 1.258.851.200 971,249.~ 0.934 
209.864,800 1,239.078.200 939,635,0lS 1.032 
205.667,600 1,23'l.493.200 989,718.062 Ul98 
253,.199,400 1,297.610,920 1 ,040,633.490 1.093 
253,652.800 1,309, 122,700 1,058, 122.769 1.057 
258,,960, 100 1,342.819.900 1,, 00,411,030 0 .990 
264.134.000 1,370,013.000 1.120,266,.531 0.967 
.267 .684,.900 1,405,582.900 1 ,'162,916,6&5 0 .941 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RA.TES 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 
(rate per $100 of assessed vafue) 

Borough of Freehold School District Direct Rate OvertaEEin~ Rates 

(From J-6) 
Total 

General Direct Freehold 
Obligation Debt Schoon ax Municipality Regional 

Basic Rate• Servtoeb Rate c of Freehold High School 

Total Direct and 
County of Overtapping Tax 
Monmouth Rate 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 

2.012 0.779 0.063 0.842 0.850 0.341 0.293 2.326 
2013 0.810 0.052 0.862 0.883 0.321 0.277 2 .. 343 
2014 0 .. 884 0.050 0.933 0.906 0.311 0269 2.419 
2015 0 .. 978 0.054 1.032 0.944 0295 0..263 2.534 
2016 1.043 0.055 1.098 0.976 0.320 0.261 2.655 
2017 1 .075 0 .032 1.093 1.007 0.343 0.269 2.712 
2018 1.004 0.053 1.057 1.026 0.342 0.276 2.701 
2019 0.940 0.050 0.990 1.026 0.364 0.270 2.650 
2020 0.910 0.057 0.967 1.054 0.374 0.267 2.662 
2021 0.854 0.058 0.941 1.056 0.364 0.262 2.623 

Source; Municipal Tax Collector 

Note: NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other components 
of the district.'s net budg:et may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth limitation calculated as 
follows: the prebudget year net budget irmreased by the cost of living or 2 .5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth 
adjustments. 

a The districrs basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net valuation taxable. 
b Rates for debt seivice are based on each year's requirements. 
c Tax rates are per $100 of assessed valuation. 

ExhibitJ-7 
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Neslle USA 
Freehold Racing Association 
Bridge-Brookside LLC 
East Coast Post & Coach 
Freefem Associates 
Tower SprillQ Terrace LLC 
Moomouth Apartments LlC 
18-20 E. Main SL LlC 
Bio Investment Group 
Par1l Avenue LlC 

Total 

Total Assessed Value 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Val'ue 

s 25,004.000 
22,040.600 
'18,062,000 
12.284,300 

9,578,700 
7,605,800 
5,203,200 
4,557,000 
4,327,100 
2.132,300 

$ 110.795.000 

s 1.137,898,000 

2021 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO 

UNAUDITED 

% ofTotal 
.District Net 

Rank Assessed 
IO!:!lional] Value 

1 2.20% Freellokl Racing Assoclalioo 
.2 1.94% Nestle 
3 1.59% AEW Brookside 
4 1.08% East Coast Post & Coach 
5 0.84% Par1c Plaza Shopping Center 
6 0.67% Freerem Associates 
7 0.46% E. Main Street LLC 
8 0.40% Delli Santi, Nicholas 
9 0.38% Bell Atlantic 
10 0.19% Chit.ls Property 

9.74% 

Exhibit J-8 

2012 

%ofTotal 
Taxable District Net 

Asses'Sed Rank. Assessed 
Value IOl:!tionag Valt.Je 

$ 29.225,300 1 2.74% 
23,674,400 2 2.22% 
14,269,000 3 1.34% 
6 ,495,700 4 0 .61% 
5,560,900 5 0 .52% 
4,565,000 6 0.43% 
3,191,000 7 0.30% 
J,000,000 8 0.28% 
3,000,000 9 0.28% 
2,650,000 10 0.25% 

s 95,631,300 8.96% 

s 1,066,653,700 
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Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied for 
June 30, the Fiscal Year 

2012 25,088,345 
2013 25,187,171 
2014 2.5,699,245 
2015 26,373,750 
2016 27,564,905 
2017 28,319,712 
2018 29,030,066 
2019 28,789,706 
2020 29,744,824 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

PROPER.TY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 

Collected within the Fiscal Year of 

the Fiscal Tax Levy" 
Percentage 

Amount of Levy 

24,363,083 97.11% 
24,415,921 96.94% 
25,076,603 97.58% 
25,797,936 97.81% 
26,750,029 97.04% 
27,974,412 96.80% 
28,204,529 97.97% 
28,500,571 98.17% 
29,044,902 97 .65% 

Exhibit J-9 

Collections in 
Subsequent 

Years 

529,942 
529,992 
624,398 
588,736 
494,461 
71 1,1 18 
615,965 
545,753 
567,867 

2021 29,837,689 NIA 96 .80% (anUcipated) 643,000 (anticipated) 

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form) 

a School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is 
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount voted upon or certified 
prior to the end of the school year. 
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Fiscal 
Year General 

Ended Obrigation 
June 30, Bonds b 

2012 4,765,000 
2013 4,135,000 
2014 3,485,000 
2015 2,835,000 
2016 2,145,000 
2017 1,470,000 
2018 16,770,000 
2019 16,470,000 
2020 15,725,000 
2021 14,955,000 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 

Business-Type 
Governmental Activities Activities 

Bond 
Certificates Anticipation 

of Capital Notes 
Participation Leases (BANs) Capital Leases 

- 59,299 - -
- 93,007 - -
- 61,406 - -
- 40,189 - -
- 22,773 - -
- 8,577 - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

Percentage of 
Personal 

Total District Income a 

4,.824,299 1.88% 
4,228,007 1.71% 
3,546,406 1.48% 
2,875,189 1.26% 
2,167,773 1.02% 
1,478,577 0.77% 

16,770,000 0.53% 
16,470,000 5.97% 
15,72.5,000 5.86% 
14,955,000 5.59% 

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

a See Exhibit NJ J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and 
population for the prior calendar year. 
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Per Capita a 

400 
351 
294 
239 
180 
123 

1,391 
1,367 
1,305 
1,1 93 
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Fiscal Year 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 
LAST TEN (10} FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Percentage of 

General Net General Actual Taxable 

Obligation Bonded Debt Value .. of 
Ended June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

Notes: 

4,765,000 - 4,765,000 0.37% 
4,135,000 - 4,135,000 0.32% 
3,485,000 - 3,485,000 0.27% 
2,835,000 - 2,835,000 0.23% 
2,145,000 - 2,145,000 0.22% 
1,470,000 - 1,470,000 0.14% 

16,770,000 - 16,770,000 1.59% 
16,470,000 - 16,470,000 1.52% 
15, 72.5 ' 000 - 15,725,000 1.42% 
14,955,000 - 14,955,000 1.06% 

Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data. 
b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14. 

Deductions are allowable for resources that are restricted to repaying the principal of debt outstanding. 
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Per Capita b 

395 
343 
289 
235 
178 
122 

1,391 
1,367 
1,305 
1,1 93 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

DIRECT .AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021 

Govemmental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes 

Olherdebt 

Borough of Freehold 
County of Monmoulh 

Freehold Regional High School District 
Regional Sewerage Authority 

Subtotal, overl.apping debt 

Borough of Freehold District Direct Debt: 
Issued and Outstanding 
Aulhorized but not Issued 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

UNAUDITED 

Debt Outstanding 

$ 15,684,638 
456.,517,569 

pending 
$ 3,190,000 

$ 14,955,000 
None 

Estimated 
Percentage 

Applicable a 

100.000% 
0.853836% 

None 
19.1744% 

Sources: Assessed value data used to estfma1e applicable percentages provided by the Monmouth County Board of Taxation. 
Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit. 

Note: overlapping governments are those that coincide, al least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.. 

Estimatoo Share 
of overlapping 

Debt 

$ 15,684,638 
3,897,g11 

611 ,663 

$ 20,194,213 

14,955,000 

$ 35,149,213 

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those over1apping governrnen1s that is borne by the residents and 
businesses of Freehold Borough. This process recognizes that., when considering the District's ability to issue and repay noncurrent debt, 
the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However th[s does not imply that 
every taxpayer is a. resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overtapping payment. 

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percen1age ofoverlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. 
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portton of another governmental unif s taxable value that is within the 
district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's totaJ taxable vaJue. 

Exhibit J-12 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNJY OF MON.MOUTH 

l EGAl DEBT MA:RGIH INFORUATtON 
LAST TEN 11 Ol f lSCAl YEARS 

UNAUDITED 

leg al Debt Margin Calcu'latlcn r°" Fiscal Year 2021 

Equalized valua00n basis 
2021 $ 
20.20 

AYerage equalized valWtion of taxable property 

Deb4 limil l3 % of average equalizalion value) 
T olal Net Debi Applicable to Lirnit 

2019 

s 

s 

Exhibil J-13 

1,22.6,447,51(} 
1, 153,639,683 
1, 11 0.626, 7CM 

3.490.713,897 

1, 163.571,299 

34,907,139 a 
14.955.000 

legal debt margin s 19.952.1 39 

Oebtlimit 

Total net debt applicable to limil 

Legal deb4 margin 

TOlal nel debl alJPlicable to 1he limit 
as a per~ of debt limlt 

2012 2013 2014 

$ 35,162,509 s 33,494.756 s 27,805,16(} 

4,765.000 4 ,135.000 3.485,000 

s 30.397 .509 s 29.359.756 s 24.32il.160 

13.55% 12.35% 12.53% 

~ 

s 29,5 15,627 

2.835,000 

s 26,680.627 

9 .61% 

Se>urc.e: Equalized vaJuatjon bases were ob1ained from Ille Annual Repor1 of the Stare of New Jersey, 
Oepar1mefll al Treasury, Division of T axa1ion 

.Fiscal Year 

2016 2017 2018 2019 

s 29, 125,,398 s 29,702,514 $ 30,683,381 $ 31 ,738,615 

2,145.000 17.075.000 16 770 000 16.470,000 

$ 26.000.398 ' s 12,627,514 $ 13 ,913.381 s 15,.268.615 

7.36% 57.49% 54.65% 51.69% 

a limit se1byNJSA18A:24-19for a K 1hrough 12 diSlri~; o1her % !Snits would be applicable foro1her cflSlrict types. 

2020 2021 

s 32,5 18 ,871 $ 34,907,139 

15.725.000 14.955,000 

s 16.793,871 s \9,952. 139 

43.36% 42.84% 
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Year Population a 

2012 12,052 
2013 12,052 
2014 12,052 
2015 12,052 
2016 12,052 
2017 12,052 
2018 12,052 
2019 12,052 
202.0 12,052 
2021 12,538 

Source: 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 

Per Capita 
Personal 

Personal Income b lncomec 

281, 185,212 23,331 
281,185,212 23,331 
281,185,212 23,331 
281, 185,212 23,331 
281, 185,212 23,331 
281, 185,212 23,331 
281, 185,212 23,331 
281, 185,212 23,331 
281 , 185,212 23,331 
364,467, 1.22 29,069 

a Population information provided by the 2010 census for 2012 through 2020 and the 2020 census for 2021 . 

b Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita 
personal income presented. 

c Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 201 O census for 2012 through 2020 
and 2020 census for 2021 published by the New Jersey Department of Labor. 

d Unemployment data provided by the New Jersey Deptartment of Labor and Workforce 
Development - previous year benchmark. 
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Unemployment 
Rated 

12.10% 
12.60% 

5.80% 
6.70% 
5.00% 
4.10% 
3.80% 
3.30% 
2.80% 
7.80% 
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Employer 

County of Monmouth (Est) 

Freehold Borough Board of Education 

Nestle-Hills Coffee Company 

Freehold Regional High School (Est} 

Freehold Racing Association (Est) (*) 

Freehold Borough - Municipality 

e> 90 in season, 50 out of season 

Source: Borough of Freehold 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO 
UNAUDITED 

Employees 

350 

262 

223 
155 

140 

99 

1,229 

2021 

Percentage of 
Total 

Municipal 
Rank Employment 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

a 

a 

a 

a 

a 

a 

a 

a No authoritative source exists for Total Municipal Employment in the Borough. 
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2012 

Percentage of 
Total 

Municipal 
Employees Rank Employment 

300 1 a 

218 2 
a 

200 3 
a 

150 4 a 

125 5 
a 

99 6 a 
--

1,092 a 



OPERATING INFORMATION 



FunctionfProgram 

Instruction 
Regular 
Special education 
Other inslruction 

Support Services: 
StlJdent & instruction related services 
General administration 

->. 
School administrative seNioes 

w Central services 
CXI Plant operalions and maintenance 

Pupil IJansportation 

Total 

Source: District Personnel Records 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

FULL-TIME egu lVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCT[QN(PROGRAM 
LAST TEN 11 0) FISCAL YEARS 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

102.1 96.9 86.8 84.8 95.0 97.0 
30.6 27.5 54.5 57.0 63.0 57.0 
20.0 40.1 9.5 10.0 10.0 12.0 

22.0 22..8 26.0 27.0 28.0 31.0 
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 

16.3 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 12.0 
7.0 8.8 8.8 8.8 8.8 9.0 

12.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 12.0 
3.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

215.0 223.1 209.6 211.6 228.8 232.0 
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2()18 2019 2020 2021 

106.79 122.00 122.00 129.00 
62.25 64.00 64.00 40.00 

12.0 5.0 5.0 7.0 

31 .0 31 .0 31 .0 53.0 
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 

12.0 12.0 12.0 10.0 
9.0 9 .. 0 9.0 27.0 

13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

248.0 258.0 258.0 281.0 
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FlscaJ Operating Cost Per- Percentage 
Year Enrollment Ex(!!l'ldilul'l!S • Pueild Change 

2012 1,496 20,495,171 13,700 -10.12% 
2013 1,538 21 ,735,337 14,132 3.15% 
2014 1,573 21 ,905,887 13.926 1.65% 
2015 1,633 23.112,288 14,153 0.15% 
2016 1,677 25,076,263 14.953 7.37% 
2017 1,680 26,399,886 15.714 11.03% 
20'18 1,684 28,955,243 17,194 14.99% 
2019 1,666 30,962,001 18,5a5 8.85% 
2020 1,690 26,257,368 15,537 -17.73% 
2021 1,657 31,187,57.9 18,822 17.67% 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF :MONMOUTH 
OPERA TING STATISTICS 

LAST TEN !10) FISCAL YEARS 

P11(!!11Teachef" Ratio 

Teachlng 
Slaffb Elementa!l Middle School 

67.00 1:22 1:23 
76.00 1:22 1:23 
72.00 1:22 1:23 
75.00 1 :24 1:18 
84.00 1:23 1:18 
88.00 1:25 1:21 
93.74 1:2.1 1:19 
96.00 1:18 1:19 
96.00 1:18 1:19 

124.00 1:12 1:18 

Soon:es: Dislrict records 

Note: Enrollment based oo annual October dislrict counl 

a Operating expendilures equal 1.olal expenditures less debt service and capital outl!ay. 
b Teaching stair includes only fulf-Ume equivalents or certificated c:lasstoom teachin9 staff. 
c Average daily enrol fmenl ancl average daily attendance are ob1ained from lhe School Regisler Summary (SRS). 

Average 
Dally 

Enrollment 

jADE2 c 

1475.2 
1515.3 
1567.9 
1633.4 
1692.0 
1704.0 
1678.0 
1683.0 
1663.0 
1633.0 

d Cost per Pupil calailal.ed us"9 Total Enrolment + Operaling Expenditures. This is not intended lo represent 1he s1a1.LllOly calculation of cost per pupil. 

Exhjbl1J·17 

Average DaUy % Change In student 
Attendance Average Dally Attendance. 
{AD~c Enrollment Pe.-centage 

1,411 4.88% 95.65% 
1,443 2.72% 95.2 3% 
1,511 6.28% 96.37% 
1,586 7.79% 97.09"/o 
1,630 3.59% 96.33% 
1,631 0.71% 96.33% 
1,611 -1 .53% 96.01% 
1,611 0.30% 95.72% 
1,614 -1 .19% 97.05% 
1,657 -1.80% 101.47% 
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District Buildi nq 
Elementary Scflool 

FreehofC Leaming Center (1972, 1996 and 2001) 
Square Footage 
Functiomll Capacity 
Enrollment 

Elernentarvllnlennediale Scflool 
Park Avenue Complex 
(1957. 1962., 1969, 1996, 2001 and 2006) 
Square Foolage 
Functional Capacity 
'Enrollment 

Other 
Central Administration 

Square Feet 

Number of Schools. at June 30, 2.021 
Elementary = 1 
Elementarynntermediate = 1 

Source: Dislrict Facifities Office 

W12 

49,239 
460 
525 

97,810 
660 
953 

1,164 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION 
LAST TEN f10) FISCAL YEARS 

2013 

49,239 
460 
552 

97,810 
660 
949 

1,164 

2.014 

49,239 
394• 
552 

97,810 
754• 

949 

1,164 

2015 

49,239 
394 
596 

97,810 
754 
1046 

1,164 

2016 

49,329 
394 
593 

97,810 
754 

1,084 

1,164 

Note: Year of original construcliOn is shown ill parentheses. Increases in square footage and capacity are the result of 
and addi1ions. Enrollrnenl is based on lhe annual October dislrict coonL 

2017 

49,329 
394 
593 

97,810 
754 

1,084 

1,164 

2018 

68,819 
551 
638 

121,124 
934 

1,043 

1,164 

2019 

69.179 
553 
605 

1:2.1 ,124 
934 

1,043 

1,164 

• During 2014 as part of a referendum initiative lhe Board's Architect and the DOE independent!)' reviev1ed and ceitified functional capacity for each building. 

2020 

69,179 
553 
617 

121,124 
934 

1,055 

1,164 
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2021 

69,179 
553 
607 

121, 124 
934 

1,025 

1,164 
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BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED 
MAlNTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES 

11-000-261-xxx 

* School Facilities 
Project# (s) 

2012 NIA 
2013 NIA 
2014 NIA 
2015 NIA 
2016 NIA 
2017 NIA 
2018 NIA 
2019 NIA 
2020 NIA 
2021 NIA 

Total School Facilities 

*School facilities as defined under EFCFA. 
{N.JA.C. 6A:26-1 .2 and N.J.AC. 6A:26A-1 .3) 

Source: District records 

Freehold Park Avenue 
learning Center Complex 

56,584 113,850 
46.493 92,293 
29,440 84,574 
71,374 144,937 

158,306 318,274 
102,1 24 252,316 
105,251 282,851 
109,309 219,935 
226,717 456,166 
167,785 337,591 

$ 1,073,383 $ 2,302,787 
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Total 

170,434 
138,786 
114,014 
216,311 
476,580 
354,440 
388,102 
329,244 
682,883 
505,376 

$ 3,376,170 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL, DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

JUNE 30. 2021 
UNAUDITED 

Type of Polle\! Coverage 

School Package Policy- SAIF: 

Property - Blanket Building and Contents $ 41,667,208.00 
Boller & Machinery - Limited for Accident $ 41 ,667,208.00 
Employee Benefits Coverage 5,000,000.00 

General Liability Coverage: 
Limit of Liability - Aggregate 10,000,000.00 
Products - Completed Operations 10,000,000.00 
Personal and Advertising Llabflfty 10,000,000.00 
Fire Damage 2,500,000.00 
Premises Medical Payments 10,000.00 

Inland Marine 
Misc. Articles Floater: 
Valuable Papers and Records 100,000.00 
Electronic Data Processing 1,500,000.00 
KitchenfGym Equip .. New Library DesksfChairs 1,500,000.00 
Mobile Equipment - Haulmark Trailer 4,300.00 

Automobile Coverage: 
Liabil ity 10,000,000.00 
Physical Damage 
Medical Payments 10,000.00 
UninsuredfUnderinsured Motorist 15130/5 

Commercial Crime: 
Employee Dishonesty Blanket 500,000.00 
Money and Securities 50,000.00 

Environmental Impairment Liability: 
Limit of Liability - Per Occurance 1,000,000.00 
Group Aggregate 25,000,000.00 

Commercial Umbrella Polley 10,000,000.00 
Educators Legal Liability Policy 20,000,000.00 

Excess Liability (Fireman's Fund) 25,000,000.00 
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Deductible 

$ 2,500.00 
$ 2,500.00 

1,000.00 

2,500.00 
2,500.00 
2,500.00 
2,500.00 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 

50,000.00 

5,000.00 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

JUNE 30, 2021 
UNAUDITED 

(CONTINUED) 

Type of Policy 

Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance Polley -
SAIF: 

Section "A" 
Section "B" 

Each accident 
Each employee 
Aggregate 

Site Pollution Policy - lronshore Specialty Insurance Company 
Limit of Liability - Each Incident 
Aggregate Limit 
Business Interruption Aggregate 

Excess Environmental Polley - Lloyd's Syndicate 2623/623(Beazley) 
Limit of Liability ~ Each Incident 
Microbial Matter 

Volunteer Accident Policy - Zurich American/Bollinger 

Student Accident for All Students Including Interscholastic 
Athletics Except Football 

Public Official Bonds - Selective Insurance Company of America: 
Bruce Rodman - Treasurer 

Joseph Howe - School Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
Patricia Saxton - Assistant Business Administrator 

Source: District records. 
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Coverage 

Statutory 

$ 5,000,000.00 
$ 5,000,000.00 
$ 5,000,000.00 

$ 1,000,000.00 
$ 1,000,000.00 
$ 1,000,000.00 

$ 500,000.00 

$ 50,000.00 

$ 1,000,000.00 

$ 210,000.00 
$ 200,000.00 
$ 25,000.00 
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Deductible 

$ 25,000.00 

/ 365 5 Days 

$ 25,000.00 
$ 100,000.00 
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Exhibit K-1 
Sheet 1of2 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

Borough of Freehold Board of Education 
County of Monmouth, New Jersey 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of 
School Finance Department, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of 
the governmental activities , the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Borough of Freehold Board of Education, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Borough of 
Freehold Board of Education's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 25, 2022. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Freehold Borough 
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Freehold 
Borough School Districfs internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

MEMBERS AM ERICAN INSTITUTE OF C ERTIFI ED PueLlc AccouNTANTS 

www.samuelkleln-cpa-rma.com 
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Exhibit K-1 
Sheet 2 of 2 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING .AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDITOF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WiTH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 

Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies In internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board of Education of the Borough of 
Freehold School District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of basic financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of 
Education, State of New Jersey. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an Integral part of an audit performed il'l accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass­
through entitles in considering the entity's Internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 

communication Is not suitable for any other pur~ ~j"--' 

Freehold, New Jersey 
February 25, 2022 

Gerard Stankiewicz 
Certified Public Accountant 
Licensed Public School Accountant #912 

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY 
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Exhibit K-2 
Sheet 1 of 3 -- -

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NJOMB 15-08 

The Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

Borough of Freehold Board of Education 
County of Monmouth, New Jersey 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program 

We have audited the Borough of Freehold Board of Education's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and New Jersey State Aid/Grant 
Compliance supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of District's major federal 
and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2021 . The Borough of Freehold School District's major 
federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its federal and state programs. 

Auditor's _ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opin ion on compliance for each of the Borough of Freehold Board of 
Education's major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); the New Jersey State 
Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement; the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey; and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy 
for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and 
NJOMB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether on compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence about Borough of Freehold Board of Education's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

ME;MEIE:RS AM E: RICAN INST ITUTll: or Cl!:FITll"ll!:O Pueuc AccouNTANTs 

www.1>amuell<lein-cpa-rma.com 
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Exhibit K-2 
Sheet 2 of 3 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NJOMB 15-08 
(CONTINUED) 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Borough of 
Freehold Board of Education's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 

In our opinion, the Borough of Freehold Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of Its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2021 . 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Borough of Freehold Board of Education is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective Internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Borough of Freehold 
Board of Education's Internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the auditing procedures 
that are appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for 
each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Freehold Board of 
Education's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal and state program on a timely basis. A material weakness In Internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material non compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
and state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program that is less 
severe than a material weakness In internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Exhibit K-2 
Sheet 3 of 3 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NJOMB 15-08 
(CONTINUED) 

Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any 
other purposes. 

Freehold, New Jersey 
February 25, 2022 

faQ-~ 
Gerard Stankiewicz 
Certified Public Accountant 
Licensed Public School Accountant #912 

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY 
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Exhibit K-3
Schedule A

Sheet 1 of 2

See accompanying Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance.

BOARD OF EDUCATION
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

 
Deferred  

Federal Grantor / Federal Federal Revenue/
Pass - Through Grantor / CFDA FAIN Grant Period Award (Accounts Due to Cash Budgetary Deferred (Accounts Due to
         Program Title         Number Number From To Amount Receivable) Grantor Received (Expenditures) Adjustment Revenue Receivable) Grantor

 

General Fund:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 2105NJ5MAP 7/1/2019 - 6/30/2020 $ 160,369.77 $ 160,369.77 $ (160,369.77)
FFCRA/SEMI 93.778 2105NJ5MAP 7/1/2020 - 6/30/2021 14,170.62 14,170.62 14,170.62

$ 174,540.39 $ (160,369.77) 14,170.62

Enterprise Fund:

   U.S. Department of Agriculture

    Passed - Through NJS Department of Education:

Food Distribution Program 10.565 201NJ304N1099 7/1/2019 - 6/30/2020 $ 46,690.00 $ 7,696.76 $ (7,696.76)

Food Distribution Program 10.565 211NJ304N1099 7/1/2020 - 6/30/2021 48,480.75 $ 48,480.75 (41,628.47) $ 6,852.28

School Breakfast Program 10.553 201NJ304N1099 7/1/2019 - 6/30/2020 137,426.54 (11,709.14) 11,709.14

School Breakfast Program 10.553 211NJ304N1099 7/1/2020 - 6/30/2021 181,201.10 162,759.44 (181,201.10) $ (18,441.66)

National School Lunch Program 10.555 201NJ304N1099 7/1/2019 - 6/30/2020 407,023.79 (26,291.08) 26,291.08

National School Lunch Program 10.555 211NJ304N1099 7/1/2020 - 6/30/2021 325,042.47 293,636.97 (325,042.47) (31,405.50)

Healthy Hunger Free Kids Program 10.555 201NJ304N1099 7/1/2019 - 6/30/2020 12,372.75 (621.11) 621.11

After School Snack Program 10.555 201NJ304N1099 7/1/2019 - 6/30/2020 18,014.16 (1,130.82) 1,130.82

After School Snack Program 10.555 211NJ304N1099 7/1/2020 - 6/30/2021 1,366.08 1,299.84 (1,366.08) (66.24)

Summer Food Service Program 10.559 201NJ304N1099 7/1/2019  - 8/30/2020 250,969.01 (50,377.38) 50,377.38

Summer Food Service Program 10.559 211NJ304N1099 7/1/2020  - 8/30/2021 53,786.60 53,786.60 (53,786.60)

P-EBT Administrative Cost 10.649 202121S900941 7/1/2020  - 6/30/2021 3,063.00 (3,063.00) (3,063.00)

      Total Enterprise Fund  $ (82,432.77) $ 650,093.13 $ (613,784.48) $ 6,852.28 $ (52,976.40)

 

Balance, June 30, 2021

Balance, June 30, 2020



ElctlibilK-.3 
Sched.Jle A 

Sheel2 qf 2 

BOARD QF EDUCATION 
l!QRQ!&H QF FRE§lQLD l,!C!!QQ!. Q§TRICT 

COUNTY OF llOt:iMOOTt! 
SCHEDU!Ji QF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARD~ 

fO.!illtE_FISCAL YEAR BIPED JUNE J(J, 2021 

Balance. J!Wl 30. 2020 
Deferred 

Federal Granll:lr J Federal Federal Revenue/ Balance, June 30. 2021 
Pass - Thrwgh Grar- / CFDA FAIN GranlPenad Award (A.c:oounls Due lo Cash Budgetary Delefred (Accoi.1\$ Due 1o 

Proo:iramTHle t4tnlber Number fum !!l AmC111'11 fu!ceival!!!:!l ~ Ret.ei•ed jli•ll!l!ldllures} Adi1JS1rnenl .~ ~vable) Granier 

Special R""""1l.le Fund 

U.S. Oepactmenl af Educati:ln 

Passed - Thrcu!Jll NJS Department ol' Education: 
Tttle l 84.0 11lA SD1C>A200030 711/2019 - 6J30.l2020 s 959,243.00 s (193,347 .17) s 193,347.00 s 0.17 s {0.00) 

Trtle l 84.01DA S010A210030 71112020 - 6/30l2021 923,790.00 684,192.00 s (1,023,000.87) (338,6D!l87) 

Tille I Re3'oca!ed 84.01DA S010A200030 711/2019 • 6l30l2020 24,632.00 {7,026.70) 7 ,027.00 (O..:!O) 0.00 

T ilk! I Rea9oca!ed 84.0ICIA S010A210030 711/2!J20 - 9130/2021 45,539.00 21,71!5.00 (30,949.80) C9,164.~) 

Tille II, Part A 64..367A S367 A200029 7/1/2019 - 6130/2020 71,842.00 {2.046.34) 2.046.00 0.3'1 0.00 

Tttle II, Part A B4 .. S67A S367A210029 7nf'N20 • 9130/2021 75,483..00 66,588.00 (78,569-45) (11,961 45) 

Tttle Ill, Part A 84.J55A S365A200030 7 /1l2019 - 6130/2020 49,079.00 (29.BO) 30.00 (02 0) (000) 

...... Tolle Ill. PM A B4.365A S365A.2t0030 mrmo - 9/30l2021 54,755.00 29,784.00 (70,002.91) D.20 (40,218 71) 

Ol Tille IV 84.369 S369A210031 711/2020 • 9f.llll'2021 67,663.00 11,000.00 (11,864..38) {864.38) 
0 

l.D.E.A. Pan B &<I.OVA H027A200100 71112019 - 613Q/2020 450.403.00 (23..287.73} 23,288.00 (027) 0.00 

l.D.E.A. Pan B &<I.OVA HD27 A210100 711f'2C120 - 9"3012021 474,163.00 382,492.00 f436,634.61) (56.142.Bt ) 

l .D.E.A. Preschool 84.173 H173A210114 71112020 - 9130/2021 19,334.00 19,334.00 (19,333.92.) (O.M} 000 

2:1 st C<ml.vry CLC Program 84.287C S2!17C200000 7/11201·9 - 6".Al/2020 53$,000.00 (20.837.461 99,302.00 (78.464 95) 0 .42 0.00 

21st c-..y etc Program 84.267C S2l!7C210030 9tl/2020 - llP.0/2021 53S.OOO.OO 271,276..00 (295,095.77) (24,819.77) 

ESSER II 84.425() S425D210027 3113/202(} - 913C12022 26.517.00 (26;516.63} (2!5.516.63} 

Pandemic Fund 84.425 $4250200027 71112020 .• 6'30!'2021 24.000.00 12,00000 (24,000.00} (12..000.00} 

CARES ESSER 1- Grarll 84.4251l $4250200027 311312020 - 9/JCl'2022 739.07-tOO 694,751.00 (779.345.39} (84,.S!M.39} 

U.S Deparunent of Educalion 
Passed Through S1a1e Deipar1meal ol' Ed.Jcation 

Non-Public Oiigital Owille 21 .019 7f16l2020 - 10/3112020 s.ns.oo 8.726 00 (7,970.32} s 757.68 

Corona Virus Relief Fund 21.019 54250210027 3113/2020 - 9J30/2022 206,006.00 --- 206Jl66.00 (206.060 00) 

Total Special ReverM! Fund s (246.575.20) s 2,733.006.00 s --- (3.090.815.41) s 0.28 757.68 $ (605.112.01) 

Tctal Federal f'103ncial Assi stance s (329.007.97) s - 3.557.669.52 $ (3.864,969.66) s 028 s 21.780.56 $ (658,088.41) 

Note 1 amounts rounded up $1 IC> complete audsum 

See accompar(l'lr:g Na!es ID Schedi.Jles af Expendilures ct Federal Awards and Slale Financial .Assistance. 
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----
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Cash 
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1,.tla,457..00 $ 

13 ,335,216.00 

m .121..00 
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887,747 .. 00 
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~004.00 

Budgetary 
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( 1,436.4S7.CO) 
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80IRQ!.!GH <II' f:!!EEHOt.D SCHOOL lllS~T 
COUN'JY OF MONMO!!IH 

SCH!O~LE OF EXPENOIT\JRES OF S!ATE ~~b ASSISTA.lllCE 
FOR THE 'FISCAi. YEAR ENDED .JU!'E 30 2021 

JunelO 2020 B•lana!, June JO, 2021 
De!ened ReP"'flT'.enl Deferred lllEMO 
~nuel of Prior R.- Oumuin.e 

S&OIOGralllan' Gnni or S?a!e· Gnnl Period Aw.in! (Accounts Due1o Cash Bu:lgelaiy Yeats. (Accoun' .. 0....ll> Budgetary 10111 
ProgramTrre f!Siec1 Numbs fl!l!!J I!! ~ Recewablel Gnni or Roceived {S!(!end!f:!!S:} Qalance Receffiltle) G"""°' Reoei\lable ExpendilulH 

~ Dt;partme111 c:d' Eclo.>:alion (Con1h>od): 

special R~- Fund 

N.I. Nonpublic Aid: 

led>oo'• Ald 21)-l ll«MJ34.S1.20-064 1/l/2019 • 6o'JM020 $ 11,955.00 12.44 $ s (12.44) s $ 

TedlookAld 21· 100-IJ3L.Sl2D-064 7/ll2020 • li/3Co'20'21 12,il'UJO 12.,2'19.00 (12,262.98) (16.02) (12,16?.95) 

Nursing Se~ 21)- IOQ.034.Sl21M170 7/ll2C>l9 • 6"..MO:!O 22,019.0D 734. 12 (T.14. 12) 

Nursing Service:s 2 1- llJO-OU.5120-070 7/ll2021> • 61"..Co'2021 2ll,502.0D 20,,502.00 (19,BQ0.82) (101.18) (19,800.112) 

TecMo."W 20-100-IJlL.S 12 D-373 711121119 • 6.'30/202ll 8,172.0D l l>l..50 (1!;3.50) 

5eadf 21)-1~S121).5G9 7/1121)19 • 6t.ln'2020 34,050.00 7_3.«.4$ (T.344.45) 

Seurilf 21-100.C~Sl2().S09 7/t/2021> - 6.'Jl:l':l.021 35.115.00 :!5;17$.00 t29,555,QD) (5,62'11.0D) (29,555.0DJ 

Awlrary Serm:u: 

Con:.,en"""'rr Eduealm 26-100.ClC-$120.0."7 7/1121119 - 6r.llJl2020 2 0,280.00 (2.02~.0D} 10.675..39 z.=.oo (1()J;75.J9) 

..... C""1?9n~Ec\2:8U... :21>-100<034-51~7 7/11211:10 - 600.'2021 9,580.00 9.SSJ..00 {7,942.69) (1,637.31} (7;!lt2.6 9) 
CJl 
N English as a Seoond Lall!JJ090 20..100.C34"612G-067 7/t/2019 - &Jl!l202ID 16,1148,00 (1,734.0D} 1.734.00 

English as" $eaind l..arlglzago 21-10().1134-512~ 711/2Dl0 - &lll'2021 16,Sl9.00 16.519.00 (16,519.00) (18,519.00} 

Hrdcapped Services' 

SupPernenl:ll lnslrudion 21). 10().034-S 121).066 711/2019 - 6.'3llJ2020 15,380,00 ( 1,590.00) 1.,5!0.00 

SUpPllT- lnsltuctoo 21-10().034-5120-065 7111202ll - 6/l0/2a21 16,999.00 16.999.00 ( 16,233.ll!I) (761L91) ( 16,233.0S) 

fnilillEval- 21).10().034.S 1;1).1166 711/2019 - 6l.liOl2ll2(I 11,697.00 (1.657.0D) 1.657.00 

irJlia'I evahurficno 21- 100.004-S 121).l>S& 111r= - 600.'2ll21 111, 195.QO 1~,195..oo (T ..200.02 ) (10.994:98) (7,200 .112} 

EJcarnlnalm ..-.d Classilc:alian 21).100-C>:l4.S1l0-D66 711/2019 - li.OOJ2D2IJ 5,958,011- (845.0DI &45..00 

Exarnln1U:lrl ll>d Classkalian 

,furnlnalian .net Classillcalian 21-10l)..oo.1..S1w.D65 711/W:ro - 61Jlll2021 6,7G3.QO 6,703.00 (&.700.00) t6,7-0l.OD) 

C.~1Spoe121 2().100-034-5120-066 711/2019 • 613012020 211.051.00 (2 ,005.00} 2.0CIS.OD 

C.rredi.11Speecll 21-100-004..S121)-066 711/WZO - 61JQl2Q21 19,139,QO 19.119.0D ( 17. 425-£0) ( 1,713.40) ( 17 ,425.60) 

SpedalR,,__ Fund 

N.J. tlonpub4icAid 

Other. 

Pn!odlocl e.;..:.sion Gnni 20-<9S.034-.5120-086 71112(119 • 613DJ20.2G 1.130,642.CO 
Proodlooi ~Ion Gnni 21-'l95-03+51:20-ceo 711/202(I • ·6131lf2D21 1.127 ,3M.CO 1,015,082.0D (1. 119,9'.l.u;}) (112,303.0D) {I, 119,924.23) 

Total .special Revenue Fund s (9,860.CO) S 18,929.90 s 1,180,1123.0D S (1~71.43} s (18.W~90!S. [21,443,llOl s {1.&91.cn()D) s (1.253,57'1,43) 

See Alla:mpan)ing· l'tole5 ID 5-'es of Financial AssMar1<1>, 
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1. GENERAL 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,· 2021 

Exhibit K-5 
Sheet 1of2 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance 
include federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, Borough of Freehold School 
District. The information in this Schedule Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2, 
US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and NJOMB 15-08. The Board of 
Education Is defined In Note 1 (A) to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state 
awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state 
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedules or 
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance. 

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are 
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded In the food 
service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting 
are described in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in this Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2, US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance) and NJOMB 15-08. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts presented in, or used In the preparation of the basic financial statements. 

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. 
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special 
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted 
by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is 
not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the 
exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment In the current budget year, which is 
mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized 
until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last two (2) state aid 
payments In the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying 
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures 
and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue 
fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 
1BA:22-4.2. 

-154 -



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CCONTINUl!D) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Exhibit K-5 
Sheet 2 of 2 

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMl!NTS (CONTINUED) 

4. 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is a decrease of 
$59,331 .20 tor the General Fund and a decrease of $111,545.32 in the Special Revenue Fund. See 
Note 1 (the Notes to Required Supplementary Information) for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis 
to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards and 
financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis 
as presented on the following : 

Federal State Total 

General Fund $ 174,540.39 $ 21 ,275,599.02 $ 21,450, 139.41 
Special Revenue Fund 3,090,818.21 1, 142,026.01 4,232,844.22 
Debt Service Fund 518,066.00 518,066.00 
Food Service Fund 612,940.00 612,940.00 

$ 3,878,298.60 $ 22,935,691 .03 $ 26,813,989.63 

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related 
federal and state financial reports. 

5. FEDERAL AND STATE LOANS OUTSTANDING 

The District had no loans outstanding payable to federal or state entities at June 30, 2021. 

6. OTHER 

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year 
value received and current year distributions respectively. 

The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contribution and Post Retirement Medical Contributions 
represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021 . TPAF Soclal Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the 
employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 
2021 . 

The State of New Jersey also makes TPAF post-retirement medical and pension contribution 
expenditures on-behalf of the District. These expenditures are not subject to New Jersey OMS 
Circular 15-08 because the contributions are made by the State directly and do not have any 
compliance related requirements, a.nd therefore have not been included on the Schedule of State 
Awards, as directed by the funding agency. 

7. INDIRECT COSTS 

The District did not use the 10% di minimus indirect cost rate. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 
Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

 
Financial Statements 

        Unmodified, dated 
Type of auditor’s report issued:         February 25, 2022  
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
1. Material weakness(es) identified?     yes  x   no 
 
2. Reportable condition(s) identified that are  
 not considered to be material weaknesses?      yes  x   none reported 
 
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?     yes  x   no 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 
1. Material weakness(es) identified?      yes  x   no 
 
2. Reportable condition(s) identified that are  
 not considered to be material weaknesses?      yes  x   none reported 
 
        Unmodified, dated 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:     February 25, 2022  
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
  in accordance with section .510(a) of the Uniform Guidance?     yes  x   no 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 

 CFDA Number       Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

     Title I Cluster: 
  84.010A    Title I, Part A, Title I Reallocated  

     National School Lunch Cluster: 
  10.553, 10.555 & 10559    National School Lunch and Breakfast  

     IDEA Cluster: 
  84,027A & 84.173    IDEA Regular & IDEA Preschool  

     COVID Cluster: 
  84.425D    CARES ESSER I, CARES ESSER II  

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:    $750,000.00   
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?      yes   X   no 
 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCH60L DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued) 

State Financial Assistance 

Internal control over major programs: 

1. Material weakness(es) Identified? 

2. Reportable condltlon(s) Identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

___ yes 

___ yes 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with NJ OMB Circular Letter 15-08? 

Identification of major programs: 

_ __ yes 

x 

x 

x 

no 

Exhibit K-6 
Sheet 2 of 2 

none reported 

Unmodified, dated 
February 25. 2022 

no 

GMIS Number Na111e of State Program or Cluster 

State Aid Cluster: 
21-495-034-5120-089 Categorical Special Education Aid 

21-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid 

21-495-034-5120-084 Categorical Security Aid 

21-495-034-5120-086 Preschool Education 

21-495-034-5095-034 Reimbursed TPAF School Security 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750.000.00 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ___ x_ yes ___ no 

Section II - Flnanclal Statement Findings 

No financial statement findings noted that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Section Ill - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 

No federal or state award findings or questioned costs noted that are required to be reported in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance or NJ OMB 15-08. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF FREEHOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR'S AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020: 

There were no findings for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
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